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VISION, MISSION AND KEY VALUES STATEMENT 
 

VISION 

A global institution of excellence, surpassing community needs 

 

MISSION 

To provide high quality Education and Training that is affordable, relevant, learner-centred and that contributes to the total development of individuals through: 

 Optimal utilisation of resources 

 Creative and innovative modes of delivery 

 Appropriately skilled staff and 

 Community upliftment 

 

KEY VALUES 

ORIBT College believes in 

 

Transformation 

Policies, procedures, activities and programmes are responsive to community needs and redress imbalances of the past, thereby ensuring increased inclusivity and 

accessibility 

 

Accountability 

Decision-making processes are transparent with proper financial management systems and procedures with the focus on efficiency and effectiveness, including being fair, 

ethical and trustworthy in all that we do 

 

Respect 

We respect the values of human dignity, equality, human rights and freedom, non-racism and non-sexism 

 

Teamwork 

Co-operating with one another, the community, business stakeholders and partners in education in an open and supportive way to achieve shared goals  
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1. INTRODUCTION 

This Annual Performance Report for 2018 aims to present and showcase the performance and achievements of ORBIT TVET College during the 2018 academic 

year.  The report serves to provide an honest overview of the extent to which strategic targets have been met in terms of academic, enrolment, management and 
administrative performance.  
 

2. ABBREVIATIONS AND ACRONYMS 

AA & CC    Annual Awards & Certification Ceremony 

AB    Academic Board 

AGSA    Auditor General of South Africa 

ASB    Accounting Standards Board 

ARC    Audit and Risk Committee 

ASO    Academic Support Officer 

BDI    Business Development and Innovation 

BMS    Business Management System 

BS    Business Studies 

CATHSSETA    Culture, Arts, Tourism, Hospitality and Sports Sector Education and TRAINING Authority  

CET Act No.16 of 2016  CET Act 

CETA    Construction Education and Training Authority 

CoSACSA    College Sports, Arts & Culture Championships  

DHET    Department of Higher Education and Training 

ECD    Early Childhood Development 

ES    Engineering Studies 

ETDP SETA    Education, Training and Development Practices Sector and Training Authority 

ETU    Education and Training Unit 

EW SETA    Energy and Water Sector Education and Training Authority 

FASSET    Finance and Accounting Services Sector Education and Training Authority 

FINCOM    Finance Committee 
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FTE    Full Time Equivalent 

GRAP    Generally Recognised Accounting Practice 

HEI    Higher Education Institution 

HoD    Head of Department 

ICASS    Integrated Continuous Assessment 

ICDL    International Computer Driver’s Licence 

IPSAS    International Public Sector Accounting Services 

ISAT    Integrated Summative Assessment Tasks 

ISFAP    Ikusasa Student Financial Aid Programme 

ISO9001:2008    International Quality Standard of the International Organisation for Standardisation 

LAN    Local Area Network 

MANCO    Management Committee 

MerSETA    Manufacturing, Engineering and Related Services Sector Education and Training Authority 

MICT    Media, Information and Communication Technologies Sector Education and Training Authority 

MIS    Management Information System 

MQA    Mining Qualifications Authority 

NAMB    National Artisan Moderation Body 

NATED    National Department of Education Report 190/191 Programmes 

NC    National Certificate  

NC(V)    National Certificate (Vocational) 

NEETs    Not in Employment, Education, nor in Training 

NQF    National Qualifications Framework 

NSC    National Senior Certificate 

NSDS     National Skills Development Strategy 

NSFAS    National Student Financial Aid Scheme 

NTC    National Technical Certificate 

NYDA    National Youth Development Agency 

PAL    Peer Academic Leaders 
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PRC    Planning and Resource Committee 

PRO    Public Relations Officer 

QMS    Quality Management System 

RMC    Risk Management Committee 

SABEN    South African Broadcast Education Networks 

SABS    South African Bureau of Standards 

SACPO    South African College Principals’ Organisation  

SAICA    South African Institute of Chartered Accountants 

SARS    South African Revenue Services 

SETA    Sector Education and Training Authority 

SNE    Students with Special Needs for Education 

SoP    Schedule of Particulars 

SRC    Student Representative Council 

SSO    Student Support Officer 

THETA    Tourism, Hospitality and Sport Education and Training Authority 

TVET    Technical and Vocational Education and Training 

SSS    Student Support Services 

Umalusi   Quality Assurance Body for the General and Further Education and Training Sectors in South Africa 

VAT   Value Added Tax 

W & R SETA    Wholesale and Retail Sector Education and Training Authority 

WAN    Wide Area Network 

WBE    Workplace-based Education 

WIL    Work Integrated Learning 

 

References in this Annual Report are to the FET Colleges Act No.16 of 2006 as amended by Act No.3 of 2012 and the Continuing Education and Training (CET) Colleges Act (No 16 

of 2006) 
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PART A: GENERAL OVERVIEW
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MESSAGE FROM THE COUNCIL CHAIRPERSON 
 

Globalisation and digitalisation processes have led the world to change at an unprecedented pace, with the profile of work and skills continually needing to change. As young 

people seek to acquire new skills to move towards a successful future, global research shows that transformative entrepreneurial skills have emerged as qualities that are 
important to the world of work. In light of these qualities, ORBIT TVET College has given priority to the value of employability and well-being alongside the business-creation 
context during the period under review.  
 

The College has worked on the strategic objectives of improving management and governance, developing the quality of teaching and learning, increasing responsibility for 
local labour markets, improving student support services, and developing its infrastructure. These strategic objectives have been consistent with those of the Department of 
Higher Education and Training, Science and Technology, underpinned by the Medium Term Strategic Framework. ORBIT TVET College has remained transparent, responsive 
and accountable to these objectives.  Overall the College has been managed and governed in accordance with best practices, and has upheld and promoted the laws of the 
country in all its operations, in particular the CET ACT (no. 16 of 2006), and related regulations and policies. 
 

As a result of its direct relations with the labour market and its dedication to achieving the strategic objectives, ORBIT TVET College has begun the process of equipping both 
the workforce and its students with in-demand skills.  In order to increase the level of coherence and articulation, the College has promoted dialogue, collaboration, and ties 
with employers and universities as well as SETAs. These partnerships have helped the College to identify opportunities for work-integrated learning and also to improve the 
technical knowledge and pedagogical skills of the staff. In addition, the College has offered its students a variety of support services. 
These services ranged from financial support in the form of Departmental and College bursaries, accommodation at student 
residences, psycho-social support in the form of counselling, and learning support to students who were unable to meet the academic 
challenges of the College environment.  
 

While both the TVET College Sector and ORBIT TVET College, in particular, have faced several challenges, the opportunities for 
developing a responsive and vibrant TVET Sector in line with the White Paper on Post-School Education and Training far outweigh 
those challenges. The College will continue to build and enhance relations with stakeholders inside and outside the institution to 
ensure that needs are met and that institutional performance and operations are both efficient and effective. 
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3. THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER’S FOREWORD 

Every academic year comes with its own highlights and challenges, giving the period under review a unique character and sense.  2019 was no different. 

 

The ever-changing landscape in which ORBIT TVET College operates, compels us to be adaptable, embrace change and to keep aspiring to make the best of every opportunity 

that comes our way, moreover because we hold the future of many young, aspiring minds in our hands.  Therefore, everything that we do as a College, every decision that we 

take as Management of the College is based on one predominant goal – to equip the students in our care with the best knowledge and skills so that they have a sustainable, 

competitive advantage within the labour market, once they have completed their studies. 

 

To this end, ORBIT College can proudly boast that 2019 saw the first group of artisans qualifying in their respective fields.  The Centres of Specialization at both Mankwe and 

Brits Campuses became fully operational in pursuit of producing more qualified artisans to boost the economy.   

 

The programme qualification mix (PQM) offered by the College comprises both vocational and occupational programmmes.  These qualifications are aligned to industry needs 

as well as local economic needs. More mutually beneficial partnerships with business and industry were established and existing partnerships were nurtured to open up more 

workbased placement opportunities for our students and work integrated learning opportunities for our lecturers.  The annual College Business Brunch was attended by a 

record forty three external partners.  The College also hosted a very successful, first-of-its-kind Women in Engineering function during August as part of celebrating both TVET 

College and Women’s month.   

 

2019 also saw an incredible 405 graduates complying to be awarded their NC(V) Level 4 Certificates and National N Diplomas at the Annual Awards and Certification Ceremony 

that was hosted on 16 May.  It was especially heartwarming to see the increased number of National N Diplomandi attending this prestigious function to be rewarded for their 

hard work. 

 

The Centre for Entrepreneurship and Rapid Incubator continues to provide our College with a competitive advantage. We extend our deep appreciation to the Department of 

Small Business Development and SEDA Technology programme for funding the Centre. Since its establishment in 2016, most College students and prospective community 
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businessmen have benefitted remarkably from this Centre. 

 

Our students’ academic performance was good, especially in the National Certificate Vocational (NC(V)) programmes.  However, we acknowledge that there is always room 

for improvement and have committed ourselves as Management and staff to keep working hard and focus on making the most of the teaching and learning experience of every 

student of the College. 

 

I am grateful for and remain positive that with the constant assistance and support of our College Council, Management, staff, SRC and students, ORBIT College will remain 

one of the best and most successful TVET Colleges in the country.  I wish to express my sincere gratitude and commit 

myself once again to keep this wonderful ship proudly afloat as we are planning for the future! 

 

 

 

MOKOENA DF 
PRINCIPAL/ACCOUNTING OFFICER  
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4. STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND CONFIRMATION OF ACCURACY 

 

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm the following: 

 
1. All information and amounts disclosed throughout annual report are consistent. 

2. The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines issued by the Department of Higher Education and Training. 

3. The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the relevant standards, frameworks and guidelines issued by National Treasury. 

4. The accounting officer, i.e. the principal, is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements and for the judgements made in this document. 

5. The accounting officer, i.e. the principal, is responsible for establishing and implementing a system of internal control that has been designed to provide 

reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the performance information, the human resources information and the annual financial 

statements. 

6. The Auditor-General and/or external auditors express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements. 

 
In my opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the human resources information and the financial affairs of ORBIT 
TVET College for the financial year ended 31 December 2019 

 
 
 
 
 

MOKOENA DF 
PRINCIPAL/ACCOUNTING OFFICER 
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6. LEGISLATION AND OTHER DIRECTIVES 

6.1 Legislative Framework 

ORBIT TVET College is enjoined by Section 44(3) of the Act, read in conjunction with section 25(3) of the same Act to prepare and submit to the Minister for Higher 

Education and Training an annual report. 
 

In terms of Sections 25(3) and 25(4) of the Continuing Education and Training (CET) Colleges Act, No 16 of 2006 (as amended), public technical and vocational 
education and training (TVET) colleges are required to produce annual financial reports and to comply with any reasonable additional reporting requirement established 
by the Minister.  Moreover, Section 44 of the Act requires colleges to annually report to the Minister in respect of its performance and its use of available resources.   
 

In addition, these pieces of legislation govern and steer the College in terms of achievement of its strategic and performance objectives.  
 

6.2 Legislative and Other Mandates 
In terms of Sections 25(3) and 25(4) of the Continuing Education and Training (CET) Colleges Act, No 16 of 2006 (as amended), public technical and vocational 
education and training (TVET) colleges are required to produce annual financial reports and to comply with any reasonable additional reporting requirement established 
by the Minister.  Moreover, Section 44 of the Act requires colleges to annually report to the Minister in respect of its performance and its use of available resources. In 
addition, these pieces of legislation govern and steer the college in terms of achievement of its strategic and performance objectives.  
 
Further sets of legislation that impact on the TVET Colleges Sector and its strategic and national imperatives are listed below: 
o National Qualifications Framework (NQF) Act (No 67 of 2008); 

o Higher Education (HE) Act (No 101 of 1997); 

o Skills Development Act (No 97 of 1998); 

o Skills Development Levies Act (no 9 of 1999); and 

o General and Further Education and Training Quality Assurance Act (No 58 of 2001). 

In addition, the White Paper for Post-School Education and Training mandates delivery and strategic priorities in the TVET Colleges sector.  Other policy mandates 
include: 
o National Trade Testing Regulations; 

o SETA Grant Regulations; 

o National Skills Development Strategy; 

o Public TVET College Attendance and Punctuality Policy; and  

o Policy on the Conduct of National Examinations and Assessment.  
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PART B: GOVERNANCE 
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7. Report of Council Chairperson 

 

The following report on Governance is extracted from the ORBIT TVET College Statute and serves to point out the constitution, duties, governance structure and terms of 

reference for Council Committees. 
 

Subject to the Continuing Education and Training (CET) Colleges Act, No 16 of 2006 (as amended) and the College Statute the Council governs ORBIT TVET College.  
 

To facilitate good governance and effective management, the boundaries between the two must be discussed and clearly defined.  If the boundaries between governance and 
management are blurred, it may lead to tensions, conflicts of interest and ultimately to organisational non-performance. 
 

While governance is the process of making, and monitoring compliance, of policies to regulate the delivery of services towards the achievement of organisational goals, 
management is the process of planning, organising, leading and controlling the resources of an organisation to achieve organisational goals as effectively and efficiently as 
possible. 
 

Furthermore, the King I, II, III and IV Reports on Corporate Governance, which is applicable to all organisations, including TVET Colleges, emphasises the need for the Council 
of a College to be independent and to avoid conflicts of interest.   
 

The following 2 quotations from the King III report provide credence to this statement: 
 

(i) “A director is a steward of the company. The ethics of governance requires that in this stewardship role, each director be faithful to the four basic ethical values of good 

corporate governance (responsibility, accountability, fairness and transparency).”  

 

(ii) “The non-executive director plays an important role in providing judgment independent of management on issues facing the company.  Not being involved in the management 

of the company defines the director as non-executive.  Non-executive directors are independent of management on all issues including strategy, performance, sustainability, 

resources, transformation, diversity, employment equity, standards of conduct and evaluation of performance. 

 

The independence of the Council demands that non-executive or independent members: 
 

(i) do not have direct or indirect interest in the College.  

(ii) do not function in any executive capacity nor have not been employed by the College in any such capacity for the preceding three financial years. 

(iii) are not professional advisers to the College. 

(iv) are free from any business or other relationship that could be seen to interfere materially with the individual's capacity to act in an independent manner. 
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7.1 CONSTITUTION OF THE COLLEGE COUNCIL AND GOVERNANCE STRUCTURES  
7.1.1 COLLEGE COUNCIL 2019 AND ITS DESIGNATED FUNCTIONS 
 
Executive Committee (EXCO) 

SURNAME & INITIALS  DESIGNATED FUNCTION AND MEMBERSHIP DATE APPOINTED 

Moloantoa K (Dr) Ministerial Appointee Section 10 (4) (b) member 
Chairperson of College Council 

Appointed 1 May 2019 

Bogopa MB Ministerial Appointee Section 10 4) (b) member 
Deputy Chairperson of College Council 
Chairperson of Finance Committee 

Appointed 1 May 2019  
 

Dubazana TC Section 10 (6) Additional member appointee Appointed 1 May 2019 

Lefophane MH (Ms) Ministerial Appointee Section 10 4) (b) member 
 

Appointed 1 May 2019 

Magolego PM  Section 10 (4) (d) Donar Appointee 
Chairperson of Conditions of Employment Committee 

Appointed 1 May 2019 

Mathye MG (Ms) Section 10 (6) Additional member appointee 
Chairperson of Audit and Risk Committee 

Appointed 1 May 2019 

Mokoena DF Internal Member Section 10 (4) (a) member 
Principal of College  

 

Matjiane MS Internal invitee  
Deputy Principal Corporate Services of College 

 

Mosito TJ Internal invitee 
Deputy Principal Academic Programmes and Student Support Services 
of College 

 

Sebaetse M Internal invitee 
Acting Deputy Principal Finance of College (January 2019 – May 2019 ) 

 

Mokhethi T Internal invitee 
Deputy Principal Finance of College (Appointed June 2019) 

 

 

Council Members 
SURNAME & INITIALS  DESIGNATED FUNCTION AND MEMBERSHIP DATE APPOINTED 

Ramaru MS Section 10 (4) (e) member 
Lecturing staff representative 

Appointed 1 May 2019 

Mangoma APC (Ms) Section 10 (6) Additional member appointee Appointed 1 May 2019 

Mokale AT Section 10 (4) (f)l member 
Support staff representative 

Appointed 1 May 2019 

Basson JPC Ministerial Appointee Section 10(4) (b) member Appointed 1 May 2019 but resigned 1 November 2019 

Singh R Section 10 (6) Additional member appointee Appointed 1 May 2019 
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SURNAME & INITIALS  DESIGNATED FUNCTION AND MEMBERSHIP DATE APPOINTED 

Letsoalo SM Section 10 (4) (c) 
Academic Board Representative 

Appointed 1 May 2019 

Gabashane AD Ministerial Appointee Section 10(4) (b) member Appointed 1 May 2019 but passed away in July 2019 

Delman NM Section 10 (4) (g) 
SRC President 

Term ended December 2019 

Bogale MM Section 10 (4) (g) 
SRC Secretary 

Term ended December 2019 

 

7.1.2 COUNCIL SUB-COMMITTEES 
 
Audit and Risk Sub-committee Members 

SURNAME & INITIALS  DESIGNATED FUNCTION AND MEMBERSHIP 

Carrim I External Appointee 

Fourie W (Ms) External Appointee 

Hlungwani ER1 External Appointee 

Kgalaki R Section 10 (6) Additional Member Appointee 

Mathye MG (Ms)2 Section 10 (6) Additional member appointee 
Acting Chairperson of Audit and Risk Sub-committee until she was appointed a permanent member of Council in 
November 2019 

Matjiane SM3 Internal Invitee 
Deputy Principal Corporate Services 

Mokhethi T4 Internal invitee 
Deputy Principal Finance of College (Appointed June 2019) 

Mokoena DF Internal Member Section 10 (4) (b) member 
Principal of College  

Moloantoa K (Dr)5 Acted as Chairperson of Audit and Risk Sub-Committee after Ms Mathye could no longer serve on the 
Committee due to her permanent appointment on Council 

Sebaetse M6 Internal invitee 
Acting Deputy Principal Finance of College (January 2019 – May 2019) 

Tshabangwe M Internal Audit and Assurance Manager  

1 Mr Hlungwani was appointed in April 2019  
2 Ms MG Mathye has been appointed a permanent member of the Council in November 2019 and could therefore no longer serve on the Audit and Risk Committee 
3 Mr SM Matjiane was invited to attend all Audit and Risk Committee meetings to present ICT Governance 
4 Mr T Mokhethi was appointed as the Deputy Principal Finances in June 2019 and was invited to attend all meetings to present the Annual Financial Statements and progress on the clearing of audit 

findings 
5 Dr K Moloantoa was temporarily acting as the Chairperson of the Audit and Risk Committee 
6 Mr M Sebaetse was invited to attend all Audit and Risk Committee Meetings to assist Mr Mokhethi in presenting the AFS and clearing of audit findings 
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Finance Sub-committee Members 
 

SURNAME & INITIALS  DESIGNATED FUNCTION AND MEMBERSHIP 

Bogopa B1 Ministerial Appointee Section 10(4) (b) member 
Chairperson of Finance Sub-committee (Since 1 May 2019) 

Dubuzana TC2 Ministerial Appointee Section 10(4) (b) member 
Chairperson of Finance Sub-committee (Until April 2019) 

Magolego P3 Section 10 (4) (d) Donar Appointee 
 

Mokoena DF Internal Member Section 10 (4) (b) member 
Principal of College  

Mokhethi T4 Internal invitee 
Deputy Principal Finance of College (Appointed June 2019) 

Sebaetse M5 Internal invitee 
Acting Deputy Principal Finance of College (January - May 2019)) 

Xipu SE (Dr)6 Section 10 (6) Additional member appointee 
 

Moloantoa K (Dr) Section 10 (6) Additional member Appointee 
 

Visser M (Ms) Internal Invitee – Finance Manager 
 

 
1 Mr B Bogopa was appointed as a member of Council in May 2019 and replaced Mr T Dubazana on the Committee 
2 Mr TC Dubazana’s term of office came to an end in April 2019 
3 Mr P Magolego was appointed as a member of Council in May 2019 and was elected as a temporary member of the Committee 
4 Mr T Mokhethi was appointed the Deputy Principal Finances in June 2019 and replaced Mr M Sebaetse on the Committee 
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Conditions of Employment Sub-committee Members 
 

SURNAME & INITIALS  DESIGNATED FUNCTION AND MEMBERSHIP 

Bogopa B1 Ministerial Appointee Section 10(4) (b) member 
 

Erasmus JJ2 Section 10(6) Additional Member Appointee 
 

Gabashane D3 Ministerial Appointee Section 10(4) (b) member 
 

Mafojane G Internal invitee 
Human Resource Manager  

Magolego P4 Section 10 (4) (d) Donar Appointee 
Chairperson of Conditions of Employment Committee 

Matjiane MS Internal invitee  
Deputy Principal Corporate Services of College 

Mokoena DF Internal Member Section 10 (4) (b) member 
Principal of College  

Mokotedi SJ5 Ministerial Appointee Section 10(4) (b) member 
Term expired in April 2019 

Moloantoa K (Dr)6 Section 10 (6) Additional member Appointee 
 

Nkagisang MG (Dr)7 Section 10(6) Donor Appointee 
 

 
1 Mr B Bogopa was appointed as a member of Council in May 2019 and replaced Mr JJ Erasmus on the Committee 
2 Mr JJ Erasmus’s term of office came to an end in April 2019 
3 Mr D Gabashane was appointed as a member of Council in May 2019 and replaced Mr SJ Mokotedi on the Committee, however, Mr Gabashane passed away in July 2019 
4 Mr P Magolego was appointed as a member of Council in May 2019 and replaced Dr MG Nkagisang on the Committee 
5 Mr SJ Mokotedi’s term of office came to an end in April 2019 
6 Dr K Moloantoa was appointed as a member of Council in May 2019 and replaced Mr D Gabashane on the Committee 
7 Dr MG Nkagisang’s term of office came to an end in April 2019 
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Planning and Resource Sub-committee Members 
 

SURNAME & INITIALS  DESIGNATED FUNCTION AND MEMBERSHIP 

Basson JPC1 Ministerial Appointee Section 10(4) (b) member 

Bogopa B2 Ministerial Appointee Section 10(4) (b) member 

Magolego P3 Section 10 (4) (d) Donor Appointee 

Matjiane MS Internal invitee 
Deputy Principal Corporate Services of College 

Mokhethi T4 Internal invitee 
Deputy Principal Finance of College (Appointed June 2019) 

Mokoena DF Internal Member Section 10 (4) (b) member 
Principal of College (Appointed June 2018) 

Moloantoa K (Dr) Section 10 (6) Additional member Appointee 

Mosito TJ Internal invitee 
Deputy Principal Academic Programmes and Student Support Services of College 

Saffy A (Ms) Ministerial Appointee Section 10(4) (b) member 

Sebaetse M Internal invitee 
Acting Deputy Principal Finance of College (January – May 2019) 

Xipu SE (Dr) Section 10 (6) Additional member 
Chairperson of Planning and Resource Sub-committee 

1 Mr JPC Basson was appointed as a member of Council in May 2019 and replaced Ms A Saffy on the Committee  
2 Mr MB Bogopa was appointed as a member of Council in May 2019 and replaced Dr SE Xipu on the Committee 
3 Mr P Magolego was appointed as a member of Council in May 2019 and became a member of the Committee thereafter 
4 Mr T Mokhethi was appointed as the Deputy Principal Finances in June 2019 and became a member of the Committee thereafter 

 
Council Members serving on the Academic Board 
 

SURNAME & INITIALS  DESIGNATED FUNCTION AND MEMBERSHIP 

Lefophane MH (Ms) Ministerial Appointee Section 10 4) (b) member 
 

Mathye MG (Ms) Section 10 (6) Additional member appointee 
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7.1.3 APPOINTMENTS MADE IN 2019 IN TERMS OF SECTIONS 10 (4) AND 10(6) OF THE CET ACT 
 
VACANCIES IN 2019 
 
There following vacancies existed on the ORBIT TVET College Council in 2019: 
 

FIELD OF EXPERTISE REASON FOR VACANCY 
Section 10 (4) (b) Dr AD Gabashane passed away in July 2019 
Section 10 (4) (b) Mr JPC Basson resigned  in November 2019 

 
7.1.4 MEETINGS HELD BY COUNCIL IN 2019 

 

EXCO Meetings 

Date of Meeting Purpose of Meeting 

22 March 2019 Preparations for Council Meeting by interrogating all Sub-Committee reports 

20 August 2019 Preparations for Council Meeting by interrogating all Sub-Committee reports 

19 November 2019 Preparations for Council Meeting by interrogating all Sub-Committee reports 

 

Council Meetings 

Date of Meeting Purpose of Meeting 

29 March 2019 To consider recommendations from EXCO and Council Sub-Committees 

3 - 4 May 2019 Council Induction for Ministerial appointees 

7 June 2019 Special Meeting to deal with assigned task 

27 August 2019 Special Meeting to deal with assigned task 

29 November 2019 To consider recommendations from EXCO and Council Sub-Committees 

3 December 2019 Special Meeting to deal with assigned task 
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Audit and Risk Sub-Committee Meetings 

Date of Meeting Purpose of Meeting 

5 March 2019 Preparations for EXCO and Council Meeting by interrogating Unit Report 

20 March 2019 Approval of audit strategy and engagement letter for external audit by 
Auditor General 

26 April 2019 Review of Annual Financial Statements of 2018 for Auditor General 

11 July 2019 Preparations for EXCO and Council Meeting by interrogating Unit Report 

25 July 2019 Approval of Annual Financial Statements of 2018 for Auditor General 

6 November 2019 Preparations for EXCO and Council Meeting by interrogating Unit Report 

Finance Sub-Committee Meetings 

Date of Meeting Purpose of Meeting 

11 March 2019 Preparations for EXCO and Council Meeting by interrogating Unit Report 

5 July 2019 Preparations for EXCO and Council Meeting by interrogating Unit Report 

18 October 2019 Preparations for EXCO and Council Meeting by interrogating Unit Report 

 

Conditions of Employment Sub-Committee Meetings 

Date of Meeting Purpose of Meeting 

8 February 2019 Preparations for EXCO and Council Meeting by interrogating Unit Report 

4 July 2019 Preparations for EXCO and Council Meeting by interrogating Unit Report 

5 November 2019 Preparations for EXCO and Council Meeting by interrogating Unit Report 

 

Planning and Resource Sub-Committee Meetings 

Date of Meeting Purpose of Meeting 

6 February 2019 Preparations for EXCO and Council Meeting by interrogating Unit Report 

28 February 2019 Preparations for EXCO and Council Meeting by interrogating Unit Report 

13 August 2019 Preparations for EXCO and Council Meeting by interrogating Unit Report 

11 October 2019 Preparations for EXCO and Council Meeting by interrogating Unit Report 
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7.1.5 PERFORMANCE OF COUNCIL TERMS OF ITS STATUTORY FUNCTIONS, EXPLAINED IN SECTION 10(1) – (3) OF THE CET ACT 
 

7.1.5.1 Duties of the College Council 
 

Without derogating from the generality of subsection (1), the Council - 
a. makes rules for the College;  
b. establishes the Council Committees and determines the composition and functions of each committee;  
c. establishes, in consultation with the Academic Board, joint Committees of the Council and the Academic Board to perform functions which are common 

to the Council and the Academic Board;  
d. subject to applicable policy and the approval of the Director-General, determines the student admission policy of the College, after consultation with the 

Academic Board;  
e. determines and provides student support services after consultation with the SRC;  
f. subject to the approval of the Director-General, determines the language policy of the College, after consultation with the Academic Board;  
g. determines tuition fees, accommodation fees and any other fees payable by students as well as accommodation fees payable by employees;  
h. approves the annual budget of the College; and  
i. may conclude a loan or overdraft agreement, with the approval of the Minister.  
Without derogating from the generality of subsection (1), the Council –  
a. determines conditions of service, code of conduct and privileges and functions of its employees and may, in the manner set out in the code of conduct, 

suspend or dismiss employees of the College; and  
b. may order an employee of the College who has been suspended to refrain from  being on any premises under the control of the College and to refrain 

from participating in any of the activities of the College, or issue such other conditions as it may consider necessary.  
 

7.1.5.2 Composition of Council  
 

The Council, as contemplated in section 10(4) of the Act, consists of –  
a. the Principal;  
b. five external persons appointed by the Minister;  
c. one member of the Academic Board elected by the Academic Board;  
d. one lecturer elected by the lecturers at the College;  
e. two students of the College elected by the SRC;  
f. one member of the support staff elected by the support staff of the College;  
g. one external member representing donors; and  
h. at least four members contemplated in section 10(6) of the Act with a broad spectrum of competencies in the fields of education, business, finance, law, 

marketing, information technology and human resource management appointed by the Council in consultation with the Minister.   
 

At least 60% of the members of the Council must be external persons who are not employed by the Minister or Council, or are not students of the College.  
The Council members contemplated in Section 10(8) and (9) of the Act must have knowledge and experience relevant to the objects and governance of the College. 
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7.1.5.3 Council Governance Structure 

  
 
 
  

External Stakeholder Representatives  
(60 % of Members) 

 
-  5 Members appointed by Minister 

  4 Additional Persons  
  (from Public,  Business and Labour with financial, legal 

and human resource skills) 
- Donor 

Institutional Representatives 
(40 % of Members) 

-  Principal 
-  1 Lecturer 
- 1 Support Staff Member 
- 1 Academic Board  Representative 
- 2 Student Representatives (SRC) 

Academic Board 
(Ad Hoc Members as deemed necessary) 
- Chairperson (Principal) 
- Deputy Chairperson (Deputy Principal Academic and 

Student Support Services) 
- 2 College Council Representatives 
- 2 SRC Student Representatives 
- Lecturing Staff (3 Campuses) 
-  Campus Managers 
-  Student Support Manager 
-  Vocational Programmes Manager 

- Artisan Development Manager 

Student Representative Council 
(Ad Hoc Members as deemed necessary) 
- President  
- Deputy President  
- Secretary 
- Vice - Secretary 
- Treasurer 
- Academic Development & Alumni 
- Disciplinary and Legal 
- Health, Wellness and Student Residences 
-  Public Relations  

- Sports and Recreation 

- Arts and Culture 

- Gender and Disability 

Executive Committee (EXCO) 

Chairperson 
Deputy Chairperson 
Secretary 
Principal  
Chairpersons of Council Committees 
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External stakeholder representatives constitute 60% of members and institutional representatives constitute 40% of members 

11 members (Chairperson, Vice-chairperson, Secretary, Principal, Chairpersons of Council Committees, Deputy Principals) 

6 Committee members (1 x external member of Council to chair, 3 external members with appropriate expertise in the field of Information Technology, 
Finance, Risk Management, Law and Auditing,  appointed by Council and 2 internal staff members namely the Principal and Internal Audit and Assurance 
Manager) 

5 Committee members (3 External members of Council (one of whom is the Chairperson) and 1 internal staff member namely the Deputy Principal 
Corporate Services and 1 invited member namely the HR Manager) 

6 Committee members (3 External Members of Council (one of whom is the Chairperson) and 3 internal staff members namely the Principal, Deputy 
Principal Finances and 1 invited members namely the Finance Manager) 

7 Committee members (3 External Members of Council (one of whom is the Chairperson) and 3 internal staff members namely the Principal, 2 Deputy 
Principals and 1 invited member namely the Supply Chain Manager) 

  

COLLEGE COUNCIL

Executive 
Committee

(EXCO)

Audit and Risk 
Committee

Conditions of 
Employment 
Committee

Finance
Committee

Planning and 
Resource 

Committee
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7.1.5.5 TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR GOVERNANCE AND COUNCIL COMMITTEES 
 

a) Terms of Reference for Council Committees 

  
 Executive Committee 

The Executive Committee meets: 

 one week before scheduled Council meetings  

 when the need arises when an urgent matter needs attention, and decision needs to be made  

 when a mandate has been received from the Council to finalise a specific matter  

 
Purpose of the Executive meeting before regular scheduled Council Meetings: 
To receive and discuss reports and recommendations from Council Sub Committees and Management. 

 

b) Audit and Risk Committee 

An independent Audit and Risk Committee fulfils a vital role in corporate governance. The Audit and Risk Committee is a critical component in ensuring the 
integrity of integrated reporting and financial controls, the proper identification and management of financial risks and the integrity of the reporting practices.  

  
The Audit and Risk Committee should meet as frequently as necessary to perform its role, but should meet at least four times a year. 

 
 Purpose of the committee: 

To ensure compliance with the best financial and accounting practices and standards, and to oversee the management of risk in the organisation. 
The Audit and Risk Committee should oversee the College’s reporting and assurance functions and review aspects of risk and sustainability issues where it is 
mandated to do so by the Council. 
 

c) Finance Committee 

The Finance Committee should meet at least four time per year or more often as circumstances require, keep minutes of proceedings and report 
regularly to Council. The Finance Committee may invite to its meetings any council member, officer of the College or such other person as it deems appropriate 
to assist it in performing its responsibilities. 

  
Purpose of the committee: 
To consider matters of financial strategy and policy and to optimise the use of financial resources 
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d) Conditions of Employment Committee 

The Conditions of Employment Committee should meet regularly, not less than four times per year, and at such other times as may be requested by the 
Chairperson of the Committee.  No executive officer should attend a portion of any meeting where such an executive’s performance or compensation is 
discussed, unless specifically invited by the Conditions of Employment Committee. 

 
Purpose of the Committee: 
 
To approve Human Resource Management policies and monitor their implementation. 

 

e) Planning and Resource Committee 

The Planning and Resource Committee should meet regularly, not less than four times per year, and at such other time as may be requested by the 
Chairperson of the Committee. A member must attend a minimum of 3 meetings in a financial year, failure of which, the member’s conduct should be referred 
to the Chairperson of the College Council for intervention and may lead to permanent dismissal from the Committee. 

 
Purpose of the committee: 
To assist the Council in its duties relating to the planning, management and maintenance of infrastructure and capital expenditure for infrastructure 
expansion and diversification of programmes inclusive of ICT infrastructure and compliance with health, safety and environmental legislation and policies 

 
 
  



28 
 

7.2 REPORTS BY COMMITTEES OF COUNCIL 
 

7.2.1 REPORT OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE TO THE COUNCIL OF ORBIT COLLEGE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 
 

7.2.1.1 TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
In terms of section 25 of the Continuing Education and Training Act 2006 the Finance Committee (FINCOM) was established as an independent Oversight Committee 

on financial affairs of ORBIT College. The Committee has adopted formal Terms of Reference, which are regularly updated and approved by Council. The Committee 

presents its report on quarterly basis and annually for the financial year ending 31 December 2019. 

 

7.2.1.2 FINANCE COMMITTEE MEMBERS AND ATTENDANCE 
 
The Committee’s Terms of Reference requires a minimum of 3 External members of Council (one member appointed as the Chairperson of the FINCOM), and consists 

of the members listed below. During the period under review, four meetings were held.  

 

Member Role Meetings held Meetings attended 

Mr B Bogopa1 Member 2 2 

Mr TC Dubazana2 Member 1 1 

Mr P Magolego3 Member 1 1 

Mr T Mokhethi4 Member 2 2 

Mr DF Mokoena Member 3 1 

Mr K Moloantoa Member 3 3 

Mr M Sebaetse Member 2 2 

Ms M Visser Invitee 3 3 

Dr SE Xipu Member 1 1 
 
1 Mr B Bogopa was appointed as a member of Council in May 2019 and replaced Mr T Dubazana on the Committee 
2 Mr TC Dubazana’s term of office came to an end in April 2019 
3 Mr P Magolego was appointed as a member of Council in May 2019 and was elected as a temporary member of the Committee 
4 Mr T Mokhethi was appointed the Deputy Principal Finances in June 2019 and replaced Mr M Sebaetse on the Committee 
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7.2.1.3 FINANCE COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITY 
 
As at the 31 December 2019 the FINCOM reported that it has, as far as possible, complied with its responsibilities arising from its charter, including all relevant legislative 

requirements. The FINCOM has during the period under review considered all matters of financial strategy and policy, and optimised the use of ORBIT college’s 

financial resources. 

 
7.2.1.4 EFFICIENCY AND EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL 

 
During the period under review the FINCOM has effectively and efficiently executed the following responsibilities: 

 

a. Approved finance policies and monitor compliance. 

b. Overseen the preparation of the annual budget and financial statements. 

c. Considered and approved financial strategies and objectives as recommended by the Deputy Principal Finances in support of adopted development and 

growth plans for the College. 

d. Monitored financial performance against budgets.  

e. Overseen the administration, collection, and disbursement of the financial resources of the College. 

f. Advised the Council with respect to making significant financial decisions. 

g. Considered and assessed all investment opportunities available to the College, in respect of all funds which it administers, and to determine the manner 

and extent to which funds are to be invested with a view to ensuring both security and optimisation of income. 

h. Reviewed the actual and projected financial situation of the College as required, including among other matters, the respective level of debt, the sources 

of financing and the College’s financial ratios. 

i. Reviewed the financial aspects of any acquisitions submitted to the Council; and as delegated to the Finance Sub-Committee by the Council, to review 

and approve any acquisitions covered by such delegation.  

j. Monitored the performance of the Finance Component of the College. 
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7.2.1.5 CONCLUSION 

 

The FINCOM fully supports the College in its vision, as embodied in the strategic documents, and in its journey of improved service delivery to the Learners of 
the College. 

 

7.2.1.6 APPRECIATION 

 

The FINCOM would like to express its sincere appreciation to the Council Chairperson and all Members, Principal (Accounting Officer), Management, Officials, 
Auditor-General South Africa (AGSA) and the ORBIT college’s Finance Unit for their support to the FINCOM during the year under review. 

 
 
 
 

BOGOPA MB 
CHAIRPERSON: FINANCE COMMITTEE 
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7.2.2 REPORT OF THE CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE TO THE COUNCIL OF ORBIT COLLEGE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 
 
7.2.2.1 TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 

The Conditions of Employment Committee (HRCOM) has been established as an independent Committee, in terms of section 25 of the Continuing Education and 

Training Act 2006. The Committee has adopted formal Terms of Reference, which are regularly updated and approved by Council. The Committee presents its report 

for the financial year ended 31 December 2019. 

 
7.2.2.2 CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE MEMBERS AND ATTENDANCE 
 

The Committee’s Terms of Reference requires a minimum of 3 external members of Council (one of whom is the Chairperson), and consists of the members listed 
below:  

 

Member Role Meetings held Meetings attended 

Mr B Bogopa1 Member 2 1 

Mr JJ Erasmus2 Member 1 1 

Mr D Gabashane3 Member 1 1 

Mr G Mafojane Invitee 2 2 

Mr P Magolego4 Member 2 2 

Mr MS Matjiane Member 3 3 

Mr DF Mokoena Member 3 1 

Mr SJ Mokotedi5 Member 1 1 

Dr K Moloantoa6 Member 1 1 

Dr MG Nkagisang7 Member 1 0 
 

1 Mr B Bogopa was appointed as a member of Council in May 2019 and replaced Mr JJ Erasmus on the Committee 
2 Mr JJ Erasmus’s term of office came to an end in April 2019 
3 Mr D Gabashane was appointed as a member of Council in May 2019 and replaced Mr SJ Mokotedi on the Committee, however, Mr Gabashane passed away in July 2019 
4 Mr P Magolego was appointed as a member of Council in May 2019 and replaced Dr MG Nkagisang on the Committee 
5 Mr SJ Mokotedi’s term of office came to an end in April 2019 
6 Dr K Moloantoa was appointed as a member of Council in May 2019 and replaced Mr D Gabashane on the Committee 
7 Dr MG Nkagisang’s term of office came to an end in April 2019 
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7.2.2.3 CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITY 
 

The CoECOM reports that it has, as far as possible, complied with its responsibilities arising from its charter, including all relevant legislative requirements. 
 

7.2.2.4 EFFICIENCY AND EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL 
 

The CoECOM has effectively and efficiently executed the following responsibilities: 
 

a. Periodically reviewed and approved new human resource policies of the College. 
b. Monitored the College performance against its HR or workforce plan. 
c. Reviewed the total compensation practices of the College.  
d. Monitored the performance management and development systems and their impact on individual and organisational performance. 
e. Reviewed and approve the organisational structure and post establishment of the College. 
f. Monitored the College performance against defined strategic HR targets. 
g. Monitored systems and procedures for all Council-approved human resources and employment equity policies  
h. Monitored the management development programmes of the College. 
 

Reviewed and reported to the full Council, with recommendations, the following: 
 

a. the ethical standards of the College to ensure that Management has identified the values that determine acceptable behaviour in the College and has put in 
place a process that ensures these values are reflected in actions that are taken within the College. 

b. the periodic review of the College’s Code of Ethics and Conduct. 
c. compliance under the College’s Code of Ethics and Conduct. 
 

7.2.2.5 CONCLUSION 
 

The CoECOM fully supports the College in its vision, as embodied in the strategic documents, and in its journey of improved service delivery to the students of the 
College. 

 

7.2.2.6 APPRECIATION 
 

The CoECOM expresses its sincere appreciation to the Council, Accounting Officer, Management, Officials, Auditor-General South Africa and the Human Resource 
Unit for their support to the HRCOM during the year under review. 
 

  
 MAGOLEGO PM 

CHAIRPERSON:  CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE  
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7.2.3 REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE TO THE COUNCIL OF ORBIT COLLEGE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 
 

7.2.3.1 TERMS OF REFERENCE 
The Audit and Risk Committee (ARC) has been established as an independent Committee, in terms of section 25 of the Continuing Education and Training Act 2006. 
The Committee has adopted formal Terms of Reference, which are regularly updated and approved by Council. The Committee presents its report for the financial 
year ended 31 December 2019. 
 

7.2.3.2 AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE MEMBERS AND ATTENDANCE 
The Committee’s Terms of Reference requires a minimum of four members, and consists of the members listed below. During the year under review, eight meetings 
were held which includes meetings with the Accounting Officer, Internal Audit and Senior Management. Various stakeholders such as the Auditor-General were invited 
to some of the meetings.  

 

Member Role Meetings held Meetings attended 

Mr. I. Carrim Member 6 4 

Ms W. Fourie Member 6 6 

Mr ER Hlungwani1 Member 4 2 

Mr R. Kgalaki Member 6 5 

Ms MG Mathye2 Member 6 6 

Mr SM Matjiane3  1 1 

Mr T Mokethi4 Invitee 3 3 

Mr D Mokoena Member 6 5 

Dr K Moloantoa5 Acting member 3 3 

Mr M Sebaetse6 Invitee 5 5 

Mr M Tsabangwe Invitee 6 5 
 
1 Mr Hlungwani was appointed in April 2019  
2 Ms MG Mathye has been appointed a permanent member of the Council in November 2019 and could therefore no longer serve on the Audit and Risk Committee 
3 Mr SM Matjiane was invited to attend all Audit and Risk Committee meetings to present ICT Governance 
4 Mr T Mokhethi was appointed as the Deputy Principal Finances in June 2019 and was invited to attend all meetings to present the Annual Financial Statements and progress on the clearing of audit findings 
5 Dr K Moloantoa was temporarily acting as the Chairperson of the Audit and Risk Committee 
6 Mr M Sebaetse was invited to attend all Audit and Risk Committee Meetings to assist Mr Mokhethi in presenting the AFS and clearing of audit findings 

 

7.2.3.3 AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITY 
 
The ARC reports that it has, as far as possible, complied with its responsibilities arising from its charter, including all relevant legislative requirements. 
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7.2.3.4 EFFICIENCY AND EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL 
 

The ARC has considered the work performed by Internal Audit on a quarterly basis and has reviewed the Internal Audit Annual Report on Internal Controls for the year 
ended 31 December 2019. In line with relevant legislation and good cooperate governance requirements, Internal Audit provides the ARC and Management with the 
assurance that the internal controls are appropriate and effective with emphasis on continuous improvement to strengthen the internal controls. The majority of audit 
findings reported to the Committee related to the control activities and monitoring components. In relation to the aspect of monitoring, the audits indicated a lack of 
management and supervisory reviews to ensure: 

 

 compliance with legislation, regulations, policies and procedures; 

 the design and implementation of adequate controls; and 

 that implemented controls operate effectively. 

 

Management intervention is required to effect improvement in these areas. Focus and prioritisation should be given to identified control areas that put at risk the College 
achieving its key objectives. 
 

7.2.3.5 RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

Risk management has been formalised within the College, in relation to the establishment of various structures, processes and systems to give effect to risk 
management. Further initiatives are required to further embed risk management in the College’s processes. This includes further clarifying roles and responsibilities, 
improving training, developing performance measurements, monitoring compliance with the integrated risk management policy and framework, and consistent 
application of approach. 

 

7.2.3.6 ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

Accounting Policies that forms part of the Annual Financial Statements (AFS) were reviewed during each ARC meeting were the AFS were discussed. The ARC is 
content with appropriateness and compliance of the accounting policies with all relevant legislation. 

 

7.2.3.7 REVIEW OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The ARC noted the Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 as presented by Management in June 2020.  
 

The ARC noted the progress to date and advised Management to address outstanding balances and disclosures for final review by the ARC. The Committee further 
advised Management to ensure that the AFS are submitted to the Auditor-General before or on 30 June 2020.  

 

7.2.3.8 COMBINED ASSURANCE 

Regular engagements occurred between assurance providers to give effect to the Combined Assurance Framework. These engagements continue to be developed 
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and enhanced to make combined assurance in the College more effective. The Committee regularly reviews developments in this area. 
 

7.2.3.9 INTERNAL AUDIT 

The ARC is satisfied that the internal Audit activity is operating effectively and that it has addressed the risks pertinent to the College in its Audit engagements.  
 

The ARC approved internal Audit’s strategic documents for 2019. The 2019 operational plan was implemented by internal Audit and monitored by the ARC on a 
quarterly basis. 

 

PROHIBITED EXPENDITURE 
 

The ARC is recommending that Management improve and develop a standardised mechanism in ensuring that unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure is avoided. 
 

7.2.3.10 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT) GOVERNANCE 

The ARC is recommending to Management to give more focus on the IT Governance framework for the College. This will enable the Committee and College to achieve 
their objectives in relation to IT governance.  
 

7.2.3.11 CONCLUSION 

The ARC concurs and accepts the conclusions of both Internal Audit and the Auditor-General. The Committee is of the opinion that the Audited Annual Financial 
Statements should be accepted and read together with the Report of the Auditor General.  The Committee fully supports the College in its vision, as embodied in the 
strategic documents, and in its journey of improved service delivery to the Learners of the College. 
 

7.2.3.12 APPRECIATION 
The ARC expresses its sincere appreciation to the Council, Accounting Officer, Management, Officials, Auditor-General South Africa and the Internal Audit for their 
support to the ARC during the year under review. 
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7.2.4 REPORT OF THE PLANNING AND RESOURCE COMMITTEE TO THE COUNCIL OF ORBIT COLLEGE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 
 
7.2.4.1 TERMS OF REFERENCE 

 
The Planning and Resource Committee (PRC) has been established as an independent Committee, in terms of section 25 of the Continuing Education and Training 
Act 2006. The Committee has adopted formal Terms of Reference, which are regularly updated and approved by Council. The Committee presents its report for the 
financial year ended 31 December 2019. 

 
7.2.4.2 PLANNING AND RESOURCE COMMITTEE MEMBERS AND ATTENDANCE 

 
The Committee’s Terms of Reference requires a minimum of 4 external members of Council (one of whom is the Chairperson), and consists of the members listed 
below. During the year under review, four meetings were held.  

 

Member Role Meetings held Meetings attended 

Mr JPC Basson1 Member 2 2 

Mr MB Bogopa2 Member 2 2 

Mr P Magolego3 Member 2 2 

Mr S Matjiane Member 4 2 

Mr T Mokhethi4 Member 2 2 

Mr D Mokoena Member 4 3 

Dr K Moloantoa Member 4 4 

Mr T Mosito Member 4 0 

Ms A. Saffy Member 2 2 

Mr M Sebaetse Member 4 3 

Mr SE Xipu Member 2 1 
 
1 Mr JPC Basson was appointed as a member of Council in May 2019 and replaced Ms A Saffy on the Committee  
2 Mr MB Bogopa was appointed as a member of Council in May 2019 and replaced Dr SE Xipu on the Committee 
3 Mr P Magolego was appointed as a member of Council in May 2019 and became a member of the Committee thereafter 
4 Mr T Mokhethi was appointed as the Deputy Principal Finances in June 2019 and became a member of the Committee thereafter 

 
7.2.4.3 PLANNING AND RESOURCE COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITY 

 
The PRComm reports that it has, as far as possible, complied with its responsibilities arising from its charter, including all relevant legislative requirements. 
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7.2.4.4 EFFICIENCY AND EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL 
 

The PRComm has effectively and efficiently executed the following responsibilities: 
a. Recommended to Council to approve the College infrastructure planning, management and maintenance and supply chain policies and monitor compliance 

and implementation. 
b. Monitored the management of the facilities register and its associated maintenance and construction activities. 
c. Reviewed the actual and projected capital needs of the College as required, including among other matters, the sources of financing and related implications 

noting the mandate of expansion for TVET Colleges. 
d. Recommended the College five-year capital expenditure programme.  
 

e. Overseen the execution of capital projects, including that: 
 

 each project meets the strategic and technical specifications and deliverables. 

 all project-related risks have been identified and mitigated. 

 critical decisions, project parameters and governance processes are followed and addressed prior to committing funds. 

 each project enhances the portfolio value of the College. 
 
f. Reviewed the performance of the College Supply Chain component of the College in terms of operational targets 
g. Overseen the compliance to Health, Safety and Environmental legislation 
h. Monitored the achievement of targets in respect of the Environmental Plan as contained in the annually approved College Operational Plan 
 

7.2.4.5 CONCLUSION 
 

The PRComm fully supports the College in its vision, as embodied in the strategic documents, and in its journey of improved service delivery to the students of the 
College. 

 

7.2.4.6 APPRECIATION 
 

The PRComm expresses its sincere appreciation to the Council, Accounting Officer, Management, Officials, Auditor-General South Africa and the Supply Chain Unit 
for their support to the PRC during the year under review. 
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7.3 REPORT OF THE ACADEMIC BOARD TO THE COUNCIL OF ORBIT COLLEGE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 

7.3.1  TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 

The Academic Board has been established as an independent Committee, in terms of section 25 of the Continuing Education and Training Act 2006. The Board has 
adopted formal Terms of Reference, which are regularly updated and approved by Council. The Board presents its report for the financial year ended 31 December 
2019. 

 

7.3.2 ACADEMIC BOARD MEMBERS AND ATTENDANCE 
 

7.3.2.1 The Board’s Terms of Reference requires that the Board consist of the following 22 members:  
- Principal 
- Deputy Principal Academic Programmes and Student Support Services 
- Vocational Programmes Manager 
- Occupational Programmes Manager 
- Student Support Manager 
- Council Members (2 external Council members) 
- SRC Members (2 members) 
- Campus Managers (Brits, Mankwe and Rustenburg Campuses) 
- Head of Department Artisan Development and Partnership (1 to represent all 3 Campuses) 
- NC(V) Engineering Lecturer Representatives (X3 [1 per Campus]) 
- Report 191 Business and Utility Studies Lecturer Representatives (X3 [1 per Campus]) 
- Occupational Programmes Lecturer Representatives (X3 [1 per Campus]) 
 

7.3.2.2 The criteria to elect the 3 lecturer representatives is: 
 
a. Representatives can be elected from any Post Level (PL 1 to 3) – it therefore implies that there is no need for representatives for each level. 
b. Representatives must be permanently appointed. 
c. Representatives must have a proven success rate for programmes that they are teaching or have been teaching.  
d. Representatives must have a thorough understanding of the programme (NC(V)/Report 191/ Occupational Programmes) which they will be representing. 
e. Members of Academic Board do not represent any constituents; they are not stakeholders who are representing the mandates of the constituents they come from. 
f. Academic Board members must participate in the deliberations in the best interest of the College and deliberate on the College matters to the best of their knowledge 

in their functional area in order to improve governance of the College. 
 

7.3.2.3 The Chairperson of the Academic Board is the Principal of the College. 
7.3.2.4 The Deputy Chairperson of the Academic Board is the Deputy Principal Academic Programmes and Student Support Services of the College.  
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7.3.2.5 The Academic Board consists of the members listed below. During the year under review, four meetings were held.  
 

Member Role Meetings held Meetings attended 

Baloyi SM NC(V) Engineering Studies  
Mankwe Campus 

4 3 

Basson C1 Council Representative 3 2 
 

Phala C2 SRC President 3 1 
 

Galane L3 Academic Development and Alumni Representative of the SRC 3  

Kgaboesele  Campus Manager Rustenburg Campus 4 4 

Lefophane HM4 Council Representative 3 1 
 

Letsoalo SM NC(V) Engineering Studies 
Rustenburg Campus 

4 3 

Lupuwana LG NC(V) Business and General Studies 
Brits Campus 

4 1 

Madoda PM (Ms)5 College Council Representative 1 1 

Mashike O6 Academic Development and Alumni Representative of the SRC of ORBIT TVET 
College  

1 1 

Modiba R Student Support Services Manager 
ORBIT TVET College 

4 4 

Mokoena DF Principal 
ORBIT TVET College 

4 4 

Molapi W Acting Mankwe Campus 4 4 
 

Molefe TG Occupational Programmes Rustenburg Campus 4 2 

Molele BS (Ms) NC(V) Business and General Studies 
Rustenburg Campus 

4 2 

Moloantoa K (Dr)7 College Council Representative 2 2 

Mosito TJ Deputy Principal Academic Programmes and Student Support Services 4 3 

Naicker K8 Academic Programme Coordinator Rustenburg Camus 1 1 

Ndebele D9 SRC President  
ORBIT TVET College 

1 1 
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Phiri KA Report 191 Engineering Studies 
Brits Campus 

4 2 

Tlhopile T (Ms) Campus Manager 
Brits Campus 

4 2 

1 Mr C Basson was the Council Representative appointed from 1 May 2019 and replaced Ms PM Madoda on the Academic Board, however, Mr Basson resigned as a member of Council later in the 2019 academic year and Ms M 
Mathye who was appointed as a member of Council later in the 2019 academic year then permanently replaced Mr Basson on the Academic Board 

2 Mr C Phala was the newly elected SRC President from 1 March 2019 and replaced Mr D Ndebele on the Academic Board 
3 Mr L Galane was the newly elected SRC Academic Development and Alumni Representative from 1 March 2019 and replaced Ms O Mashike on the Academic Board 
4 Ms H Lefophane was the Council Representative appointed from 1 May 2019 and replaced Dr K Moloantoa on the Academic Board 
5 Ms PM Madoda’s term of office came to an end April 2019 and she therefore only attended one Academic Board Meeting for 2019  
6 Dr K Moloantoa’s term of office came to an end April 2019, however he was again appointed as a member of Council and attended an Academic Board meeting as a guest as the Chairperson of Council. In total he has attended 2 

meetings 
7 Ms O Mashike’s term of office came to an end February 2019 and she therefore only attended one Academic Board Meeting for 2019. 
8 Ms K Naicker was representing the Rustenburg Campus Manager who has resigned earlier in the academic year but when Ms Kgaboesele was appointed as the Rustenburg Campus Manager, Ms Naicker no longer served on the 

Academic Board 
9 Mr D Ndebele’s term of office came to an end February 2019 and he therefore only attended one Academic Board Meeting for 2019. 
 

7.3.3 ACADEMIC BOARD RESPONSIBILITY 
 

The Academic Board reports that it has, as far as possible, complied with its responsibilities arising from its charter, including all relevant legislative requirements. 
 

7.3.4 DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE ACADEMIC BOARD 
 

Subject to the Act, the Academic Board of the College is:  
 

7.3.4.1 accountable to the Council for:      
 

a. all the teaching, learning, research and academic functions of the College; 
b. the academic functions of the College and the promotion of the participation of women and the disabled in its learning programmes;  
c. establishing internal academic monitoring and quality promotion mechanisms;  
d. ensuring that the requirements of accreditation to provide learning against standards and qualifications registered in the National Qualifications Framework are 

met;  
e. identifying training needs of lecturing staff; and  
f. performing such other functions as may be delegated or assigned to it by the Council;  
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7.3.4.2 must:   
 

a. advise the Council on a Code of Conduct and rules concerning students; 
b. determine, in accordance with any relevant deed or gift and after consultation with the Principal, the conditions applicable to any scholarships and other 

academic prizes; 
c. determine the persons to whom scholarships and academic prizes are awarded;  
d. determine the functions of its Committees as well as the procedure of meetings of these Committees; and  
e. take note of any action taken by a Committee in exercising its delegated powers or functions when such Committee reports its actions to the next meeting of 

the academic board; and 
 

7.3.4.3 may:   
 

a. establish Committees to perform any of its functions, and may for this purpose deem a single person to be a committee;  
b. make standing orders on procedures and delegation of powers; and  
c. delegate its functions to a Committee.   

 

7.3.4.4 Without derogating from the generality of subsection (1) the organisation and supervision of instruction and examinations, and of lectures and classes, vest in the 
Academic Board.  

 

7.3.4.5 The Academic Board submits to the Council:   
 

a. such reports upon its work as may be required by the Council;  
b. recommendations on matters referred to it by the Council; and  
c. recommendations on any other matter affecting the College that the Academic Board considers useful. 

 

7.3.5 CONCLUSION 
 

The Academic Board fully supports the College in its vision, as embodied in the strategic documents, and in its journey of improved service delivery to the learners of 
the College. 

 

7.3.6 APPRECIATION 
 

The Academic Board expresses its sincere appreciation to the Council, Accounting Officer, Management, Student Representative Council, Officials, Auditor-General 
South Africa and the Academic Unit for their support to the Academic Board during the year under review. 

 
 
MOKOENA DF 
CHAIRPERSON: ACADEMIC BOARD  
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7.4      STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE COUNCIL REPORT 
 

7.4.1 TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 

The ORBIT TVET College Student Representative Council (SRC) Constitution is promulgated with reference to the Continuing Education and Training Colleges Act 16 

of 2006 and the CET Colleges Amendment Act 3 of 2012 and the Continuing Education and Training (CET) College Act 16 of 2006 in line with the Constitution of the 

Republic of South Africa.  

 

Being the umbrella body of all student organisations, the SRC aims at unifying students of the College, in order to contribute to the advancement of the students’ interest 

in the academic, extra-curricular, social, cultural and extra-mural spheres. 

 

7.4.2 SRC ELECTIONS 
 

The SRC consists of 12 elected members at College level. The Committee is elected by a democratic process through a secret ballot and the process is led by an 

Independent Electoral company. Campus SRC Chairpersons stand for the position of president. The chairperson with the highest number of votes becomes President 

and the 2nd highest with votes becomes the deputy president. The 3rd Chairperson with the lowest number of votes will fill the position of Disciplinary and Legal Officer. 

The Campus Secretary with the highest number of votes becomes the Secretary - General, the second highest becomes the Vice-Secretary and the third becomes 

Gender and Disability officer. The rest of the Office Bearers of the SRC Executive Committee must be serving the same portfolios at campus level.  

 

Office Bearers for the SRC Executive Committee are as follows: 
i. President 

ii. Deputy President 

iii. Secretary - General 

iv. Vice-Secretary 

v. Treasurer - General 

vi. Academic Development & Alumni 

vii. Disciplinary and Legal Officer 

viii. Health & Wellness 
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ix. PRO 

x. Sport & Recreation 

xi. Arts & Culture 

xii. Gender & Disability  

The election of the 24 SRC members for 2019 took place on 07 March across the three campuses via a democratic process that was overseen by the appointed Electoral 

Service Provider.  After the 24 members were elected, an SRC Training/Induction was hosted from 08 - 10 March 2019 where the 12 Executive Committee members 

were elected through a secret ballot.  

 

7.4.3 MEMBERS AND ATTENDANCE OF MEETINGS 

SRC Executive Committee 
 

No. Member Portfolio Campus 

1 Mr MN Delmani1 President  Mankwe 

2 Mr CR Phala2 SRC President/Deputy President Brits 

3 Mr MM Bogale Secretary - General Brits 

4 Mr K Pasha Deputy Secretary Rustenburg 

5 Mr MN Mazibuko Treasurer - General Brits 

6 Mr L Galane Academic Development and Alumni Officer Rustenburg 

7 Mr BG Ndlovu Disciplinary and Legal Officer Rustenburg 

8 Ms R Gwamanda Health and Wellness Officer Mankwe 

9 Mr K Moatshe Public Relations Officer Mankwe 

10 Ms N Oageng Sports and Recreational Officer Rustenburg 

11 Mr TV Mashaba Arts and Culture Officer Mankwe 

12 Mr TW Mokua Gender and Disability Officer Mankwe 
1. Mr MN Delmani served as SRC President until February 2019 
2. Mr CR Phala served as SRC President from 1 March 2019 
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SRC Non – Executive members  
 

No. Member Portfolio Campus 

1 Ms K Makhubela Public Relations Officer Brits 

2 Ms B Lebethe Sports and Recreation Officer Brits 

3 Ms KBM Baloyi Health and Wellness Officer Brits 

4  Mr G Mphanya Academic Development and Alumni Officer Brits 

5 Ms C Tabane Arts and Culture Officer Brits 

6 Mr B Selloe Treasurer Mankwe 

7 Ms RC Legae Academic Development and Alumni Officer Mankwe 

8 Mr LS Skhosana Sports and Recreation Officer Mankwe 

9 Mr  Thebe Arts and Culture Officer Rustenburg 

10 Ms S Sambo Treasurer  Rustenburg 

11 Ms N Nyati Public Relations Officer Rustenburg 

12 Ms G Selebogo Health and Wellness Officer Rustenburg 

 
7.4.4 REPRESENTATION ON OTHER BODIES 

The SRC President (Mr MN Delmani) and the SRC Secretary (Mr MM Bogale) served on the College Council.   
The following members were democratically elected to serve on each of the committees as indicated: 
 

Name Portfolio Committee 

Mr MN Delmani 
Mr CR Phala 
Mr MN Mazibuko 
Mr B Selloe 
Ms S Sambo 

President 
President/Deputy President 
Treasurer- General 
Mankwe Campus Treasurer  
Rustenburg Campus Treasurer 

 
 
Financial Aid Committee of the College 
 

Mr BG Ndlovu Disciplinary and Legal Officer Disciplinary committee for students 

Mr MN Delmani 
Mr CR Phala 
Mr L Galane 

President 
President/Deputy President 
Academic Development Officer 

Academic Board 

Ms R Gwamanda Health and Wellness Officer Health and Wellness Committees 

Mr K Moatshe Public Relations Officer Marketing Committee 
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The SRC is established to: 
 
a. function as a channel of communication between the Student Body and the Staff Leadership Team; 
 
b. provide a channel of communication between the students of this College and Students of other Institutions; 
 
c. crystallize the needs and aspirations of students and to make known their problems and point-of-views; 
 
d. seek clarification on general academic issues and Student community issues, conducting the dialogue and consultation within the parameters of regulations 

embedded within the College; 
 
e. promote the spirit of harmony and unity among Students and Staff of each Campus and the College; 
 
f. establish a solid identity amongst the Students and to help ensure that they are treated with the respect and dignity they deserve. 
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7.4.5 SRC INDUCTION/TRAINING  
 

All elected SRC members undergo training and induction in governance and leadership development immediately after their election.  The training not only focuses on 
specific responsibilities and tasks assigned and managed by the SRC, but also bears a very strong focus on relevant legislation, regulations as well as the SRC 
Constitution.  This enables the SRC to fulfil their role with the necessary confidence and accountability that it requires.  

 

The SRC also receives Unit standard based capacity building training focusing on topics such as leadership, meeting skills, communication skills, governance, 
management and project. In 2019 SRC attended Capacity building training from 25 – 29 September 2019 covering below Unit standards: 

 Unit Standard 9533 : Use of Communication Skills to handle and resolve conflicts in the workplace 

 Unit Standard 242824: Apply leadership concepts in a work context. 
 

Guidance and mentorship are provided by Student Support Officers at the different campuses under the supervision of the Student Support Manager and Deputy 
Principal Academic Programmes and Student Support Services staff at Central Office. 

 

7.4.6  SRC BUDGET 
 

The SRC is responsible for managing their own budget which is approved by Council. The execution of all SRC activities is subject to the availability of funds as 
allocated in the budget.  The SRC budget was also used to cover administrative costs (stationery, phone calls, travelling costs).  The treasurer handled all financial 
queries, processes and kept relevant records of income and expenditure. 

 

7.4.7 ACTIVITY PLAN FOR SRC 

SRC members at the different campuses are responsible for drawing up and implementing annual campus activity plans.  Activities that are hosted by the different 
campus SRCs differ from campus to campus.  However, a number of activities also involve the SRC as College Representative Body.  Below is the annual College 
activity plan that was rolled out by the SRC during 2019. 
  



47 
 

7.4.8. SRC ACTIVITY PLAN (COLLEGE) 

ACTIVITY DATE 

Elections of the SRC 07 March 2019 

Election of Executive Committee 09 March 2019 

SRC Induction/Training in Governance and Leadership Development & Team 
building session 

08 – 10 March 2019 

SRC Executive meeting 03 May 2019 

Inauguration of the SRC ( takes place at the Annual College Graduation 
Ceremony) 

16 May 2019 

College Academic day 30 May 2019 

Roadshow to all sites Did not take place 

SRC Mid-year review session 19 – 21 July 2019 

College Sports day (Game of Thrones Tournament) 14 September 2019 

SRC Conference and Lekgotla Did not take place 
 

7.4.9 CONCLUSION 

 

The Student Representative Council supports the College in its vision, as embodied in strategic documents, and in its journey of improved service delivery to the 
students of the College. 

 

7.4.10 APPRECIATION 
 

The SRC expresses its sincere appreciation to the Council, Accounting Officer, Management, Student Support Officials, Lecturers and Support Staff and all students 
of the College for their support to the SRC during the year under review. 
 

MODIBA R (Ms) 
STUDENT SUPPORT SERVICES MANAGER 
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PART C: PERFORMANCE INFORMATION 
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8 REPORT BY PRINCIPAL ON MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION  

 

The ORBIT College Strategic Plan took into account the following priority areas to ensure more effective teaching and learning and improvement of student 

achievement and success.  The strategic priority focus areas were: 
 
1. Growth and expansion of access and articulation opportunities for the youth; 

2. Improvement of academic quality and success, i.e. improving certification, throughput and retention rates; 

3. Establishing partnerships and linkages with industry, sector education and training authorities (SETAs) and/or other professional bodies and/or institutions of 

Higher Education for articulation into the labour market and/or further and higher learning opportunities; 

4. Support system efficiency and functionality;  

5. Sound institutional governance, management and leadership;  

6. Monitoring and evaluation and reporting of college performance; and  

7. Growth and expansion of artisan development opportunities. 

 
This report on management and administration serves to provide an overview of the extent in which College Management managed to address the strategic priority 
focus areas listed above.  This is done by highlighting compliance with as well as improvement of all strategic management and administrative processes, procedures, 
systems and activities during 2019. 
 
Significant progress was made in respect of reviewing and implementing changes to business operations, not only to ensure compliance with the requirements of 
government but also to support and enhance the delivery of our services.  Improvements to connectivity, infrastructure, risk management and internal control, curriculum 
support, occupational health and safety, staff development and student support services were all planned and introduced with a considered approach to achieve 
maximum impact.   
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9. COLLEGE PERFORMANCE AND ORGANISATIONAL ENVIRONMENT 
 

ORBIT TVET College mainly serves the Madibeng, Moses Kotane and Rustenburg communities. By being actively involved in communities, and by making sure that 
the College is included in relevant structures and plans, ORBIT College becomes a significant role player in growing the economy of the North West Province. 

 
As part of our strategy to reach out to these communities the College engages with local municipalities and enter into MoUs with them.  In addition, partnerships are 
forged with local business and industry, business forums and engagement with tribal authorities, such as the Royal Bafokeng and Bakgatla Ba Kgafela tribal authorities 
takes place on a continuous basis. 

 
Partnerships such as the above-mentioned enable ORBIT College to respond meaningfully to the requirements of the economy, assist in addressing rural development 
challenges and contribute to the development of an informed and educated citizenry.  Empowerment of out-of-school youth and alleviating poverty by skilling the 
youth and advancing their employability levels, are strategic goals that ORBIT TVET College strive to achieve on an annual basis.  Hence the Programme Qualification 
Mix that is offed comprises: 

 

 National Certificate Vocational NC(V)  programmes 

 Report 191 (NATED) programmes (Engineering Studies, Business Studies and General Studies) 

 Learnerships and skills programmes – The College has programme approval from various SETAs which implies compliance to Industry standards and can therefore 

offer occupational/skills programmes 

 
Artisan Development Programmes 

 
ORBIT College is also the beneficiary of the Centre of Specialisation (CoS) Project funded by DHET and NSF to train sixty prospective artisans in Electrical and Diesel 
Mechanic Trades.  The Centres are located at Brits and Mankwe Campuses respectively.  Although the Centres were launched in February 2018, the projects officially 
commenced in 2019. 
 
The College also signed MoUs/SLAs with  
 

 the AECI group of companies for training of artisans in Welding Works 

 ISFAP to train prospective artisans in Electrical Work and Boilermaking 

 LGSETA for learner internship 

 INSETA for learners internship 
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In addition to offering training that is responsive to the needs of Business and Industry, the College also has a responsibil ity to support students by means of a 
comprehensive exit strategy.  Such a strategy includes vastly expanded access to workplace-based experiential learning and strong links between colleges, employers 
and employers’ organisations  

 
Students face many obstacles when entering the job market. In some fields supply outstrips demand, which has the effect of graduates ending up in jobs fields they 
did not train for. In other cases, graduates lack the minimum of three to four years of work experience in their field of study, which is often a requirement for jobs 
advertised. Without support from their colleges, students generally struggle to break into the job market and frequently end up in employment that is unrelated to their 
training.  This is directly reflected in the low number of National N Diplomas that are issued annually.  
 
2019 HIGHLIGHTS 

ORBIT COLLEGE & ABSA BANK PARTNERSHIP GOES FROM STRENGTH TO STRENGTH 

ORBIT TVET College joined hands with one of its long standing partners, ABSA, during a meeting 

between the management of the College and that of the Banking Institution North West branch which 
took place on 24 April 2019. 
The purpose of the meeting was to strengthen the ongoing relationship between the organisations, and 
to explore other avenues that will be mutually beneficial for both parties.  
Some of the areas of collaboration that were discussed and provisionally identified were:  

 Work-based Exposure for Lecturers 

 Work-Based Experience Students 

 Entrepreneurship Development 

 Guest Lecturers 

 Financial Literacy Training  

 
In attendance from the College was the Principal, Mr D Mokoena, former SAICA-appointed Deputy Principal, Mr M Sebaetse and Rustenburg Campus Manager, Ms B 
Kgaboesele. ABSA was represented by members of its NW provincial leadership, Mr Brian Bogopa (Relationship Executive Public Sector), Mr Vincent Motsunyane 
(Head Regional coverage: Relationship Banking NW), Mr David Monene (Area Manager Coverage: Relationship Banking NW) and Mr Vicky Ramela (Managing Director 
Central) 
 

PARTNERSHIPS PRODUCE ARTISANS 

The partnership between ORBIT TVET College and Electro Diesel produced some exciting and quality results that will forever be cherished by the College, the students 

and the greater College community. 

The Management of ORBIT College and ABSA (Rustenburg 

Branch), during a meeting to discuss areas of collaboration 
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In 2016, ORBIT TVET College received funding for the training of fourty one (41) students in 
artisanship, specifically in the Welder and Electrician fields. Thirteen of the students specialising 
in Welding were from Rustenburg Campus, while the remaining twenty eight students trained to 
become electricians were from Brits and Mankwe Campuses.   
These students had to undergo rigorous practical training in the workshops at their respective 
campuses, and were ultimately placed at various employers for Work-Based-Exposure (WBE).  
 
One of the mentors from DCS Transformers, Mr CJ Moolman said he had never had such a 
committed group of students “These students came to work early, and when they got here, they 
would ask for more work and even go as far as sacrificing their weekends (Saturdays and 
Sundays) to refine and sharpen the skills to fullfill their career aspirations.”  
 

Electro Diesel is also one of the companies and College partners that took in a number of trainee 
electricians from the College at their Rustenburg plant for a period of 18 months. All nine students placed at the company have since qualified as artisans after having 
passed their trade test.   
 
The CEO of Electro Diesel, Mr Bino Etsebeth, said that the company was proud to have partnered with the College to make a meaningful contribution towards the 
educational upliftment of the students. “We wish such achievements could be on the front pages of local and national newspapers and other media platforms, to 
demonstrate again the effectiveness of a partnership that matters. It is also worth mentioning that we have employed three of these learners on a full time bases,” Mr 
Etsebeth said. 
 
An additional five of the trainees secured contract employment with their former mentor, who has since relocated to Vaal Reefs.  

 

  

Pictured from left to right: Ms Noxolo Mthimunye, Ms Patricia Kgaswane 
amd Ms Constance Mmokele were placed at NECSA to acquire training 

to become artisan welders 
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9.1 Responsive curriculum delivery  
 

The North West Province is one of the smaller provinces of South Africa and is totally landlocked and still maintains strong social and economic links with the Gauteng 

Province.  The Province has a total population of roughly 3.6 million inhabitants of which only 1.4 million are economically active.   

 

The following five main economic sectors in the North West Province are experiencing significant and almost crippling demand for appropriately qualified human 

resources: 

 Agriculture 

 Mining 

 Manufacturing 

 Tourism  

 Infrastructure and construction. 

In order to remain relevant and responsive to the needs of our community, ORBIT TVET College continued to offer a diverse range of vocational and occupational 

programmes in 2019.  The Programmes Qualifications Mix (PQM) of the College included, amongst others, the following: 

 Business Studies programmes such as Office Administration, Finance and Economics, HR Management, Management Assistant, Business Management and 

Financial Management 

 Engineering related programmes such as Electrical and Mechanical Engineering, Engineering and Related Design (Fitting and Turning/Machining and Boiler-

Making/Automotive), Civil Construction and ICT 

 Art and Design Programmes in Jewellery Design and Manufacture 

 Popular Music Performance 

 Educare 

 Accredited occupational programmes that empower individuals for self-employment and enhance employability 

 All programmes offered at the respective campuses are registered on the National Qualifications Framework and are fully accredited and certified by the 

Department of Higher Education and Training, UMALUSI and the QCTO in the case of learnerships and skills programmes or an International Accreditation Body. 
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 All National Certificate (Vocational) Programmes are quality assured by UMALUSI (the ETQA for Education) 

 Report 191 (N1-N3) programmes are quality assured by UMALUSI and Report 191 (N4-N6) programmes are quality assured by QCTO 

Staff is one of our most valuable assets.   In order to meet set targets staff were assisted to compile personal development plans to determine training needs and 
support needed.  In addition to this, various forms of training was organised to assist staff to improve their qualifications and skills in order to comply with the requirements 
of the TVET College landscape. 
 

The experience, competencies and skills of staff are fully utilised and skills obtained by the WIL were fully employed to the benefit of the College. 
 

2019 HIGHLIGHTS 

WOMEN IN ENGINEERING CELEBRATED 

ORBIT TVET College organised its first ‘Women in Engineering’ event on 22 September 2019 to celebrate women thriving in what was traditionally predominantly 

male-driven fields and to encourage young girls to consider pursuing professions in 

engineering and science   

Two best performing Grade 11 female learners from eight secondary schools were 

invited to the event, where they had an opportunity to interact with women in the field of 

engineering and the College female students who were on their way to becoming 

qualified artisans. 

Ms Jeanette Jautse, a qualified artisan at Impala Platinum Limited, took guests through 

her journey of becoming an artisan. She motivated the learners with her narrative, which 

also highlighted some of the difficulties she encountered along the way towards reaching 

her goals. Ms Jautse stated that increasing the number of technologically-trained women 

was essential for development; and that even though work still needed to be done to get 

more women in the field, the efforts were yielding fruit albeit slowly.  

Sixteen best performing Grade 11 female learners from eight secondary schools 
were invited to the ‘Women in Engineering’ event hosted by ORBIT College. They 

are pictured here with the management of the College. 
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To conclude the formal proceedings, Nedbank sponsored scientific calculators to the sixteen learners as tokens of encouragement. Mr Joseph Tlharipe from Nedbank, 

with the assistance of the College Principal, Mr Dika Mokoena, Deputy Principal Corporate Services, Mr Solly Matjiane and Deputy Principal Academic Programmes & 

Student Support Services, Mr Tumisang Mosito, handed out the gifts to the learners. 

Alongside their educators and other guests, the learners were then taken on a tour of the Rustenburg Campus Jewellery Workshop, The Platinum Incubator and the 

Electrical Workshop. During these sessions, the ‘future engineers’ got opportunities to ‘try a skill’ and work with the actua l tools in each workshop. Mankwe Campus 

Centre of Specialisation (CoS) Facilitator, Mr Jabulani Mpala and his female students brought along an automotive engine which was set up in front of the Fitting and 

Turning Workshop. The learners got a taste of what being a car mechanic entails, as they dissembled and assembled the engine. 

 

After “literally” getting their hands dirty, they were treated to a pamper session by Beauty and Cosmetology students, who spoiled them with well-deserved hand 

massages. This was followed by a scrumptious finger lunch, where they got to ask questions and interact with qualified female artisans from various mines and college 

artisans in training from Electro Diesel. 

 

MAKING A DIFFERENCE IN THE SYFERBULT COMMUNITY 

With the primary view of uplifting communities, the Directorate of Public Safety within the 

Rustenburg Local Municipality partnered with various public and private organisations, including 

ORBIT College, to initiate Mandela Day and Women’s Month activities for the community of 

Syferbult in Boons. The event, which took place on 23 August 2019 at the Syferbult Community 

Sports Ground endeavoured to make a positive difference in the community after it had been 

identified as one of the most destitute and neglected in the Rustenburg Municipality.  

 

In the weeks leading up to the main event, Senior Superintendent and Chairperson of the 

organising committee, Ms DL Mangope, visited the Central Office to give staff a detailed 

ORBIT TVET College representatives provided community members 
with information on programmes, training and bursary opportunities 

offered by the College 
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background of the community and how the College could assist.  

 

Several families, including a nursery school were identified by the steering committee for assistance with donations.  The staff and students of the College opened 

their big hearts and donated clothes, blankets, perishable goods, and other essentials towards this worthy cause.  

At the event, the Mayor of the Bojanala Local Municipality, Cllr M Khunou committed to building a crèche, and with the assistance of other partners, to eradicate the 

containers used as classrooms. Director: Public Safety, Mr K Boikanyo, and North West Commissioner of SAPS, Ms B Motswenyane, also pledged to assist the 

youth with obtaining driver’s licences and to assist with job applications in the Public Safety and 

South African Police Services (SAPS). 

The Department of Home Affairs and South African Social Security Agency (SASSA) committed 

to assisting community members who did not have birth certificates and identity documents, to 

be able to qualify for social grants.  

 

ORBIT College also played a crucial role on the day and set up an information stall to give the 

youth relevant information on programmes, training and bursary opportunities offered by the 

College, in order for them to pursue their studies.  

 

The College was represented Mr T Mosito (Deputy Principal: Student Support Services & 

Academic Programmes), Ms O Matlapeng (Call Centre Administrator), Ms T Rapoo (E-Media & 

Communications Administrator), Ms A Ramesega (Career Guidance Intern- Rustenburg 

Campus), Ms K Tabane (Career Guidance Intern- Rustenburg Campus), Ms T Mogaki (Financial Aid Officer- Rustenburg Campus) and Ms R Galeboe (Financial Aid 

Intern- Rustenburg Campus).  

 

Rustenburg Local Municipality Mayor, Councillor Mpho Khunou 
handing over school shoes and other clothing items to a family in 

Syfersbult, Boons during a Women’s Month initiative in the 
community. 
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MORE THAN 700 GRADUATES CELEBRATED AT ECD GRADUATION 

CEREMONY 

Seven hundred and twenty four (724) Early Childhood Development (ECD) graduates were 

acknowledged and celebrated at a graduation ceremony held at Brits Campus on 14 and 15 

August 2019.  The College offered the ECD NQF Level 4 and 5 qualifications to recruited 

students from a number of registered Early Learning Centres across the North West 

Province.   

 

Principal of ORBIT College, Mr Dika Mokoena, welcomed all distinguished guests on day one of the event while Ms AK Manaiwa, Deputy Chief Education Specialist 

from the Department of Basic Education (DBE) graced the occasion with her presence as keynote speaker for both days.  During her address, Ms Manaiwa 

highlighted the importance of the ECD qualification as a building block towards an improved educational system from the foundational phase that focuses on 

preparing toddlers adequately for primary school education. 

 

Offering the ECD qualification across the province to more than 700 learners was a massive project in itself.  The project was funded by the Department of Basic 

Education.  The graduates not only benefitted personally from the qualifications that they obtained, but the project, which was funded by the Department of Basic 

Education, also served its purpose of building educational capacity within the  North West Province. 

 

GRADUATES CONFERRED AT THE ANNUAL DIPLOMA & CERTIFICATION CEREMONY  

ORBIT TVET College hosted its 16th Annual Diploma & Certification Ceremony on Thursday, 16 May 2019 at Hedgehog’s Nest in Rustenburg, where just over 400 

graduates were conferred with National Certificates and National N Diplomas. Following the Academic Procession, the Principal of the College, Mr Dika Mokoena 

welcomed all distinguished guests and congratulated the candidates on reaching this important milestone in their lives. 

 

The ECD graduates during a graduation ceremony in the Brits Campus 
Hall on 14 & 14 August 2019 
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Eleven Top Achievers were acknowledged and awarded for their academic performance. They received certificates of excellence, trophies and cash prizes, courtesy 

of ABSA, the proud sponsor of the Top Achiever Awards.  

 

The coveted Dux Awards, were awarded to the two top performing candidates for National Certificate Vocational Level 4 and National N Diploma Programmes 

respectively. These awards served to acknowledge consistent hard work and academic performance excellence in respective programmes for the duration of the 

students’ period of study.  Ms Keneilwe Phiri from Mankwe Campus, was awarded the 2019 Dux Award for National Certificate Vocational for her impressive and 

excellent academic performance in Electrical Infrastructure and Construction. Ms Phiri obtained an average of 84.71% and achieved an unbelievable 15 distinctions 

during her period of study.  The 2019 Dux student for National N Diploma was bestowed on yet another Mankwe Campus student, Ms Botlhojane Martha Kwenamore, 

for her splendid academic performance in Educare. She attained an average of 76.67%, coupled with 6 distinctions for the duration of her studies.  

Motivational speaker for the occasion & Mankwe Campus Alumnus, Mr Kagiso Mmitsi added a magical touch to the event and wowed the audience with a memorable 

and powerful message of encouragement.  
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Amongst the distinguished guests in attendance were the Queen Mother of the Royal Bafokeng Nation, Mmemogolo Semane Molotlegi, College Council members, 

representatives from other institutions of Higher Education and Training and various stakeholders from business and industry, including those who had partnered with 

the College to assist with work placement for students 

 
  

The elated graduates at the 16th Annual Diploma & 
Awards Ceremony, which took place on 16 May 2019 at 

Hedgehog’s Nest, Rustenburg 

 

2019 Dux Awards recipients and Top Achievers- Ms Keneilwe Phiri (left) and Ms Botlhojane Martha Kwenamore (right). 
They are congratulated by the interim College Council Chairperson, Dr K Molantoa (left), College Principal, Mr D 
Mokoena (middle) and Deputy Principal: Academic Programmes & Student Support Services, Mr T Mosito (right) 
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9.2 Provision of Student Support Services 

 

Our College mandate is clear. On the demand side, the College must deliver on the skills needed to drive our country’s economic growth and social development at an 

increasing rate, because available, quality skills will enhance both investment and service delivery. On the supply side, the system must serve a growing number of 

both young people and adults; it must provide different entry points into, and pathways through the learning system; it must provide quality learning wherever learning 

takes place – be it at a college or in the workplace; and, importantly, it must provide easy pathways across the different learning sites. To support the above goal, we 

established fully functional Student Support Centres at each campus with Academic Support and Social Support Officials, Academic Support Labs, study areas, internet 

cafés, job portals, etc.  Mankwe Campus is the only campus with student residences and substantive amounts are annually allocated for the maintenance, refurbishment, 

etc. of these residences so that students live in conducive conditions. 

 

By investing in our students, we invest in the future of our country.  To this end, the necessary academic support was provided to students with a specific focus on exit 

level soft skills that would enable them to successfully enter the world of work or create self-employment opportunities.  The fully functional Student Support Centres 

at all campuses and sound partnerships with Business and Industry such as the mining industry, automotive industry, business sectors and the construction industry 

assisted in developing and improving student pass and certification rates. 

 

The Student Support Services provided to students in 2019 also focused on holistically addressing students’ different socio-economic backgrounds.  The approval and 

implementation of a holistic Student Support Plan for the College assisted management to respond to the geographical challenges of each delivery site, and to deal 

with the different economic and sociological profiles of students.  

 

An aggressive College marketing strategy was also implemented with the aim of: 

 Increasing access. 

 Informing the community of the services rendered by the college.  

 Establishing links with local, provincial, national and international entities to the benefit of our learners. 
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2019 HIGHLIGHT 

2019 COLLEGE ACADEMIC DAY 

The 2019 College Academic Day, hosted at Brits Campus on 30 May 2019 was an opportunity for students from the three campuses to showcase their knowledge and 

wits in the following categories: 

 Mathematics & Mathematical Literacy  

 Debate 

 South African Politics Quiz  

 Public Speaking and  

 Innovation and Design (Engineering programmes)  

 

Teams representing Brits, Mankwe and Rustenburg Campuses came well prepared and 

ready to battle it out for the coveted title of the ‘2019 College Academic Champions’. The 

Innovation and Design category, was a new addition to the categories, and saw engineering 

students showcasing their designs in the various engineering programmes offered at the 

College. 

 

The programme, which was directed by the 2018 SRC President, Mr D Ndebele, ran smoothly, with all the participants displaying the utmost discipline and commitment. 

The Quiz Master, Ms Oratile Matlapeng, on the other hand, kept the participants of the quiz on their toes as she tested them on their knowledge of South African politics. 

The results were as follows: 

CATEGORY TEAM/STUDENT NAME AWARD CAMPUS 

1. South African Politics Quiz Team Brits  Position 1 Brits 

2. Mathematics Level 2 Phiri TO Position 1 (83%) Rustenburg 

The winning design under the ‘Innovation and Design’ category was the 
Aeroplane Prototype by Mankwe Campus ERD student, Mr KS Lefutso. 
Pictured here is EIC HoD, Mr M Madi (4th from left) and Senior Lecturer: 

Electrical Engineering NC(V), Mr P Shibe (5th from left) with the participants of 
the Innovation and Design category 
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All participants of the College Academic Day received memory sticks for their efforts and commitment, while the winners in the different categories were awarded tablets 

  

3. Mathematics Level 3 Busakwe L Position 1 (84%) Rustenburg 

4. Mathematics Level 4 Mashabela K Position 1 (82%) Brits 

5. Mathematical Lit Level 2 Klassan N Position 1 (76%) Brits 

6. Mathematical Lit Level 3 Selabe V Position 1 (76%) Brits 

7. Mathematical Lit Level 4 Modise T Position 1 (52%) Mankwe 

8. Public Speaking Rustenburg Position 1 Rustenburg 

9. Debate  N/A N/A Brits 

10.  Innovation Design- ERD Lefutso KS Aeroplane Prototype  Mankwe 

11. Innovation Design- EIC Ndabaezithi DT Manual and Automatic Lighting Rustenburg 

12.   Innovation and Design- EIC Ntshangase L Traffic lights Brits 

Team Brits were the winners of the Quiz Competition. Picture 
here (from left to right)- Ms O Matlapeng (Quiz Master), Ms J 
Walaza (Team Brits), Ms S Sebogodi (Brits Campus Student 
Support Officer Academic), Mr T Shiburu (Team Brits), Ms D 

Khoarane (Team Brits) and Mr D Ndebele (Programme Director & 
2018 SRC President) 

 

One of the Public Speaking winners from Rustenburg Campus, Mr 
O Madisa being awarded his prize (tablet) by Student Support 

Manager, Ms R Modiba. Also pictured here is, 2019 SRC member, 
Mr C Phala and Brits Campus Manager, Ms T Tlhopile 

 



63 
 

9.3 Stakeholder Framework 

ORBIT TVET College understands its stakeholder base and seeks to work with everyone who has interest in creating a vibrant College system. The following 
stakeholders were key to the delivery of the College’s Vision and Mission in terms of partnerships in 2019. 
 

PARTNERSHIPS 

ORBIT TVET College has signed Memorandums of Understanding (MoUs) with the following Business, Industry, Government, SETAs and Community partners: 

PARTNER PURPOSE OF PARTNERSHIP 

Business and Industry  
Tharisa Mining 
Ford SA  
Four Tops Engineering  
Seda Platinum Incubator  
Magalies Water 
Impala Platinum Mines  
Laundrie Engineering and Mining  
Sun City  
Maseve Mining Investment  
Samsung  
ABSA Bank  
AECI  
Glencore Mining  
Electro Diesel  
Platinum Group Metal  
UD/NW Trucking 
Bell Engineering Equipment 

 
Artisan Development Training/Centre of Specialisation 
Placement and Training of Students / Workshop Support 
Placement and Training of Students  
Incubator Business Support  
Internships  
Training of lecturers / Placement of Students  
Placement and Training of Students  
Placement of Students  
Training of Students  
Placement and Training of Students  
Placement and Training of Students  
Artisan Development Training / Funding for Training  
Artisan Development Training  
Artisan Development Training  
Artisan Development Training 
Centre of specialisation 
Centre of Specialisation  

Universities/Universities of Technology/FET Colleges 
University of South Africa (UNISA) 
Tshwane University of Technology  

 
Music Examinations / Increased Access of TVET College Students to HE  
Skills Development  

Government Departments 
Department of Rural Development  
Department of Economic Development  
Department of Small Business Development  
Department of Education NW  
NSF 
Department of Health 
 

 
Trainining – Nail Technology/Automotive Repairs 
SMME Development / Centre for Entrepreneurship  
Centre for Entrepreneurship and Rapid Incubator  
ECD Training  
Training: Learnerships and Rural Development Programmes 
Artisan Development Training  



64 
 

Local Communities, NGOs and municipalities 
Rustenburg Local Municipality  
Bojanala Platinum District Municipality  
Kgetleng Local Municipality  
Office of the Sherriff of the Magistrate Court 
Job Shimankana Hospital 
Brits Hospital 

 
Use of Facilities and Student Placement/Training of employees/Artisan Development  
Placement of Students  
Placement of Students  
Placement of Students 
Placement of Students 
Placement of Students 

Sector Education and Training Authorities (SETAs) 
Finance and Accounting SETA (FASSET)  
Services SETA  
Bank SETA  
ETDP SETA  
MQA  
merSETA  
SAGDA  
INSETA 
CETA 
LG SETA 

 
Brand Ambassadorship 
Internship Programme 
Internship Programme  
Internship Programme  
Jewellery Design and Manufacture  
Learnerships  
Internship Programme 
Graduate Development 
Internship/Graduate Development 
Training/Graduate Development 

2019 HIGHLIGHTS 

MAKING CONNECTIONS TO FORGE SUSTAINABLE PARTNERSHIPS 

ORBIT TVET College hosted yet another a successful Business Networking Session with decision makers from various organisations on 30 August 2019 at Casa 

Bella Guest House in Rustenburg. The event sought to foster partnerships that would result in greater business growth for the College and its current and potential 

partners.  

Through his presentation, Principal, Mr Dika Mokoena gave a clear picture of what the mandate of the College is in terms of looking to enhance artisan development 

opportunities, and work-based exposure (WBE) for students. The event was attended by a pleasing number of new potential partners from Business and Industry; 

whom Mr Mokoena urged to join hands with the College in ensuring that work placement opportunities for students become a reality. 

The Platinum Incubator (TPI) CEO, Ms Sibongile Shongwe, shared with guests the fruits that the partnership with the College has borne over the years. After completing 

their N6 qualification, some of the College Jewellery students received further training from TPI, and were well on their way to becoming qualified goldsmiths, while a 
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few others were certified goldsmiths. . TPI had so far prepared and developed more than 70 graduates (NQF Level 5-7), from all over South Africa, as well as 140 NQF 

Level 3 & 4 candidates from ORBIT TVET College Jewellery Manufacture & Design Programme. 

Incubatees from TPI and the Centre of Entrepreneurship made sales from their merchandise, which was on display at stalls they had set up at the venue.  

Another longstanding partner of the College, Tharisa Mineral, was represented by Training Manager, Mr Gibb Motlou, who delivered a thought-provoking message of 

support. Mr Motlou emphasized that TVET Colleges were here to stay, and that support by employers in the form of work-based training and/or placements of students 

was necessary to improve future productivity in the job market. Themed ‘Forging sustainable partnerships’, the event proved to be mandatory in order for all parties 

involved to positively leverage on each other to create solid employment prospects for students. This would, in turn, enable students to participate and drive the 

economy   forw ard. 

 

The College Business Brunch Networking session was a notable success and was 
attended by current and prospective partners of the College from local Business and 

Industry. 

 

Exhibitors from The Platinum Incubator (TPI) and Centre for Entrepreneurship had 
their unique goods on display at the Business Brunch and managed to make a 

number of impressive sales during the event 
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9.4 Human Resource Management 
 

The approved staff establishment for ORBIT COLLEGE allowed for total number 480 posts to be filled in 2019.  
By December 2019 there were still 51 posts vacant across the four sites: 
 

VACANT POSTS AS AT DECEMBER 2019 

Category BRITS MANKWE RUSTENBURG CENTRAL OFFICE 
ORBIT  

VACANT POSTS 
2019 

Lecturing Staff 6 3 17  34 

Office based      

Support Staff  11 6 8 17 

TOTAL  14 23 8 51 

 
Critical posts that were still vacant at December 2019 included a number of Management positions at Central Office: 
 

CRITICAL POST SITE 

Vocational Programmes Manager Central Office 

Artisan Development Manager 

Management Accounts Manager  

Extra – Curricular Co ordinator 

Facility Manager Mankwe Campus 

 
The non-appointment of managers in the above-mentioned positions placed a lot of strain on Senior Management and the Units involved as monitoring and proper 
implementation of activities within the affected units had to be delegated – either upwards or downwards, adding to existing workloads. 
 
Critical posts in which people were acting at December 2019: 

Critical Post with acting 
person 

Acting Site 

Deputy Principal Finance Mr M Sebaetse was appointed on 01 November 2018 and acted as Deputy Principal Finance until 
May 2019.  Mr Sebaetse was deployed by SAICA. 

Central Office 

Mankwe Campus Manager Ms W Molapi was appointed as acting Campus Manager Mankwe Campus on 1 June 2019 due to 
Mr ZM Nkomo being co-opted to act as Regional Director at the Regional DHET office 
 

Mankwe Campus 
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NUMBER OF LECTURING AND SUPPORT STAFF FOR 2019 

Category BRITS MANKWE RUSTENBURG CENTRAL OFFICE ORBIT STAFF 2018 

Management Staff    4 4 

Lecturing Staff 70 83 86  239 

Office based 3 2 3 1 9 

Support Staff 33 52 33 59 177 

TOTAL 106 137 122 64 429 

*Staff appointed at Centre for Entrepreneurship were not included on staff establishment reported to the Council, but they were included on the report to DHET 
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High-level organisational organogram 

 

  

College Principal

DF MOKOENA

Deputy Principal: Academic Programmes 
and Student Support Services

TJ MOSITO

Business Development and Innovation 
Manager

PM MATLOU

Student Support Services Manager

R MODIBA (MS)

Vocational Programmes Manager

VACANT

Artisan Development Manager

(VACANT)

Deputy Principal Finances

MR M SEBAETSE(ACTING UNTIL MAY 
2019)

MR T MOKHETHI (APPOINTED JUNE 
2019)

Finance Manager

M VISSER (MS)

Management Accounts Manager

(VACANT)

Supply Chain Manager

MO SHOKO (MS)

Assistant Director Demand and Logistics 
Management

VACANT

Deputy Principal:  Corporate Services

MS MATJIANE

Data and Information Manager

JCH VILJOEN (DR)

HR Manager

GM MAFOJANE

IT Manager

PS MAKHOYE

Corporate Communications Manager

M VILJOEN (MS)

Internal Auditor and Assurance Manager

MM TSABANGWE

Campus Managers

W MOLAPI (MANKWE)(ACTING)

Z NKOMO (MANKWE)

MS B KGABOESELE (RUSTENBURG)

TM TLHOPILE (MS) (BRITS)
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9.5  Finances and funding 

Since its establishment, the College has been operating in a constrained environment due to funding constraints.  

 

Both the Acting Deputy Principal Finance and the appointed Deputy Principal Finance together with the Finance Manager managed the finances of the College soundly 

by adhering to the general accounting principles, consolidating all budgets of campuses/units and by recording and keeping proper records of income and expenditure. 

Alternative funding secured through projects by the Business Development and Innovation Unit and value-added relations with potential investors, paying clients, 

donors, sponsors or partners in the private and public sectors were also managed well. 

 

9.6 Conducting examinations and assessment 

The Deputy Principal Academics, Campus Managers and Campus Academic Programme Co-ordinators were responsible for managing and administering campus 

examinations and assessments in compliance with the applicable legislation and regulations.  By making sure that proper systems, strategies and structures were in 

place, the Academic Unit promoted the education and training of students effectively and efficiently and in accordance with applicable policies. 

 

9.7 Governance, management and leadership 

Proper governance, management and leadership at College and campus level are preconditions for optimal institutional functionality. The development of common 

standards of governance, management and leadership provided the College with a common framework of monitoring and evaluating the level of governance in the 

college. 

 

The College Council of ORBIT College is responsible for the overall governance of the Institution with the focus on the optimal utilisation of College resources through 

an effective and appropriate organisational structure, policies and systems.  Full compliance to Governance Policies was effected by Council and Council Sub-committee 

meetings that took place regularly and as per required schedule. 

 

 The Academic Board was fully functional and met governance policy requirements to oversee the development and implementation of the Teaching and Learning Plan 

by meeting quarterly as per policy requirements. 
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The Management Board met regularly with the aim to establish and maintain an organisational culture and climate that resulted in effective teaching and learning as 

evident in the academic performance of students. 

 

9.8 Risk Management 

Risk identification and evaluation sessions were conducted with all ORBIT College Management in 2019. The process involved the confirmation of objectives, 

identification of events, the setting of the risk scoring matrix and identification and evaluation of new risks, the identification and evaluation of existing controls and 

identification of future actions and timeframes to mitigate the identified risks.  The process was informed by the DHET Risk Management Policy.   

 

The College has in place an approved Risk Management Policy and Risk Management Strategy. In the risk management policy, the college stance of an enterprise-

wide risk management approach is captured. The risk management process, stakeholders and their related roles and responsibilities appear on the risk management 

strategy. Risk management implementation is embedded in the risk management strategy. Progress in the implementation of the strategy is reported at two levels, 

being management and the Risk Management Committee.  

 

The College conducts strategic risk assessments on an annual basis and has adopted a process for the identification and management of emerging risks in the 

approved Risk Management Strategy.  

 

The College has a Risk Management Committee (RMC) in place comprising management board members. The independent chairperson of RMC is vacant. The RMC 

was functional and achieved the following in the financial year ended 31 December 2019:  

 Reviewed and recommended for approval by the Accounting Officer the Strategic risk register for the financial year ended 31 December 2019. 

 Monitored progress of the implementation of strategic risk treatment plans; 

 Monitored progress of the implementation of Risk Management Implementation plans; 

 Reported quarterly to the Accounting Officer on the state of risk management and provided a recommendation for improvements.  
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 The Audit and Risk Committee also provides an independent and objective view of the college risk management effectiveness as part of Risk Management 

Oversight quarterly.  

 The audit and risk committee recommended the approval of the strategic risk register to the council. 

 Though the college has registered progress in the mitigation of risks as captured in both the strategic risk registers, there are deficiencies. Consequently, 

measures have been designed and will be put into place in the 2020 financial year to strengthen both the monitoring and reporting on risk treatment plans. 

 

Senior Management prioritised 11 risks for quarterly reporting to the Audit & Risk Committee.  These risks included:  

 Inventory management 

 Management of staff attendance 

 Absence of ICT governance 

 Coordination in procurement 

 Campus storage space 

 Management of projects 

 Management of assets  

 College staff appointments  

 Emergency deviations 

 Misuse of college assets 

 Employee induction 

 

The internal audit and assurance unit monitored the implementation of existing controls, future actions and reported quarterly to update the college risk register. 

 

9.9 Occupational Health and Safety 

Health and Safety in the workplace is regulated by the Occupational Health and Safety (OHS) Act, No. 85 of 1993. In terms of the Act, the Accounting Officer (Principal) 
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is charged with the responsibility of ensuring that the workplace that is safe and without risk to the health of employees.  

 

The employer has a duty in terms of this Act to report all Injury on Duty cases to the compensation commissioner. IOD cases for the year 2019 were reported to the 

compensation commissioner and claim numbers were given to the affected employees for claim tracking purposes. 

Periodic servicing of fire equipment, generators, first aid kits and deep cleaning of cafeterias etc. was conducted at the respective college sites. 

The college continued to implement the recommendations from the 2018 legal compliance audit. The college remains below the 75% level of compliance with Health 

and Safety. 

9.10 Quality Management System 

The College is certified against the ISO 9001:2015 by the South African Bureau of Standards (SABS). The new certificate was issued to the College in April 2018.  

The college uses the SABS logo on some of its material according to its agreement. The logo is displayed on the college website, college memos and letterhead to 

name a few.The college internally implements the management system and also conducts audits on its system. The Quality Management System policy is displayed 

on the College website and is also displayed across all college sites as awareness to both staff and customers/contractors. 

 

The College was audited for the first surveillance audit cycle against the requirements of ISO 9001:2015 from 15 – 17 April 2019.  

A report, which details the findings of the audit together with the conclusion was issued. Nine (9) non-conformance findings were issued to the College and were 

subsequently addressed and closed. 

The following sites were audited:  

Brits Campus 

Rustenburg Campus 

Central Office  

 

The audit conclusion from the SABS report: 

“Comparison of the results of this audit with the results of the previous audit:  

There were 14 non-conformances raised in the previous audit against 9 raised in this audit. Continual improvement has been identified in this audit.” 
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9.11 Internal Audit  

Key activities and objectives of the internal audit  

Key activities: 

Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and improve an organisation's operations. It helps an organisation 

accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control, and governance 

processes.  

Key objectives:  

Provide a value added risk-based internal audit service to the College. 

Summary of audit work done 

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019 six assurance and advisory reports were issued to the College. Work performed was based on a risk-based internal 

audit plan and included audits of: supply chain management; annual financial statements reviews; inventory management; ICT; student enrolment and audit action 

plans (both internal and external). Based on the audit work performed internal control, risk management and governance processes are generally adequate and 

effective and recommendations for further improvement have been made to the College. This will occur through timely and adequate implementation of agreed-upon 

audit action plans. 

 
9.12 Conclusion 

As the Accounting Officer/Principal of ORBIT TVET College I committed myself and the resources of the college to achieving the targets outlined in the College Strategic 

and Operational Plans. This Annual Report is a reflection of the extent to which the College managed to achieve these targets.  In most instances, targets were met or 

exceeded.  However, there were also targets that were not met; some of which were due to reasons beyond our control.  

 

Although we are justifiably proud of the initiatives and achievements accomplished over the past year, it is ultimately our ability to adapt and change our services to 

meet each client’s unique need within the landscape for the TVET College Sector, which will determine our success in the future. 

 

In the instances where the College can still improve, and I am of the opinion that the Management and Council of ORBIT College will remain committed to keep 

improving, growing and sustaining the College, steering it to even greater heights, going forward. 
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The fundamental principle and vision of ORBIT TVET College is that it is a global institution of excellence, surpassing community needs. This is a principle that commits 

everyone involved with the College to tirelessly strive to make sure that our students enjoy the same quality learning environment, opportunities and stimulation, 

regardless of the campus where they are enrolled. 

 

We will continue to embrace our core values of Transformation, Accountability, Respect and Teamwork.  For us, meeting and exceeding the expectations of the 

communities we serve is not a process but rather an ethos.   

 

 

MOKOENA DF 

ACCOUNTING OFFICER/PRINCIPAL  
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10 PERFORMANCE REPORTING 

 
The graphical information displayed in this section of the Annual Report aims at providing a visual presentation of the performance of ORBIT TVET College during 2019 

in terms of: 

 

Enrolment targets  

A growth analysis has been done, based on comparative headcounts covering 2016 – 2019.  This graph provides an indication of the growth rate per campus over a 

period of four years. 

A breakdown of the total headcount (HS) for Vocational/Ministerial funded programmes is also provided per campus.  All headcounts indicated in this section exclude 

exemptions, cancellations and exam-only enrolments. 

 

Headcount is based on an average calculation of 1 HC = 7subject enrolments for NCV, 1 HC = 4 subject enrolments for Report 191 programmes and 1 HC = 1 student 

for occupational programmes. 

 

Academic Compliance  

The graphs presented in this section focus on certification rates, pass rates and retention rates for NCV and Report 191 (Semester and Trimester) programmes 

respectively.  Certification rates were calculated based on the number of students who enrolled for a full qualification. Pass rates were calculated based on subject 

enrolments. 

  

Graduation Compliance  

A comparative analysis of graduation statistics was done for the period 2018-2019 for exit level qualifications only, i.e. NCV Level 4 and National N Diploma.  The 

compliance of NCV Level 4 graduates with the admission requirements of Higher Education Institutions such as Universities and Universities of Technology is also 

presented as this provides an indication of articulation of NCV graduates into Higher Education as one of the exit level options. 
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10.1 STUDENT ENROLMENTS      

10.1.1 Growth Analysis (Comparative Headcount: 2016-2019) 
      

CAMPUS / YEAR 2016 2017 2018 2019 % Growth / Campus 

BRITS 3246 3348 3239.21 4046.00 20% 

MANKWE 3223 4741 3952.96 4935.00 20% 

RUSTENBURG 4369 4931 4908.75 5632.00 13% 

ORBIT College Totals 10838 13020 12101 14613   

% College Growth / Year -3% 17% -8% 17%   

 

       

      

      

 

 

    

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

Figure 10.1.1      
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10.1.2 Subject Headcount (HC) Vocational & Occupational Programmes (Unduplicated) - 2019 

            

(Subject) HC NC(V) Programmes - 2019   (Subject) HC Report 191 Programmes - 2019 

Campus (Subject) HC  Campus Programme (Subject) HC 

Brits 1031  

Brits 

Engineering Studies 1527 

Mankwe 1219  Business Studies 1190 

Rustenburg 1158  Sub-Total 2717 

College NC(V) Total 3408  

Mankwe 

Engineering Studies 2063 

NC(V) % Growth / Year    Business Studies 1384 

   Sub-Total 3447 

HC (PLP) per Campus - 2019  

Rustenburg 

Engineering Studies 2551 

Campus Headcount   Business Studies 1565 

Brits    Sub-Total 4116 

Mankwe 49  College Report 191 Total 10280 

Rustenburg 40  Report 191 % Growth / Year   

College PLP Total 89    
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HC (Occupational & CoS) per Campus - 2019   Total HC per Campus - 2019 

Campus Headcount    Campus Headcount  

Brits 298   Brits 4046 

Mankwe 220   Mankwe 4935 

Rustenburg 318    Rustenburg 5632 

College Occupational 
Programmes Total 

836    College Total 14613 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

    TOTAL COLLEGE HC - 2019 

    Programme  Headcount  

    

NC(V) (Subject) HC 3408 

  

 

 

Report 191 (Subject) HC 10280 

    HC (PLP) 89 

 

  

  

HC (Occupational & CoS) 836 

    

College Total HC  14613 
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Figure 10.1.2.1 

Figure 10.1.2.2 
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10.2 STUDENT ACADEMIC PERFORMANCE 

10.2.1  NCV: CERTIFICATION RATE: 2016 – 2019 (Based on number written vs number passed) 
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Level 2 1566 563 437 77.62 35.95 1404 687 611 88.94 48.93 1147 668 549 82.19 58.24 1344 662 542 81.87 49.26 

Level 3 441 384 322 83.85 87.07 422 364 331 90.93 86.26 565 491 374 76.17 86.90 580 461 373 80.91 79.48 

Level 4 426 404 289 71.53 94.84 325 314 229 72.93 96.62 317 277 199 71.84 87.38 397 343 233 67.93 86.40 

 

Figure 10.2.1 

 

  

Level 2 Level 3 Level 4

2016 77.62 83.85 71.53

2017 88.94 90.93 72.93

2018 82.19 76.17 71.84

2019 81.87 80.91 67.93
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10.2.2 NCV: PASS RATE: 2016 - 2019 (based on subject enrolments) 
 

  

2016 2017 2018 2019 
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Level 2 12443 6465 5408 83.65 51.96 11363 7451 6720 90.19 65.57 9178 6459 5668 87.75 70.37 10563 6758 6089 90.10 63.98 

Level 3 5688 4566 3843 84.17 80.27 5167 4165 3875 93.04 80.61 5910 5082 4527 89.08 85.99 6196 5116 4568 89.29 82.57 

Level 4 5043 4419 3642 82.42 87.63 3893 3419 2804 82.01 87.82 3632 3136 2640 84.18 86.34 4978 4301 3551 82.56 86.40 
 

Figure 10.2.2 
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10.2.3 NCV: RETENTION RATE: 2016 - 2019 (based on subject enrolments) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 10.2.3 
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10.2.4  REPORT 191: BUSINESS &GENERAL STUDIES CERTIFICATION RATE: 2019 (Based on number written vs number passed) 
 

  

SEMESTER 1: 2019 SEMESTER 2: 2019 

CERTIFICATION RATE CERTIFICATION RATE 

Enrolle
d Written Passed % Pass Retention Enrolled Written Passed % Pass Retention 

N4 527 373 284 76.14 70.78 73 258 190 73.64 353.42 

N5 204 150 104 69.33 73.53 333 250 180 72.00 75.08 

N6 246 219 124 56.62 89.02 217 163 125 76.69 75.12 

 
Figure 10.2.4 
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10.2.5 REPORT 191: BUSINESS & GENERAL STUDIES PASS RATE: 2019 
 

REPORT 191: BUSINESS STUDIES PASS RATE: 2019 

  

SEMESTER 1: 2019 SEMESTER 2: 2019 

SUBJECT ENROLMENTS SUBJECT ENROLMENTS 

Enrolled Written Passed % Pass Retention Enrolled Written Passed % Pass Retention 

N4 2408 1929 1672 86.68 80.11 2003 1552 1257 80.99 77.48 

N5 1618 1263 1003 79.41 78.06 2342 1952 1605 82.22 83.35 

N6 1931 1700 1276 75.06 88.04 1753 1420 1030 72.54 81.00 
 

 

  Figure 10.2.5 
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10.2.6 REPORT 191: BUSINESS & GENERAL STUDIES RETENTION RATE: 2019 
 

Figure 10.2.6 
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10.2.7 REPORT 191: ENGINEERING STUDIES CERTIFICATION RATE: 2019 (Based on the number written vs number passed) 
 

  

TRIMESTER 1: 2019 TRIMESTER 2: 2019 TRIMESTER 3: 2019 

CERTIFICATION RATE CERTIFICATION RATE CERTIFICATION RATE 

Enrolled Written Passed % Pass Retention Enrolled Written Passed % Pass Retention Enrolled Written Passed % Pass Retention 

N1 440 312 249 79.81 70.91 318 237 186 78.48 74.53 163 115 79 68.70 70.55 

N2 253 175 75 42.86 69.17 327 187 78 41.71 57.19 299 151 69 45.70 50.50 

N3 134 86 36 41.86 64.18 125 71 41 57.75 56.80 130 86 35 40.70 66.15 

N4 126 91 33 36.26 72.22 77 57 18 31.58 74.03 97 67 22 32.84 69.07 

N5 48 33 11 33.33 68.75 72 48 15 31.25 66.67 47 32 16 50.00 68.09 

N6 20 13 2 15.38 65.00 29 18 2 11.11 62.07 30 16 3 18.75 53.33 

Figure 10.2.7 
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10.2.8  REPORT 191: ENGINEERING STUDIES PASS RATE: 2019 
 

  

TRIMESTER 1: 2019 TRIMESTER 2: 2019 TRIMESTER 3: 2019 

SUBJECT ENROLMENTS SUBJECT ENROLMENTS SUBJECT ENROLMENTS 

Enrolled Written Passed % Pass Retention Enrolled Written Passed % Pass Retention Enrolled Written Passed % Pass Retention 

N1 1843 1570 1384 88.15 85.19 1516 1301 1111 85.40 85.82 830 690 522 75.65 83.13 

N2 1755 1400 771 55.07 79.77 2232 1723 989 57.40 77.20 2233 1668 948 56.83 74.70 

N3 1329 1068 545 51.03 80.36 1280 977 601 61.51 76.33 1276 982 529 53.87 76.96 

N4 1060 843 407 48.28 79.53 971 788 327 41.50 81.15 1036 797 430 53.95 76.93 

N5 553 396 195 49.24 71.61 640 500 271 54.20 78.13 539 419 240 57.28 77.74 

N6 426 323 136 42.11 75.82 370 260 101 38.85 70.27 401 290 152 52.41 72.32 

 

 Figure 10.2.8 
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10.2.9 REPORT 191: ENGINEERING STUDIES RETENTION RATE: 2019 

Figure 10.2.9 
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10.3. COMPLIANT GRADUATES 

10.3.1. NC(V) COMPLIANT GRADUATES  2018 - 2019 

NC(V) LEVEL 4 GRADUATES (passing all 21 subjects) 
2018 - 2019 

2018 - 2019 student compliance to HE institutional admission requirements 

Programme 
2018 

Graduates  
2019 

Graduates  

2018 Higher 
Certificate 

2019 Higher 
Certificate 

2018 
Diploma 

2019 
Diploma 

2018 Bachelor's 
Degree 

2019 Bachelor's 
Degree 

Requires an NC(V) Level 4 
Certificate to have been 
issued, passing all 21 

subjects 

Requires an NC(V) Level 4 
Certificate having been 

issued with 50% in three 
fundamental subjects and 
60% in three compulsory 

vocational subjects 

Requires an NC(V) Level 4 Certificate 
having been issued with 60% in three 
fundamental subjects and 70% in four 

vocational subjects 

Civil Engineering Construction 4 2 4 2 0 0 0 0 

Electrical Infrastructure Construction 35 29 30 24 4 5 1 0 

Engineering & Related Design 24 44 23 38 1 5 0 1 

Finance, Economics and Accounting  18 19 14 16 4 3 0 0 

Hospitality 19 16 18 14 1 1 0 1 

ICT & Computer Science 3 12 3 12 0 0 0 0 

Management 9 14 8 11 1 2 0 1 

Office Administration 82 102 59 77 21 19 2 6 

Tourism 36 15 29 11 6 2 1 2 

Transport & Logistics 28 51 17 40 9 7 2 4 

TOTAL COMPLIANT GRADUATES 258 304 205 245 47 44 6 15 

   Total: 304 
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Figure 10.3.1.1 
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Figure 10.3.1.2 
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10.3.2 REPORT 191 NATIONAL N-DIPLOMA COMPLIANT GRADUATES 2018 – 2019 

Report 191 (NATED) NATIONAL N DIPLOMA GRADUATES 2018 - 2019 

Programme 2018 Diploma Graduates 2019 Diploma Graduates 

Business Management 11 6 

Educare 24 1 

Engineering Studies 13 11 

Financial Management 38 20 

Hospitality & Catering Services 4   

Human Resource Management 35 37 

Management Assistant 22 23 

Tourism 0   

TOTAL COMPLIANT GRADUATES 147 98 

Figure 10.3.2.1  
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10.4 ANNUAL PERFORMANCE ACHIEVEMENTS 
 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

2019 

PLANNED 

TARGET 

2019 ACTUAL 

ACHIEVEMENT 

DEVIATION 

FROM PLANNED 

TARGET 

REASON FOR DEVIATION 

Provide quality technical 

and vocational education 

and training services and 

increase academic 

achievement and success 

of students 

Throughput Rates: 

NC(V) Level 4 

N6 Semester 

N6 Trimester 

 

64% 

55% 

55% 

 

65% 

54% 

17% 

 

+1% 

-1% 

-38% 

Due to student unrest and 

protest action during Trimester 

and Semester examinations, not 

all students could sit for formal 

examinations, resulting in a low 

throughput rate 

Certification (completion) Rates:  

NC(V) Level 4 

N3 

N6 Semester 

N6 Trimester  

 

72% 

62% 

62% 

62% 

 

67.93% 

46.77% 

66.66% 

15.08% 

 

-4.07% 

-15.23% 

+4.66% 

-46.92% 

Student unrest and protest 

action resulted in low class 

attendance and subsequent low 

pass rates, more especially for 

Trimester examinations. 

TVET students enrolled in foundation 

programmes 
61 73 +12% 

A higher demand for bridging 
programmes resulted in a higher 
intake 

Completion rates in foundation programmes 70% 48% -22% 

Poor performance of PLP 

students in Foundational 

Mathematics has led to a poor 

progression rate 

Have adequate 

infrastructure and 

systems in place to 

Students accommodated in public TVET 

college owned or administered 

accommodation  

100% 95% -5% 

A number of hostel rooms were 

still under construction due to 

rennovations 
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STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

2019 

PLANNED 

TARGET 

2019 ACTUAL 

ACHIEVEMENT 

DEVIATION 

FROM PLANNED 

TARGET 

REASON FOR DEVIATION 

increase access and 

provide effective services 

to students 

Qualifying TVET students obtaining financial 

assistance  
5400 6143 +743 

More students applied for and 

qualified to receive NSFAS 

bursaries 

Approved maintenance plan for facilities and 

infrastructure 
1 1 0  

Fully functional Business Management 

System implemented and maintained 
1 1 0 

Business Management System 

is fully functional at all sites 

Connectivity up-time 95% 98% +3% 

Since moving to SABEN very 

little internet and BMS downtime 

has been experienced  

Develop partnerships and 

maintain good 

stakeholder relations to 

increase the number of 

students who are 

adequately prepared to 

enter the labour market or 

further and higher 

learning opportunities 

Number of established partnerships with 

Business, Industry and Government 

Departments (including signed MoAs, MoUs 

and contracts) 

27 13 -14 

Relationship progression with 
public entities and state 
departments is very slow in 
comparison with SETA and 
Business & Industry relationship 
progression 

TVET lecturers placed in workplaces for 

specified periods for specified purpose 
11% 6% -5% 

Lecturers were expected to 

arrange catch-up classes during 

their recess after disruptions 

were caused by the NEWHAWU 

strike in February. 

Placement challenges were 

experienced with industry, but 

partnerships have been 
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STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

2019 

PLANNED 

TARGET 

2019 ACTUAL 

ACHIEVEMENT 

DEVIATION 

FROM PLANNED 

TARGET 

REASON FOR DEVIATION 

established with MQA in an 

attempt to close the gap 

TVET students placed in workplaces/industry 

for specified periods for workplace based 

learning 

2610 131 -2479 

Student placement targets were 

unrealistic compared to the 

statistics of the previous year. 

Placement challenges were 

experienced with industry, but 

partnerships have been 

established with MQA in an 

attempt to close the gap 

Students enrolled in trade-related or 

occupational programmes (excluding CoS) 
1489 786 -703 

Partnerships linked to artisan-

relate programmes did not 

materialize according to plan, 

resulting in fewer students being 

enrolled in occupational 

programmes 

Students enrolled in Centre of Specialisation 

programmes 
60 29 -31 

Enrolments for CoS 

programmes were delayed due 

to implementation challenges 

College Council fully constituted and effective 1 1 0  
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STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

2019 

PLANNED 

TARGET 

2019 ACTUAL 

ACHIEVEMENT 

DEVIATION 

FROM PLANNED 

TARGET 

REASON FOR DEVIATION 

To ensure continuous 

business excellence in 

terms of good corporate 

governance and effectual 

management of college 

resources as well as 

information and data 

reporting  

Compliance to governance standards  100% 96% -4% 

Approval of the Fleet 

Management Policy was 

delayed 

Spending of Maintenance Grant 

was not according to schedule 

Gaps were identified with 

implementation of the 

Punctuality Policy but the 

process was closely monitored  

Obtaining unqualified audits 1 0 -1 

The reason for the qualified audit 
report is due to the following 
qualifications: 

 Inventory Valuation: The prior 
period valuation of inventory 
impacted on the current period 

 NSFAS Student Bursaries: 
historical balances that 
required extensive 
reconciliations 

 ·Contingent Liability: dispute 
regarding the rates and taxes 
billing of Mankwe Campus 

 ·Unspent Conditional Grants – 
DHET Centre of Specialisation 
Funding: funding relating to the 
DHET Centre of Specialisation 
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STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

2019 

PLANNED 

TARGET 

2019 ACTUAL 

ACHIEVEMENT 

DEVIATION 

FROM PLANNED 

TARGET 

REASON FOR DEVIATION 

is not regarded as a conditional 
grant 

Compliance with national policy when 

conducting national examinations and 

assessments 

100% 98% -2% 

Campus Certificate of 

Competence (CoC) was not in 

place at Brits Campus 

Computer dividers had to be 

procured for Rustenburg 

Campus before 15 May 2019 

when S1 exam would 

commence  

Compliance in submitting TVETMIS data 100% 100% 0 

All TVETMIS reports were 

submitted to DHET within the 

required timeframes and as per 

schedule 

To monitor and evaluate 

college processes in 

terms of the TVET College 

Monitoring and Evaluation 

(M&E) Framework and 

report quarterly on 

college performance in 

this regard 

Quarterly M&E reports submitted  100% 100% 0 

All M & E reports were 

submitted to DHET within the 

required timeframes and as per 

schedule 
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10.5 COLLEGE ACHIEVEMENT IN TERMS OF TVET SYSTEM TARGETS 

Sub-Outcome 2 & 4 Targets 
Sub-outcome 2: Increase access and success in programmes leading to intermediate and high level learning. 
Sub-outcome 4: Increase access to occupationally-directed programmes in needed areas and thereby expand the availability of intermediate level skills 
with a special focus on artisan skills. 

NO OUTCOME INDICATOR 
2019/20 NATIONAL 

TARGET 

2019 

PLANNED 

TARGET 

2019 ACTUAL 

ACHIEVEMENT 

DEVIATION 

FROM 

TARGET 
REASON FOR DEVIATION 

1.  

Headcount enrolments (n) 710 535 13556 12822 -734 

Target was not reached due to 

occupational programme intake not 

reaching the set target. 

State funded 524 096 12007 12007 0 

 

College funded 140 652 0 0 0 

Other sources 45 787 1549 815 -734 

Target was not reached due to 

occupational programme intake not 

reaching the set target. 

2.  

Certification rates in TVET 
qualifications (%) 

65%  
 

 

 

 
 

NCV Level 4 65% 72% 67.93% -4.07% Student unrest and protest action resulted 

in low class attendance and subsequent 
N3 65% 62% 46.77% -16.23% 
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NO OUTCOME INDICATOR 
2019/20 NATIONAL 

TARGET 

2019 

PLANNED 

TARGET 

2019 ACTUAL 

ACHIEVEMENT 

DEVIATION 

FROM 

TARGET 
REASON FOR DEVIATION 

N6 Semester 65% 62% 66.66% +4.66% low pass rates, more especially for 

Trimester examinations 
 N6 Trimester  65% 62% 15.08% -46.92% 

3.  Throughput rates in TVET 
qualifications (%) 

None set     

 NC(V) Level 4 None set 64% 65% +1% Student unrest and protest action resulted 

in low class attendance and subsequent 

low throughput rates, more especially for 

Trimester examinations 

 N6 Semester  None set 55% 54% -1% 

 N6 Trimester  None set 55% 17% -38% 

4.  

Compliance with national 
policy when conducting 
national examinations and 
assessments (%) 

None set 100% 98% -2% 

Campus Certificate of Competence (CoC) 

was not in place at Brits Campus 

Computer dividers had to be procured for 

Rustenburg Campus before 15 May 2019 

when S1 exam would commence  

5.  Compliance to governance 
standards 

90% 100% 96% -4% 

Approval of the Fleet Management Policy 

was delayed 

Spending of Maintenance Grant was not 

according to schedule 

Gaps were identified with implementation of 

the Punctuality Policy but the process was 

closely monitored  

6.  Qualifying TVET students 
obtaining financial assistance  

484 111 5400 6143 +743 
More students applied for and qualified to 

receive NSFAS bursaries 

7.  Students enrolled in trade-
related or occupational 

None set 1489 786 -703 
Partnerships linked to artisan-related 

programmes did not materialize according 
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NO OUTCOME INDICATOR 
2019/20 NATIONAL 

TARGET 

2019 

PLANNED 

TARGET 

2019 ACTUAL 

ACHIEVEMENT 

DEVIATION 

FROM 

TARGET 
REASON FOR DEVIATION 

programmes (excluding CoS 
enrolment) 

to plan, resulting in fewer students being 

enrolled in occupational programmes 

8.  Students enrolled in Centres 
of Specialisation programmes 

None set 60 29 -31 
Enrolments for CoS programmes were 

delayed due to implementation challenges 

9.  
TVET students placed in 
workplaces/industry for 
workplace based learning (n) 

None set 2610 131 -2479 

Student placement targets were unrealistic 

compared to the statistics of the previous 

year. 

Placement challenges were experienced 

with industry, but partnerships have been 

established with MQA in an attempt to 

close the gap 

10.  
TVET lecturers placed in 
workplaces for specified 
periods (n) 

30% 11% 6% -5% 

Lecturers were expected to arrange catch-

up classes during their recess after 

disruptions were caused by the 

NEWHAWU strike in February. 

Placement challenges were experienced 

with industry, but partnerships have been 

established with MQA in an attempt to 

close the gap 

11.  TVET students enrolled in 
foundation programmes 

5000 61 73 +12% A higher demand for bridging programmes 
resulted in a higher intake 

12.  Completion rates in 
foundation programmes 

None set 70% 48% -22% 

Poor performance of PLP students in 

Foundational Mathematics has led to a 

poor progression rate 
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NO OUTCOME INDICATOR 
2019/20 NATIONAL 

TARGET 

2019 

PLANNED 

TARGET 

2019 ACTUAL 

ACHIEVEMENT 

DEVIATION 

FROM 

TARGET 
REASON FOR DEVIATION 

13.  

Students accommodated in 
public TVET College owned 
or administered 
accommodation (n) 

None set 100% 95% -5% 
A number of hostel rooms were still under 

construction due to renovations 
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10.6 STRATEGY TO DEAL WITH UNDERPERFORMANCE 

 

Pass rates for the respective Vocational/Ministerial funded Programmes have been graphically presented in Section 10.2.  Although pass rates reflect a positive picture, 

it does not indemnify College Management from putting measures in place to maintain good performance. 

 

The Academic Unit has put in place a number measures, strategies and interventions to main good academic standards and to deal with underperformance of students.  

These interventions are aimed at consistently improving academic performance of students in an effort to achieve annual performance targets as outlined in the strategic 

plan of the College. 

 

The following interventions/measures and strategies were put in place in 2019 to improve academic performance and to deal with underperformance: 

 

 The monitoring and support provided to lecturing staff was improved 

 Follow-ups were done on post-moderation reports and in-depth reviews of tasks were conducted 

 Results were meticulously analysed after each task and related intervention strategies to improve performance were developed and implemented 

 Students who underperformed were interviewed 

 Campus interaction was improved with the aim of encouraging best practices in dealing with underperformance 

 Group study with the involvement of PALs was encouraged 

 Peer tutoring for challenging modules was encouraged 

 Students who did not do well were encouraged to sit for a second assessment as far as possible 

 

The consistent implementation and monitoring of the above-mentioned strategies and interventions went a long way to finally reflect the positive academic picture as 

presented in Section 10.2. 
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PART D: FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
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Nature of business and principal activities The College is a Public Technical and Vocational Education and 

Training College, constituted in terms of the Continuing Education and 
Training Act No. 16 of 2006, as amended and operates within the 
Republic of South Africa 

 

Councillors  

Basson JPC (Technical Consultant 
- Ministerial Appointee) 

Bogale MM (SRC Secretary - SRC 
Representative) 

Bogopa MB (Relationship 
Executive Public Sector - 
Ministerial Appointee) Deputy 
Chairperson 

Delman NM (SRC President - SRC 
Representative) 

Dubazana TC (Corporate Services 
- Additional Member ) 

Gabashane AD (Managing 
Member - Ministerial Appointee) 

Kabini ZM (Ms) (Corporate 
Planning - Ministerial Appointee) 

Lefophane MH (Ms) (Lecturer - 
Ministerial Appointee) 

Letsoalo SM (Academic Board 
Representative - Representative of 
Academic Board) 

Magolego PM (Attorney - Donor) 

Mamaile LJ (Dr) (Lecturer - 
Ministerial Appointee) 

Mangoma APC (Ms) (Additional 
Member ) 

Mathye MG (Ms) (Freelancing - 
Additional Member ) 

Mokale AT (Support Staff 
Representative - Support Staff 
Representative) 

Mokoena DF (Principal - College 
Employee) 

Moloantoa K (Dr) (Director - 
Ministerial Appointee) Chairperson 

Ramaru MS (Lecturer Staff 
Representative - Lecturer 
Representative) 

Singh R (Additional Member) 
 

Registered office C/o Bosch & Fatima Bhayat Street 

Rustenburg 

0299 
 

Postal address Private Bag X82086 

Rustenburg 

0300 

Controlling entity Minister of Higher Education and Training and Department of 

Education and Training 
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General Information 
 

Bankers ABSA Bank 
 

Auditors Auditor General of South Africa 
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The reports and statements set out below comprise the annual financial statements presented to the council: 
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Abbreviation/acronyms Definition 
 

AGSA Auditor General of South Africa 
 

ASB Accounting Standards Board 
 

SA GAAP South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice 
 

GRAP Generally Recognised Accounting Practice 
 

VAT Value Added Tax 
 

SARS South African Revenue Services 
 

IAS International Accounting Standards 
 

SRC Student Representative 
 

IPSAS International Public Sector Accounting Standards 
 

GEPF Goverment Employee Pension Fund 
 

DHET Department of Higher Education and Training 
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Responsibilities and Approval of Council 

 
The Council is required by the Continuing Education and Training Act No. 16 of 2006, to maintain adequate accounting records 
and is responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial information included in 
this report. It is the responsibility of Council to ensure the financial statements of the College fairly presents the results of its 
operations, cash flows and state of affairs in conformity with GRAP at financial year end. The Auditor General was engaged to 
express an independent opinion on the financial statements and was given unrestricted access to all financial records, related 
data and relevant parties. 

 

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting 
Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) and 
in the manner required by the Minister of Higher Education and Training. 

 

The annual financial statements· are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by 
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates. 

 

The Council acknowledges that it is ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the College 
and  places considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment, which includes the safeguarding of assets 
and compliance with relevant legislation. To enable the Council to meet these responsibilities, the Council sets standards for 
internal control aimed at reducing risk in a cost-effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of 
responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting and other procedures, and adequate segregation of 
duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the College and employees and 
management are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the College's business is conducted in a 
manner, which in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the College is on 
identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the College. While operating risks cannot be 
fully eliminated, the College·endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical 
behavior are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints. 

 

The Council accepts its responsibility to ensure that the College is managed in a responsible manner, considering the interest of 
all stakeholders, including the DHET, unions, employees, students, local communities and creditors. Responsible management 
entails, inter alia, compliance with applicable statutory and regulatory requirements, including risk management. 

 

The Council is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal 
control provides reasonable assurance, except for the matters reported in the audit report, that the financial records may be 
relied on for the preparation of the financial statements and that the financial statements are free from material misstatements, 
whether due to fraud or error. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, 
assurance against material misstatement or deficit. 

 

The Council has reviewed the College's cash flow forecast for the year ended 31 December 2020 and, in the light of this review 

and the current financial position, it is satisfied that the College has access to adequate resources to continue in operational 

existence for the foreseeable future. 
 

The College is dependent on the DHET for continued funding of operations in line with the annual DHET programme funding 
allocation. The financial statements are prepared on the basis that the entity is a going concern and that the DHET has neither 
the intention nor the need to liquidate or curtail materially the scale of the College's operations. 

 
The Auditor General of South Africa is responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the College's annual financial 
statements a his report is presented with these financial statements. 

 

ancial statements set out on pages 116 to 178, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were 

the Council on 14 Aug 2020 and were signed on its behalf by: 
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A  U  D  I  T  O   R  -  G  E  N   E  R  A  L 

  SOUTH AFRICA 

 

Report of the auditor-general to the Minister of Higher Education, 

Science and Innovation and the council on the Orbit Technical and 

Vocational Education and Training College 
 

I  Report  on the audit  of the financial statements                                                           

Qualified opinion 

1. I have audited the financial statements of the Orbit Technical and Vocational Education and 

Training (TVET) College set out on pages 116 to 178, which comprise the statement of 

financial position as at 31 December 2019, statement of financial performance, statement of 

changes in net assets and cash flow statement for the year then ended, as well as the notes to 

the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

2. In my opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters described in the basis for qualified 

opinion section of this auditor's report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material 

respects, the financial position of the Orbit TVET College as at 31 December 2019, and its 

financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the 

Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (Standards of GRAP) and the 

requirements of the Continuing Education and Training Act of South Africa, 2006 (Act No. 16 

of 2006) (CETA). 

 

Basis for qualified opinion 
 

Inventories 

3. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for inventories due to the status of 

the accounting records. I was unable to confirm these inventories by alternative means. In 

addition, the college did not correctly account for the movement in net realisable value of 

inventories in accordance with GRAP 12, Inventories resulting in the inventories losses/write 

downs being overstated by R9 327 401 and revenue from exchange transactions being 

overstated by R6 675 954 n the previous year. Consequently, I was unable to determine 

whether any adjustment was necessary to inventories of R16 190 125 (2018: R9 502 157) as 

disclosed in note 6 to the financial statements. 

 

Payables from exchange transactions 

4. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the NSFAS liability, the PED 

creditor and other payables included in payables from exchange transactions due to a lack of 

proper supporting records and material differences between the accounting records and 

financial statements. I was unable to confirm these payables from exchange transactions by 

alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustment relating 

to the NSFAS liability of R46 377 269 (2018: R50 382 795), PED creditor of R3 056 036 (2018: 

R3 056 036) and other payables of R26 461 251 (2018: R4 557 990) included in payables 

from exchange transactions as disclosed in note 14 to the financial statements was necessary. 
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Unspent conditional grants and receipts 

5. The college incorrectly classified the DHET centre of specialisation (COS) and the DHET 

missing middle students grants in accordance with GRAP 23, Revenue from non- exchange 

transactions as these grants were accounted for as conditional grants while there was no 

express or positive obligation in terms of the agreements to return the grants if the funds are 

not used for its intended purposes. Consequently, unspent conditional grants and receipts 

were overstated by R4 835 268 (2018: R? 989 522) and revenue non-exchange was 

understated by the same amount. 

 

Contingent liabilities 

6. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the amount due to Moses 

Kotane municipality which is disclosed as a contingent liability due to a lack of proper 

supporting records and material differences between the amount under dispute and the actual 

liability due for rates and taxes. I was unable to confirm this amount by alternative means. 

Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustmentsrelating to the contingent 

liability with Moses Kotane municipality of R25 539 053 as disclosed in note 35 to the financial 

statements was necessary. 

 

Context for the opinion 
 

7. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My 

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor-general's 

responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of this auditor's report. 

8. I am independent of the college in accordance with sections 290 and 291 of the Code of ethics 

for professional accountants and parts 1 and 3 of the International Code of Ethics for 

Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) of the 

International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA codes) as well as the ethical 

requirements that are relevant to my audit in South Africa. I have fulfilled my other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA codes. 

9. l believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for my qualified opinion. 

 

Emphasis of matters 
 

10. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matters. 
 

Allowance for impairment 

11. As disclosed in note 9 to the financial statements, the total allowance for impairment was 

R101 834 911 which relates to the impairment provision for doubtful debts. 

 

Restatement of corresponding figures 

12. As disclosed in notes 38 and 39 to the financial statements the corresponding figures for 31 

December 2018 were restated as a result of errors in the financial statements of the college at, 

and for the year ended, 31 December 2019. 

 

Responsibilities of the council for the financial statements 
 

13. The council is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 

in accordance with the Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the CETA, and for such 

internal control as the council determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
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14. In preparing tne financial statements, the council is responsible for assessing the college's 

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going 

concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the appropriate governance 

structure either intends to liquidate the college or to cease operations, or has no realistic 

alternative but to do so. 

 

Auditor-general's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
 

15. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 

auditor's report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 

but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the ISAs will always detect a 

material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

16. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included 

in the annexure to this auditor's report. 
 

I Report on the audit of the annual performance report 

17. The college is not required to prepare a report on its performance against predetermined 

objectives, as it does not fall within the ambit of the Public Finance Management Act of South 

Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) and such reporting is also not required in terms of the CETA. 

I Report on audit of compliance with legislation 

Introduction and scope 

18. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a 

responsibility to report material findings on the compliance of the college with specific matters 

in key legislation. I performed procedures to identify findings but not to gather evidence to 

express assurance. 

19. The material findings on compliance with specific matters in key legislation are as follows: 

 
Annual financial statements 

20. The financial statements were not submitted for auditing within three months after the end of 

the financial year, as required by section 25(3) of the CETA 

21. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in accordance with the SA 

Standards of GRAP and supported by complete accounting records, as required by sections 

25(1)(b) and 25(3) of the CETA. Material misstatements of projects, employee costs, 

receivables for exchange, prior period errors and other disclosure items identified by the 

auditors in the submitted financial statements were corrected and the supporting records was 

provided subsequently, but the uncorrected material misstatements and supporting records 

that could not be provided resulted in the financial statements receiving a qualified opinion. 

I Other information 

22. The council is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 

information included in the annual report which includes the chairperson's report and the audit 

committee's report. The other information does not include the financial statements and the 

auditor's report. 
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23. My opinion on the financial statements and compliance with legislation do not cover the other 

information and I do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion 

thereon. 

24. In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 

consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements 

or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

25. Based on the work I have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of the 

auditor's report, I conclude that I have nothing to report in this regard. 
 

I Internal control deficiencies  

26. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements and compliance 

with applicable legislation; however, my objective was not to express any form of assurance 

on it. The matters reported below are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies that 

resulted in the basis for the qualified opinion and the findings on compliance with legislation 

included in this report. 

• The leadership did not exercise adequate oversight over financial reporting, compliance 

monitoring and related internal controls because material misstatements were identified in 

the financial statements submitted for audit. 

• Management's failure to implement controls to prevent or detect misstatements during the 

review process resulted in material misstaments on the financial statements. This 

indicates that there were weaknesses in internal control with regard to the preparation and 

review process of the financial statements. Furthermore, the financial statements were not 

supported by reliable and accurate information. Although an action plan was developed to 

resolve prior year issues, management did not ensure all issues were corrected due to the 

weakness within controls around inventory management, liability management, data 

recording processing, and monthly/yearly reconciliations. 

• Although the audit committee monitored the action plan and review financial statements 

prior submission for audit, this was not effective as prior issues were identified and 

material misstatements were also reported. The internal audit did not perform adequate 

review of financial statements and ensure that action plan implemented throughout the 

year was adequate. 
 

Rustenburg 

 
05 November 2020 
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Annexure -Auditor-general's responsibility ·for the 

audit 

1. As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, I exercise professional judgement and 

maintain professional scepticism throughout my audit of the financial statements and on the 

college's compliance with respect to the selected subject matters. 

 

Financial statements 
 

2. In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in the 

auditor's report, I also: 

• identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements whether 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. 

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 

one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the college's internal control. 

• evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the council. 

• conclude on the appropriateness of the council's use of the going concern basis of 

accounting in the preparation of the financial statements. I also conclude, based on the 

audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists relating to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the college to continue as a 

going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw 

attention in my auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements about 

the material uncertainty or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion on 

the financial statements. My conclusions are based on the information available to me at 

the date of this auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause a college 

to cease operating as a going concern 

• evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

Communication with those charged with governance 
 

3. I communicate with the council regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 

of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 

control that I identify during my audit. 

4. I also confirm to the council that I have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 

independence, and communicate all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 

thought to have a bearing on my independence and, where applicable, actions taken to 

eliminate threats or safeguards applied. 
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The accounting officers submit their report for the year ended December 2019 
 

Report from Council 
 

The Council of ORBIT Technical and Vocational Education and Training (TVET) College must perform all functions, which are 
necessary to govern the public TVET College. The Principal of ORBIT TVET College is responsible for the management and 
administration of the institution. This is duly stated in Section 13 of the Continuing Education and Training Act No. 16 of 2006 
(CET Act). The Council submit their report for the year ended December 2019. 

 

1. Incorporation 
 

ORBIT TVET College was established under the Continuing Education Act and Training Act 16 of 2006. The College comprises 
of the following campuses: Brits, Mankwe & Rustenburg. 

 

2. Review of activities 
 

Main business and operations 
 

The College is a Public Technical and Vocational Educational and Training Collage, constituted in terms of the Continuing 
Educational and Training Act no. 16 of 2006 and operates within the Republic of South Africa and operates principally in 
South Africa. ORBIT TVET College had the following operational results for the year ending 31 December 2019: 

 

Net surplus of the College was R 94,003,639 (2018: surplus R 115,430,061). 
Accumulated surplus / (deficit) at 31 December 2019 amounted to R 526 184 721 (2018: Restated: R439 834 565). 
Cash balances at 31 December 2019 amounted to R283 291 598 (2018: R234 333 920). 
Revenue for the year amounted to R 388 457 471 (2018: R394 158 359). 

 

3. Going concern 
 

We draw attention to the fact that at December 2019, the college had an accumulated surplus of R 530,668,726 and that the 
college's total assets exceed it's liabilities by R 530,668,726. 

 

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This 
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of 
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business. 

 

4. COVID-19 - Overall risk to operations 
 

Since 31 December 2019 , the spread of COVID-19 has severely impacted many local economies around the globe. In many 
countries, businesses are being forced to cease or limit operations for long or indefinite periods of time. Measures taken to 
contain the spread of the virus, including travel bans, quarantines, social distancing, and closures of non-essential services 
have triggered significant disruptions to businesses worldwide, resulting in an economic slowdown. Global stock markets have 
also experienced great volatility and a significant weakening. 

 

Governments and central banks have responded with monetary and fiscal interventions to stabilise economic conditions. 
ORBIT TVET College was closed during the lockdown period but has subsequently commenced operations. The council has 
assessed the impact of COVID-19 on the collage and has determined that financially the Collage remained unaffected. 

 

The College has determined that these events are non-adjusting subsequent events. Accordingly, the financial position and 
results of operations as of and for the year ended 31 December 2019 have not been adjusted to reflect their impact. The 
duration and impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, as well as the effectiveness of government and central bank responses, 
remains unclear at this time. It is not possible to reliably estimate the duration and severity of these consequences, as well as 
their impact on the financial position and results of the Collage for future periods. 

 

5. Councillors' interest in contracts 
 

The Governance and Management Secretary of the College maintains a register of financial and personal interest of the 
Council Members. The register is available for inspection at ORBIT TVET College Central Office, Office Number 32 
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6. Values Transformation 
 

Policies, procedures, activities and programmes are responsive to community needs and redress imbalances of the past, 
thereby ensuring increased inclusivity and accessibility. 

 

Accountability: 
Decision-making processes are transparent with proper financial management systems and procedures with the focus on 
efficiency and effectiveness, including being fair, ethical and trustworthy in all that we do. 

 

Respect: 
We respect the values of human dignity, equality, human rights and freedom, non-racism and nonsexism. 

 

Teamwork: 
Co-operating with one another and with the community, business stakeholders and partners in education in an open and 
supportive way to achieve shared goals. 

 

7. Tax matters 
 

The College is exempt from income tax in terms of Section 10(1)(cN) of the Income Tax Act. 
According to Section 12(h)(1) of the VAT Act No 89 of 1991, " Educational services" are exempt from the levying of the value - 
added tax as imposed by Section 7(i)(9) of the Act, therefore the College is not a VAT registered institution. 

 

8. Vision 
 

A global institution of excellence, surpassing community needs. 
 

9. Mission 
 

To provide high quality Education and Training that is affordable, relevant, learner-centred and contributes to the total 
development of individuals through: 
1. Optimal utilisation of resources, 
2. Creative and innovative modes of delivery, 
3. Appropriately skilled staff and 
4. Community upliftment 
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Statement of Financial Position as at December 2019  

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2019 2018 

 
Assets 

   

Current Assets 

Inventories 

 
6 

 
16,190,125 

 
9,502,157 

Projects 4 2,897,899 1,702,861 

Other financial assets 5 99,302,192 100,507,672 

Receivables from exchange transactions 7&9 50,058,968 29,758,547 

Receivables from non-exchange transactions 8&9 61,771,862 40,017,593 

Cash and cash equivalents 10 283,530,133 234,095,385 

  513,751,179 415,584,215 

Non-Current Assets 

Property, plant and equipment 

 

2 

 

131,814,252 

 

137,505,035 

Intangible assets 3 600,189 458,225 

Projects 4 31,736 - 

  132,446,177 137,963,260 

Total Assets  646,197,356 553,547,475 

Liabilities 
   

Current Liabilities 

Projects 

 
4 

 
26,663,193 

 
31,442,242 

Finance lease obligation 11 40,740 462,859 

Payables from exchange transactions 14 80,817,628 68,750,397 

Unspent conditional grants and receipts 12 7,127,163 7,989,522 

  114,648,724 108,645,020 

Non-Current Liabilities 

Projects 

 

4 

 

338,820 

 

3,720,823 

Finance lease obligation 11 - 40,569 

Provisions 13 541,086 1,306,498 

  879,906 5,067,890 

Total Liabilities  115,528,630 113,712,910 

Net Assets  530,668,726 439,834,565 

Accumulated surplus  530,668,726 439,834,565 
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Statement of Financial Performance  

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2019 2018 

 
Revenue 

   

Revenue from exchange transactions 

Tuition and Related Fees 

 
16 

 
67,602,083 

 
60,801,056 

Rental of facilities and equipment 17 470,486 424,893 

Project Income 18 17,603,848 29,452,584 

Business Unit Income 19 196,900 86,007 

Student Bad Debt Recovered  23,491 - 

Prescription Revenue Reversal  - (274,945) 

Interest received - investment 21 22,354,238 12,955,634 

Gain/(Loss) on disposal of assets and liabilities  - 123,728 

Gain / (Loss) on Completed Projects.  9,566,404 318,760 

Inventories reversal  6,675,954 - 

Total revenue from exchange transactions  124,493,404 103,887,717 

Revenue from non-exchange transactions 
   

Transfer revenue 

Government grants & subsidies 

 
22 

 
263,826,907 

 
289,770,966 

Public contributions and donations 23 62,540 490,846 

Insurance Claim  74,620 8,830 

Total revenue from non-exchange transactions  263,964,067 290,270,642 

Total revenue 15 388,457,471 394,158,359 

Expenditure 

Employee related costs 

 

24 

 

(165,460,944) 

 

(151,357,112) 

Remuneration of councillors 25 (543,000) (263,582) 

Depreciation and amortisation 26 (15,249,854) (13,802,923) 

Impairments 27 (3,296,496) (2,569,767) 

Finance costs 28 (30,101) (84,539) 

Lease rentals on operating lease 20 (433,620) (163,430) 

Debt Impairment  (9,472,774) (18,232,242) 

Repairs and maintenance 29 (7,076,018) (4,425,642) 

Loss on disposal of assets and liabilities  (621,515) - 

Inventories losses/write-downs  - (9,327,401) 

General expenses 30 (92,269,510) (78,501,660) 

Total expenditure  (294,453,832) (278,728,298) 

Surplus for the year  94,003,639 115,430,061 
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets  

 
Figures in Rand 

Accumulated 
surplus 

Total net 
assets 

Opening balance as previously reported 344,276,416 344,276,416 

Adjustments 
Correction of errors 

 

(19,871,912) 
 

(19,871,912) 

Balance at January 2018 as restated* 324,404,504 324,404,504 

Changes in net  assets 
Surplus as previously reported 

 
96,053,408 

 
96,053,408 

Correction of errors 19,376,653 19,376,653 

Total changes being restated surplus 115,430,061 115,430,061 

Balance at January 2019 439,834,570 439,834,570 

Changes in net assets 
Surplus for the year 

 
94,003,639 

 
94,003,639 

Unrealised loss on projects incorrectly processed in the current year against Accumulated 
Surplus 

(3,169,483) (3,169,483) 

Total changes 90,834,156 90,834,156 

Balance at December 2019 530,668,726 530,668,726 

Note(s)   
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Cash Flow Statement  

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2019 2018 

 
Cash flows from operating activities 

   

Receipts 
   

Revenue  16,074,619 73,090,902 

Other operating income  690,877 244,785 

Grants  262,964,548 292,057,488 

Interest income  22,354,238 12,955,634 

Project income  14,612,943 40,970,193 

Public donations  137,160 490,846 

  316,834,385 419,809,848 

 
Payments 

   

Employee costs  (166,769,356) (155,599,105) 

Suppliers  (80,647,913) (89,243,262) 

Finance costs  (30,101) (84,539) 

Repairs and Maintenance  (7,076,018) (4,425,642) 

  (254,523,388) (249,352,548) 

Net cash flows from operating activities 32 61,594,029 170,457,300 

 
Cash flows from investing activities 

   

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 2 (13,714,389) (12,838,618) 

Proceeds / (Acquisition) of Other financial assets 2 1,205,480 (42,007,672) 

Proceeds from the sale of Property, plant and equipment 3 95,348 310,413 

Net cash flows from investing activities  (12,413,561) (54,535,877) 

 
Cash flows from financing activities 

   

Finance lease payments 
 

(462,688) (624,682) 

Net cash flows from financing activities  (462,688) (624,682) 

 
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

  
49,434,748 

 
115,296,741 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  234,095,385 118,798,899 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 10 283,530,133 234,095,640 
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1. Presentation of Annual Financial Statements 
 

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting 
Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 122(3) of the Continuing Education 
and Training Act No. 16 of 2006. 

 

These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical 
cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand. 

 

In the absence of an issued and effective Standard of GRAP, accounting policies for material transactions, events or conditions 
were developed in accordance with paragraphs 8, 10 and 11 of GRAP 3 as read with Directive 5. 

 

Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses were not offset, except where offsetting is either required or permitted by a Standard 
of GRAP. 

 

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation of these annual 
financial statements, are disclosed below. 

 

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period. 
 

1.1 Presentation currency 
 

These annual financial statements are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional currency of the College. 
 

1.2 Going concern assumption 
 

A detailed analysis of whether the College will be able to operate as a going concern was conducted. The outcome of the 
analysis depicts that the Collage will remain profitable and operational. The College remains solvent and liquid to be able to 
continue operations within the foreseeable 12 months. Thus, these annual financial statements have been prepared based 
on the expectation that the College will continue to operate as a going concern for at least the next 12 months. 

 

1.3 Materiality 
 

Material omissions or misstatements of items are material if they could, individually or collectively, influence the decisions or 
assessments of users made on the basis of the financial statements. Materiality depends on the nature or size of the omission 
or misstatement judged in the surrounding circumstances. The nature or size of the information item, or a combination of both, 
could be the determining factor. 

 

Assessing whether an omission or misstatement could influence decisions of users, and so be material, requires consideration 
of the characteristics of those users. The Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements states that 
users are assumed to have a reasonable knowledge of government, its activities, accounting and a willingness to study the 
information with reasonable diligence. Therefore, the assessment takes into account how users with such attributes could 
reasonably be expected to be influenced in making and evaluating decisions. 

 

1.4 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty 
 

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the 
application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates 
which may be material to the annual financial statements. Significant judgements include: 
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1.4 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) 
 

In the process of applying its accounting policies, and in preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to 
make various judgements, including estimates and assumptions, that may affect the determination of the reporting framework, 
affect amounts represented in the annual financial statements and as well as related disclosures. Use of available information 
and the application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these 
estimates which may be material to the annual financial statements. 

 

Significant judgements include the following: 
 

Programme funding: 
 

Programme funding is allocated to the College by the DHET in terms of the CET Act and the National Norms and Standards for 
funding of TVET Colleges and is determined by the estimated Full-Time Equivalent Students (FTEs) of the College. The 
allocation is done based on the projected FTEs for the year and if the College fails to register the projected FTEs, a portion of 
the programme funding can be clawed back in the following year. 

 

Programme funding is allocated by DHET during their financial year which is from April to March, but for the College the funds 
pertain to the College Academic and financial year which is from January to December. Once the College has registered the 
projected number of FTEs and the suspensive condition of programme funding grant has been met, the grant is recognised in 
full. 

 

The programme funding is paid out to the College partly in cash tranches and partly through the PERSAL system of the DHET, 
directly to the employees of the College.The method and timing of payment of the grant, does however not influence the 
recognition of revenue. 

 

Employee related costs and DHET management fee: 
 

In terms of the CET Act, the College is the employer of the non-funded, non-management personnel. All personnel appointed in 
funded posts and management personnel, defined in the CET Act as the Principal and Deputy Principals, have migrated to 
DHET and are DHET employees. 

 

Management personnel are remunerated from DHET funds and not from college funds and this constitutes services in kind 
which are recognised at the cash value of the services to the State. The income is recognised as "Services in Kind "as part of 
revenue from non-exchange transactions and the expense is recognised as "DHET management fee". 

 

Estimates 

 

Estimates are informed by historical experience, information currently available to management, assumptions and other factors 
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These estimates are reviewed on a regular basis. Changes in 
estimates which are not due to errors, are processed in the review period and applied prospectively. 

 

In the process of applying the entity's accounting policies the following estimates, were made: 
 

Trade receivables / Held to maturity investments and/or loans and receivables 
 

The entity assesses its trade receivables, held to maturity investments and loans and receivables for impairment at the end of 
each reporting period. In determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or deficit, the surplus makes 
judgements as to whether there is observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a 
financial asset. 

 

The impairment for trade receivables, held to maturity investments and loans and receivables are calculated on a portfolio 
basis, based on historical loss ratios, adjusted for national and industry-specific economic conditions and other indicators 
present at the reporting date that correlate with defaults on the portfolio. These annual loss ratios are applied to loan balances 
in the portfolio and scaled to the estimated loss emergence period. 

 

Allowance for slow moving, damaged and obsolete stock 
 

An allowance for stock to write stock down to the lower of cost or net realisable value. Management have made estimates of the 
selling price and direct cost to sell on certain inventory items. The write down is included in the operation surplus note. 
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1.4 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) 

Fair value estimation 

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as trading and available-for-sale securities) is based on 
quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the College is 
the current bid price. 

 

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the counter derivatives) is 
determined by using valuation techniques. The College uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on 
market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments 
are used for long-term debt. Other techniques, such as estimated discounted cash flows, are used to determine fair value for 
the remaining financial instruments. The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated 
future cash flows. The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using quoted forward exchange rates at 
the end of the reporting period. 

 

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values. 
The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the 
current market interest rate that is available to the College for similar financial instruments. 

 

Impairment testing 
 

The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units and individual assets have been determined based on the higher of value- 
in-use calculations and fair values less costs to sell. These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions. It is 
reasonably possible that the assumptions may change which may then impact our estimations and may then require a material 
adjustment to the carrying value of goodwill and tangible assets. 

 

The College reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the carrying 
amount may not be recoverable. Assets are grouped at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely 
independent of cash flows of other assets and liabilities. If there are indications that impairment may have occurred, estimates 
are prepared of expected future cash flows for each group of assets. 

 

For non-cash-generating assets, estimates are made regarding the depreciated replacement cost, restoration cost, or service 
units of the asset, depending on the nature of the impairment and the availability of information. 

 

Provisions 
 

Provisions are measured at the present value of the estimated future outflows required to settle the obligation. In the process of 
determining the best estimate of the amounts that will be required in future to settle the provision, management considers the 
weighted average probability of the potential outcomes of the provisions raised. This measurement entails determining what the 
different potential outcomes are for a provision as well as the financial impact of each of those potential outcomes. 
Management then assigns a weighting factor to each of these outcomes based on the probability that the outcome will 
materialise in future. The factor is then applied to each of the potential outcomes and the factored outcomes are then added 
together to arrive at the weighted average value of the provisions. 

 

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available. Additional disclosure of 
these estimates of provisions are included in note 13 - Provisions. 

 

Useful lives of assets, depreciation and amortisation 
 

The College's management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charges for assets. This estimate is 
based on industry norm and then adjusted to be entity specific. Management will increase the depreciation charge where useful 
lives are less than previously estimated useful lives and vice versa. 

 

Depreciation and amortisation recognised on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are determined with 
reference to the useful lives and residual values of the underlying items. The useful lives and residual values of assets are 
based on Management's estimation of the asset's condition, expected condition at the end of the period of use, its current use, 
expected future use and the entity's expectations about the availability of finance to replace the asset at the end of its useful 
life. In evaluating the condition and use of the asset informs the useful life and residual value, Management considers the 
impact of technology and minimum service requirements of the assets. 

 

Residual values and useful lives are assessed annually. 
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1.4 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) 

Allowance for doubtful debts 

The College may if deemed necessary raise a provision for student debtors who are still enrolled at the College or employees 
who are still in the employment of the College or the Department; and who have not met their obligation to the College for at 
least three months. The College applies the recommended provisions stated below as per the Department of Higher Education 
and Training Technical and Vocational Education and Training College Recommended Debt Management Policy or such lower 
provision as the College deems fit. 

 

A provision should be raised for all debtors (whether student or staff) who have not met their obligation to the College for three 
months and who are no longer registered as students or in the employment of the college 

 

The provision should be raised as follows: 
 

a) Debtors who are in arrears for 3 months - Provision of 25% 
 

b) Debtors who are in arrears for 6 months - Provision of 50% 
 

c) Debtors in arrears for 9 months - Provision of 75% 
 

d) Debtors in arrears for 12 months - Provision of 100% 
 

The Deputy Principal: Finance shall consider all economically viable avenues for debt recovery, including the use of tracing 
agents where the address of the debtor is not known, factoring of debts, recourse against sureties or guarantors etc. 

 

Should all efforts prove to be unsuccessful and/or the debtor cannot be traced, only then must a submission be made to the 
College Council requesting the write-off of the debt. The submission must detail all steps taken to trace the debtor and must 
show that it would be uneconomical to take the matter any further 

 

Any debts written is disclosed in the Annual Financial Statements of the College with full disclosure regarding the Colleges 
policy for writing off debts. 

 

In addition to the above-mentioned criteria, the College will consider debts for write-off in the following circumstances: 
 

a) debts not recovered from institutions or service providers that have been liquidated and the claims against the assets 
finalized; 

 

b) debts not recovered from deceased employees, where their estates have been finalised, and recovery of the debts from the 
heirs is not possible; 

 

c) debts owed by Debtors that cannot be traced, notwithstanding compliance with the provisions above; 
 

d) where no source documentation is available to substantiate or prove the claims, provided that the Accounting Officer must 
have satisfied him/herself that all reasonable steps have been taken to locate the source documents; 

 

e) debts where the debtors have emigrated without paying the debts, leaving no assets available for claiming from and the 
debtors' whereabouts are unknown; 

 

f) debts owed by employees who have left the service, and are now destitute, provided that the Accounting Officer must have 
satisfied him/herself that the debtors are in fact destitute. 

1.5 Property, plant and equipment 

Recognition: 

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the 
production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during 
more than one period. 

 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when: 
 it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the 

municipality; and 
 the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 
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1.5 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 
 

Measurement: 
Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost. 

 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the 
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and 
rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost. 

 

Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition. 
 

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a 
combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the 
acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up. 

 

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 

 

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred 
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of 
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. 

 

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also 
included in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the entity is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where the 
obligation arises as a result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes other than the production of inventories. 

 

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the location 
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 

 

Items such as spare parts, standby equipment and servicing equipment are recognised when they meet the definition of 
property, plant and equipment. 

 

Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant and equipment and which meet the 
recognition criteria above are included as a replacement in the cost of the item of property, plant and equipment. Any remaining 
inspection costs from the previous inspection are derecognised. 

 

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. 
 

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated 
residual value. 

 

Land classified as property, plant and equipment will not be depreciated, due to land having an indefinite useful life. 

Initial cost of movable assets below R5 000, will be classified as minor assets. 

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows: 

 
Item Depreciation method Average useful life 

Land Straight line Indefinite 
Buildings Straight line 50 Years 
Furniture and fixtures Straight line 3 - 12 Years 
Motor vehicles Straight line 3 - 5 Years 
IT equipment Straight line 2 - 5 Years 
Other property, plant and equipment Straight line 5 - 10 Years 
Training Equipment Straight line 5 - 10 Years 
Small Items (Minor Assets) Straight line 1 Year 

 

The depreciable amount of an asset is allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life. 
 

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is 
depreciated separately. 
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1.5 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 
 

The depreciation method used reflects the pattern in which the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential are 
expected to be consumed by the college. The depreciation method applied to an asset is reviewed at least at each reporting 
date and, if there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits or 
service potential embodied in the asset, the method is changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such a change is accounted for 
as a change in an accounting estimate. 

 

The college assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the college expectations about the residual 
value and the useful life of an asset have changed since the preceding reporting date. If any such indication exists, the college 
revises the expected useful life and/or residual value accordingly. The change is accounted for as a change in an accounting 
estimate. 

 

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of 
another asset. 

 

Derecognition: 
Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic 
benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset. 

 

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when 
the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item. 

 

The college separately discloses expenditure to repair and maintain property, plant and equipment in the notes to the financial 
statements (see note ). 

 

The college discloses relevant information relating to assets under construction or development, in the notes to the financial 
statements (see note ). 

1.6 Intangible assets 

Recognition: 

An asset is identifiable if it either: 
 is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or 

exchanged, either individually or together with a related contract, identifiable assets or liability, regardless of 
whether the entity intends to do so; or 

 arises from binding arrangements (including rights from contracts), regardless of whether those rights are 
transferable or separable from the college or from other rights and obligations. 

 

A binding arrangement describes an arrangement that confers similar rights and obligations on the parties to it as if it were in 
the form of a contract. 

 

Measurement: 
An intangible asset is recognised when: 

 it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will 
flow to the college; and 

 the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably. 
 

The college assesses the probability of expected future economic benefits or service potential using reasonable and 
supportable assumptions that represent management’s best estimate of the set of economic conditions that will exist over the 
useful life of the asset. 

 

Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its initial cost at the date of acquisition is measured 
at its fair value as at that date. 

 

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when it is incurred. 

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses. 
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1.6 Intangible assets (continued) 
 

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no foreseeable 
limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows or service potential. Amortisation is not 
provided for these intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the 
asset may be impaired. For all other intangible assets amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over their useful life. 

 

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date. 
 

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator that 
the asset may be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is amortised over 
its useful life. 

 

Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not recognised as 
intangible assets. 

 

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows: 

 
Item Depreciation method Average useful life 

Patents, trademarks and other rights Straight line 4 - 5 Years 

Derecognition: 
Intangible assets are derecognised: 

  

 on disposal; or 
 when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal. 

1.7 Financial instruments 

Recognition: 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a residual 
interest of another entity. 

 

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is 
measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective 
interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or 
through the use of an allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility. 

 

A concessionary loan is a loan granted to or received by an entity on terms that are not market related. 
 

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge 
an obligation. 

 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
foreign exchange rates. 

 

Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from an entity’s statement of financial 
position. 

 

A derivative is a financial instrument or other contract with all three of the following characteristics: 
 Its value changes in response to the change in a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, 

foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of 
a non-financial variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract (sometimes called the ‘underlying’). 

 It requires no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than would be required for other types 
of contracts that would be expected to have a similar response to changes in market factors. 

 It is settled at a future date. 
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1.7 Financial instruments (continued) 
 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability (or group of 
financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The 
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of 
the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial 
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all contractual terms of the 
financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider future credit losses. The 
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective 
interest rate (see the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions), transaction costs, and all other premiums  
or discounts. There is a presumption that the cash flows and the expected life of a group of similar financial instruments can be 
estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases when it is not possible to reliably estimate the cash flows or the expected life of 
a financial instrument (or group of financial instruments), the entity shall use the contractual cash flows over the full contractual 
term of the financial instrument (or group of financial instruments). 

 

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in 
an arm’s length transaction. 

 

A financial asset is: 
 cash; 
 a residual interest of another entity; or 
 a contractual right to: 

- receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or 

- exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially 
favourable to the entity. 

 

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a 
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a 
debt instrument. 

 

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to: 
 deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or 
 exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity. 

 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market interest rates. 

 

Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by an entity in the event of difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial 
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. 

 

Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions. 

Loans payable are financial liabilities, other than short-term payables on normal credit terms. 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. 

 

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors 
specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the 
market. 

 

A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due. 
 

A residual interest is any contract that manifests an interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. A 
residual interest includes contributions from owners, which may be shown as: 

 equity instruments or similar forms of unitised capital; 
 a formal designation of a transfer of resources (or a class of such transfers) by the parties to the transaction as 

forming part of an entity’s net assets, either before the contribution occurs or at the time of the contribution; or 
 a formal agreement, in relation to the contribution, establishing or increasing an existing financial interest in the net 

assets of an entity. 
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1.7 Financial instruments (continued) 
 

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or 
financial liability. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the entity had not acquired, issued or disposed 
of the financial instrument. 

 

Financial instruments at amortised cost are non-derivative financial assets or non-derivative financial liabilities that have fixed 
or determinable payments, excluding those instruments that: 

 the entity designates at fair value at initial recognition; or 
 are held for trading. 

 

Financial instruments at cost are investments in residual interests that do not have a quoted market price in an active market, 
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured. 

 

Financial instruments at fair value comprise financial assets or financial liabilities that are: 
 derivatives; 

 contingent consideration of an acquirer in a transfer of functions between entities not under common control to which 
the Standard of GRAP on Transfer of Functions Between Entities Not Under Common Control (GRAP 106) applies 

 combined instruments that are designated at fair value; 
 instruments held for trading. A financial instrument is held for trading if: 

- it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near-term; or 

- on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for 
which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short term profit-taking; 
- non-derivative financial assets or financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments that are designated at 
fair value at initial recognition; and 
- financial instruments that do not meet the definition of financial instruments at amortised cost or financial 
instruments at cost. 

 

Classification 
 

The college has the following types of financial assets (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of 
financial position or in the notes thereto: 

 
`  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

Class Category 
Receivables from exchange transactions Financial asset measured at amortised cost 
Receivables from non-exchange transactions Financial asset measured at amortised cost 
Projects Financial asset measured at amortised cost 
Other financial assets Financial asset measured at fair value 
Cash and cash equivalents Financial asset measured at amortised cost 

 

The college has the following types of financial liabilities (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of 
financial position or in the notes thereto: 

 
`  

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

Class Category 
Projects Financial liability measured at amortised cost 
Payables from exchange transactions Financial liability measured at amortised cost 
Finance lease oblgation Financial liability measured at amortised cost 

 
Initial recognition 

 

The college recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the college becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

 

The college recognises financial assets using trade date accounting. 
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1.7 Financial instruments (continued) 
 

Initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities 
 

The college measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability. 

 

The college measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value [if subsequently measured at fair value]. 
 

The college first assesses whether the substance of a concessionary loan is in fact a loan. On initial recognition, the college 
analyses a concessionary loan into its component parts and accounts for each component separately. The college accounts for 
that part of a concessionary loan that is: 

 a social benefit in accordance with the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements, 
where it is the issuer of the loan; or 

 non-exchange revenue, in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions 
(Taxes and Transfers), where it is the recipient of the loan. 
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1.7 Financial instruments (continued) 
 

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities 
 

The college measures all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using the following categories: 
 Financial instruments at fair value. 
 Financial instruments at amortised cost. 
 Financial instruments at cost. 

 

All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review. 
 

Reclassification 
 

The college does not reclassify a financial instrument while it is issued or held unless it is: 
 combined instrument that is required to be measured at fair value; or 
 an investment in a residual interest that meets the requirements for reclassification. 

 

Where the college cannot reliably measure the fair value of an embedded derivative that has been separated from a host 
contract that is a financial instrument at a subsequent reporting date, it measures the combined instrument at fair value. This 
requires a reclassification of the instrument from amortised cost or cost to fair value. 

 

If fair value can no longer be measured reliably for an investment in a residual interest measured at fair value, the college 
reclassifies the investment from fair value to cost. The carrying amount at the date that fair value is no longer available 
becomes the cost. 

 

If a reliable measure becomes available for an investment in a residual interest for which a measure was previously not 
available, and the instrument would have been required to be measured at fair value, the entity reclassifies the instrument from 
cost to fair value. 

 

Gains and losses 
 

A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability measured at fair value is recognised 
in surplus or deficit. 

 

For financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss is recognised in surplus or deficit 
when the financial asset or financial liability is derecognised or impaired, or through the amortisation process. 

 

Impairment and uncollectibility of financial assets 
 

The college assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group 
of financial assets is impaired. 

 

Financial assets measured at amortised cost: 
 

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost has been incurred, the 
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated 
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original 
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced directly OR through the use of an allowance account. The 
amount of the loss is recognised in surplus or deficit. 

 

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an 
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed directly OR by 
adjusting an allowance account. The reversal does not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds what the 
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount 
of the reversal is recognised in surplus or deficit. 

 

Financial assets measured at cost: 
 

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an investment in a residual interest that is not 
measured at fair value because its fair value cannot be measured reliably, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as 
the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows 
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses are not reversed. 
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1.7 Financial instruments (continued) 

Derecognition 

Financial assets 

The college derecognises financial assets using trade date accounting. 

The college derecognises a financial asset only when: 
 the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are settled or waived; 
 the college transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset; or 
 the college, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, has 

transferred control of the asset to another party and the other party has the practical ability to sell the asset in its 
entirety to an unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to impose 
additional restrictions on the transfer. In this case, the college : 
- derecognise the asset; and 
- recognise separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer. 

 

The carrying amounts of the transferred asset are allocated between the rights or obligations retained and those transferred on 
the basis of their relative fair values at the transfer date. Newly created rights and obligations are measured at their fair values  
at that date. Any difference between the consideration received and the amounts recognised and derecognised is recognised in 
surplus or deficit in the period of the transfer. 

 

If the college transfers a financial asset in a transfer that qualifies for derecognition in its entirety and retains the right to service 
the financial asset for a fee, it recognises either a servicing asset or a servicing liability for that servicing contract. If the fee to 
be received is not expected to compensate the entity adequately for performing the servicing, a servicing liability for the 
servicing obligation is recognised at its fair value. If the fee to be received is expected to be more than adequate compensation 
for the servicing, a servicing asset is recognised for the servicing right at an amount determined on the basis of an allocation of 
the carrying amount of the larger financial asset. 

 

If, as a result of a transfer, a financial asset is derecognised in its entirety but the transfer results in the entity obtaining a new 
financial asset or assuming a new financial liability, or a servicing liability, the entity recognise the new financial asset, financial 
liability or servicing liability at fair value. 

 

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the 
consideration received is recognised in surplus or deficit. 

 

If the transferred asset is part of a larger financial asset and the part transferred qualifies for derecognition in its entirety, the 
previous carrying amount of the larger financial asset is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part 
that is derecognised, based on the relative fair values of those parts, on the date of the transfer. For this purpose, a retained 
servicing asset is treated as a part that continues to be recognised. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to  
the part derecognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part derecognised is recognised in surplus or deficit. 

 

If a transfer does not result in derecognition because the college has retained substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of the transferred asset, the college continues to recognise the transferred asset in its entirety and recognise a 
financial liability for the consideration received. In subsequent periods, the college recognises any revenue on the transferred 
asset and any expense incurred on the financial liability. Neither the asset, and the associated liability nor the revenue, and the 
associated expenses are offset. 

 

Financial liabilities 
 

The college removes a financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) from its statement of financial position when it is 
extinguished — i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, expires or waived. 

 

An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as 
having extinguished the original financial liability and a new financial liability is recognised. Similarly, a substantial modification 
of the terms of an existing financial liability or a part of it is accounted for as having extinguished the original financial liability 
and having recognised a new financial liability. 
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1.7 Financial instruments (continued) 
 

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of a financial liability) extinguished or transferred to 
another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in 
surplus or deficit. Any liabilities that are waived, forgiven or assumed by another college by way of a non-exchange transaction 
are accounted for in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions (Taxes and 
Transfers). 

 

Presentation 
 

Interest relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or expense in 
surplus or deficit. 

 

Dividends or similar distributions relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as 
revenue or expense in surplus or deficit. 

 

Losses and gains relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or 
expense in surplus or deficit. 

 

A financial asset and a financial liability are only offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when 
the college currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net   
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

 

In accounting for a transfer of a financial asset that does not qualify for derecognition, the college does not offset the 
transferred asset and the associated liability. 

 

1.8 Leases 
 

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is 
classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. 

 

When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the entity assesses the classification of each element separately. 
 

Finance leases - lessee 
 

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair value  
of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is 
included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation. 

 

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in the lease. 
 

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance 
charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of on the remaining balance 
of the liability. 

 

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. 
 

Operating leases - lessor 
 

Operating lease revenue is recognised as revenue on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
 

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging operating leases are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset 
and recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as the lease revenue. 

 

The aggregate cost of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental revenue over the lease term on a straight-line basis. 

The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis. 

Income for leases is disclosed under revenue in statement of financial performance. 
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1.8 Leases (continued) 

Operating leases - lessee 

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between 
the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability. 

 

1.9 Inventories 

Inventories are assets: 

- In the form of materials or supplies to be consumed in the production process and or, 
- In the form of materials or supplies to be consumed or distributed in the rendering of services and or, 
- Held for sale or distribution in the ordinary course of operations; or in the process of production for sale or distribution. 

 

Recognition: 

 

Inventories are recognised as an asset if: 
- It is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the entity;and 
- The cost of the inventories can be measured reliably. 

 

Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired through a non-exchange transaction, then their 
costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition. 

 

Subsequently inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 
 

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost where they are held for; 
 distribution at no charge or for a nominal charge; or 
 consumption in the production process of goods to be distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge. 

 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the estimated costs of completion 
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange or distribution. 

 

Current replacement cost is the cost the college incurs to acquire the asset on the reporting date. 
 

The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition. 

 

The cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable and goods or services produced and segregated for 
specific projects is assigned using specific identification of the individual costs. 

 

The cost of inventories is assigned using the weighted average cost formula. The same cost formula is used for all inventories 
having a similar nature and use to the college. 

 

Recognition as an Expense: 

 

When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in which the 
related revenue is recognised. If there is no related revenue, the expenses are recognised when the goods are distributed, or 
related services are rendered. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value or current replacement cost 
and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any 
reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value or current replacement cost, are 
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs. 

 

1.10 Impairment of cash-generating assets 
 

Cash-generating assets are assets used with the objective of generating a commercial return. Commercial return means that 
positive cash flows are expected to be significantly higher than the cost of the asset. 

 

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic recognition 
of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation (amortisation). 

 

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after deducting any 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon. 
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1.10 Impairment of cash-generating assets (continued) 
 

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets used with the objective of generating a commercial return that 
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of 
assets. 

 

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and income tax 
expense. 

 

Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life. 
 

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between 
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal. 

Recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. 

Useful life is either: 

 the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the college; or 
 the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the college. 

 

Identification 
 

When the carrying amount of a cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable amount, it is impaired. 
 

The college assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a cash-generating asset may be impaired. If 
any such indication exists, the college estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. 

 

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the college also tests a cash-generating intangible asset with an 
indefinite useful life or a cash-generating intangible asset not yet available for use for impairment annually by comparing its 
carrying amount with its recoverable amount. This impairment test is performed at the same time every year. If an intangible 
asset was initially recognised during the current reporting period, that intangible asset was tested for impairment before the end 
of the current reporting period. 

 

Value in use 
 

Value in use of a cash-generating asset is the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be derived from the 
continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. 

 

When estimating the value in use of an asset, the college estimates the future cash inflows and outflows to be derived from 
continuing use of the asset and from its ultimate disposal and the college applies the appropriate discount rate to those future 
cash flows. 

 

Basis for estimates of future cash flows 
 

In measuring value in use the college: 
 

 base cash flow projections on reasonable and supportable assumptions that represent management's best estimate 
of the range of economic conditions that will exist over the remaining useful life of the asset. Greater weight is given 
to external evidence; 

 base cash flow projections on the most recent approved financial budgets/forecasts, but excludes any estimated 
future cash inflows or outflows expected to arise from future restructuring's or from improving or enhancing the 
asset's performance. Projections based on these budgets/forecasts covers a maximum period of five years, unless a 
longer period can be justified; and 

 estimate cash flow projections beyond the period covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts by extrapolating the 
projections based on the budgets/forecasts using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an 
increasing rate can be justified. This growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, 
industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used, unless a 
higher rate can be justified. 
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1.10 Impairment of cash-generating assets (continued) 

Composition of estimates of future cash flows 

Estimates of future cash flows include: 

 projections of cash inflows from the continuing use of the asset; 

 projections of cash outflows that are necessarily incurred to generate the cash inflows from continuing use of the 
asset (including cash outflows to prepare the asset for use) and can be directly attributed, or allocated on a 
reasonable and consistent basis, to the asset; and 

 net cash flows, if any, to be received (or paid) for the disposal of the asset at the end of its useful life. 
 

Estimates of future cash flows exclude: 
 

 cash inflows or outflows from financing activities; and 
 income tax receipts or payments. 

 

The estimate of net cash flows to be received (or paid) for the disposal of an asset at the end of its useful life is the amount that 
the college expects to obtain from the disposal of the asset in an arm's length transaction between knowledgeable, willing 
parties, after deducting the estimated costs of disposal. 

 

Discount rate 
 

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money, represented by the 
current risk-free rate of interest and the risks specific to the asset for which the future cash flow estimates have not been 
adjusted. 

 

Recognition and measurement (individual asset) 
 

If the recoverable amount of a cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is 
reduced to its recoverable amount. This reduction is an impairment loss. 

 

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. 
 

Any impairment loss of a revalued cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation decrease. 
 

When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the cash-generating asset to which it 
relates, the college recognises a liability only to the extent that is a requirement in the Standard of GRAP. 

 

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the cash-generating asset is adjusted in 
future periods to allocate the cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic 
basis over its remaining useful life. 
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1.10 Impairment of cash-generating assets (continued) 

Cash-generating units 

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. If it is not 
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the college determines the recoverable amount of the 
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs (the asset's cash-generating unit). 

 

If an active market exists for the output produced by an asset or group of assets, that asset or group of assets is identified as a 
cash-generating unit, even if some or all of the output is used internally. If the cash inflows generated by any asset or cash- 
generating unit are affected by internal transfer pricing, the college use management's best estimate of future price(s) that 
could be achieved in arm's length transactions in estimating: 

 the future cash inflows used to determine the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use; and 

 the future cash outflows used to determine the value in use of any other assets or cash-generating units that are 
affected by the internal transfer pricing. 

 

Cash-generating units are identified consistently from period to period for the same asset or types of assets, unless a change is 
justified. 

 

The carrying amount of a cash-generating unit is determined on a basis consistent with the way the recoverable amount of the 
cash-generating unit is determined. 

 

An impairment loss is recognised for a cash-generating unit if the recoverable amount of the unit is less than the carrying 
amount of the unit. The impairment is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the cash-generating assets of the unit on a pro 
rata basis, based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. These reductions in carrying amounts are treated as 
impairment losses on individual assets. 

 

In allocating an impairment loss, the entity does not reduce the carrying amount of an asset below the highest of: 
 its fair value less costs to sell (if determinable); 
 its value in use (if determinable); and 
 zero. 

 

The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other 
cash-generating assets of the unit. 

 

Where a non-cash-generating asset contributes to a cash-generating unit, a proportion of the carrying amount of that non-cash- 
generating asset is allocated to the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit prior to estimation of the recoverable amount of 
the cash-generating unit. 
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1.10 Impairment of cash-generating assets (continued) 

Reversal of impairment loss 

The college assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior periods 
for a cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the entity estimates the 
recoverable amount of that asset. 

 

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a cash-generating asset is reversed if there has been a change in the 
estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The carrying 
amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. The increase is a reversal of an impairment loss. The increased 
carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would 
have been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior 
periods. 

 

A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. 

Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation increase. 

After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the cash-generating asset is 
adjusted in future periods to allocate the cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a 
systematic basis over its remaining useful life. 

 

A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit is allocated to the cash-generating assets of the unit pro rata with 
the carrying amounts of those assets. These increases in carrying amounts are treated as reversals of impairment losses for 
individual assets. No part of the amount of such a reversal is allocated to a non-cash-generating asset contributing service 
potential to a cash-generating unit. 

 

In allocating a reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit, the carrying amount of an asset is not increased above 
the lower of: 

 its recoverable amount (if determinable); and 

 the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss 
been recognised for the asset in prior periods. 

 

The amount of the reversal of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to 
the other assets of the unit. 

 

Redesignation 
 

The redesignation of assets from a cash-generating asset to a non-cash-generating asset or from a non-cash-generating asset 
to a cash-generating asset only occur when there is clear evidence that such a redesignation is appropriate. 

 

1.11 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets 
 

Cash-generating assets are assets used with the objective of generating a commercial return. Commercial return means that 
positive cash flows are expected to be significantly higher than the cost of the asset. 

 

Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets. 
 

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic recognition 
of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation (amortisation). 

 

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after deducting any 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon. 

 

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets managed with the objective of generating a commercial 
return that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or 
groups of assets. 

 

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and income tax 
expense. 

 

Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life. 
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1.11 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets (continued) 
 

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between 
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal. 

Recoverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash-generating asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. 

Useful life is either: 

 the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the college; or 
 the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the college. 

 

Identification 
 

When the carrying amount of a non-cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable service amount, it is impaired. 
 

The college assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a non-cash-generating asset may be impaired. 
If any such indication exists, the college estimates the recoverable service amount of the asset. 

 

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the entity also tests a non-cash-generating intangible asset with   
an indefinite useful life or a non-cash-generating intangible asset not yet available for use for impairment annually by comparing 
its carrying amount with its recoverable service amount. This impairment test is performed at the same time every year. If an 
intangible asset was initially recognised during the current reporting period, that intangible asset was tested for impairment 
before the end of the current reporting period. 

 

Value in use 
 

Value in use of non-cash-generating assets is the present value of the non-cash-generating assets remaining service potential. 
 

The present value of the remaining service potential of a non-cash-generating assets is determined using the following 
approach: 

 

Depreciated replacement cost approach 
 

The present value of the remaining service potential of a non-cash-generating asset is determined as the depreciated 
replacement cost of the asset. The replacement cost of an asset is the cost to replace the asset’s gross service potential. This 
cost is depreciated to reflect the asset in its used condition. An asset may be replaced either through reproduction (replication) 
of the existing asset or through replacement of its gross service potential. The depreciated replacement cost is measured as 
the current reproduction or replacement cost of the asset, whichever is lower, less accumulated depreciation calculated on the 
basis of such cost, to reflect the already consumed or expired service potential of the asset. 

 

The replacement cost and reproduction cost of an asset is determined on an “optimised” basis. The rationale is that the college 
would not replace or reproduce the asset with a like asset if the asset to be replaced or reproduced is an overdesigned or 
overcapacity asset. Overdesigned assets contain features which are unnecessary for the goods or services the asset provides. 
Overcapacity assets are assets that have a greater capacity than is necessary to meet the demand for goods or services the 
asset provides. The determination of the replacement cost or reproduction cost of an asset on an optimised basis thus reflects 
the service potential required of the asset. 

 

Restoration cost approach 
 

Restoration cost is the cost of restoring the service potential of an asset to its pre-impaired level. The present value of the 
remaining service potential of the asset is determined by subtracting the estimated restoration cost of the asset from the current 
cost of replacing the remaining service potential of the asset before impairment. The latter cost is determined as the  
depreciated reproduction or replacement cost of the asset, whichever is lower. 

 

Service units approach 
 

The present value of the remaining service potential of the asset is determined by reducing the current cost of the remaining 
service potential of the asset before impairment, to conform to the reduced number of service units expected from the asset in 
its impaired state. The current cost of replacing the remaining service potential of the asset before impairment is determined as 
the depreciated reproduction or replacement cost of the asset before impairment, whichever is lower. 
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1.11 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets (continued) 

Recognition and measurement 

If the recoverable service amount of a non-cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the 
asset is reduced to its recoverable service amount. This reduction is an impairment loss. 

 

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. 
 

Any impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation decrease. 
 

When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the non-cash-generating asset to 
which it relates, the college recognises a liability only to the extent that is a requirement in the Standards of GRAP. 

 

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating asset is 
adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), 
on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life. 

 

Reversal of an impairment loss 
 

The college assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior periods 
for a non-cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the college  
estimates the recoverable service amount of that asset. 

 

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a non-cash-generating asset is reversed if there has been a change in the 
estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable service amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The 
carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable service amount. The increase is a reversal of an impairment loss. 
The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the 
asset in prior periods. 

 

A reversal of an impairment loss for a non-cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. 

Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation increase. 

After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating asset is 
adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any),  
on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life. 

 

Redesignation 
 

The redesignation of assets from a cash-generating asset to a non-cash-generating asset or from a non-cash-generating asset 
to a cash-generating asset only occur when there is clear evidence that such a redesignation is appropriate. 

 

1.12 Employee benefits 
 

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service rendered by employees. 
 

A qualifying insurance policy is an insurance policy issued by an insurer that is not a related party (as defined in the Standard of 
GRAP on Related Party Disclosures) of the reporting entity, if the proceeds of the policy can be used only to pay or fund 
employee benefits under a defined benefit plan and are not available to the reporting entity’s own creditors (even in liquidation) 
and cannot be paid to the reporting entity, unless either: 

 the proceeds represent surplus assets that are not needed for the policy to meet all the related employee benefit 
obligations; or 

 the proceeds are returned to the reporting entity to reimburse it for employee benefits already paid. 
 

Termination benefits are employee benefits payable as a result of either: 
 an entity’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment before the normal retirement date; or 
 an employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits. 

 

Other long-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than post-employment benefits and termination benefits) that 
are not due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. 
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1.12 Employee benefits (continued) 
 

Vested employee benefits are employee benefits that are not conditional on future employment. 
 

Composite social security programmes are established by legislation and operate as multi-employer plans to provide post- 
employment benefits as well as to provide benefits that are not consideration in exchange for service rendered by employees. 

 

A constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions where by an established pattern of past practice, 
published policies or a sufficiently specific current statement, the entity has indicated to other parties that it will accept certain 
responsibilities and as a result, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties that it will discharge 
those responsibilities. 

 

Short-term employee benefits 
 

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due to be settled within twelve 
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. 

 

Short-term employee benefits include items such as: 
 wages, salaries and social security contributions; 

 short-term compensated absences (such as paid annual leave and paid sick leave) where the compensation for the 
absences is due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees 
render the related employee service; 

 bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable within twelve months after the end of the reporting 
period in which the employees render the related service; and 

 non-monetary benefits (for example, medical care, and free or subsidised goods or services such as housing, cars 
and cellphones) for current employees. 

 

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity recognises the undiscounted amount 
of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service: 

 as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the amount already paid exceeds the 
undiscounted amount of the benefits, the college recognises that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the extent 
that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund; and 

 as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset. 
 

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase 
their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. The college measures the expected 
cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount that the entity expects to pay as a result of the unused 
entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. 

 

The entity recognises the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related payments when the college has a present 
legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the obligation can 
be made. A present obligation exists when the entity has no realistic alternative but to make the payments. 

 

Post-employment benefits: Defined contribution plans 
 

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate 
entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient 
assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. 

 

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity recognises the contribution payable 
to a defined contribution plan in exchange for that service: 

 as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid 
exceeds the contribution due for service before the reporting date, an entity recognises that excess as an asset 
(prepaid expense) to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a 
cash refund; and 

 as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the contribution in the cost of an asset. 
 

Where contributions to a defined contribution plan do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the reporting 
period in which the employees render the related service, they are discounted. The rate used to discount reflects the time value 
of money. The currency and term of the financial instrument selected to reflect the time value of money is consistent with the 
currency and estimated term of the obligation. 
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1.12 Employee benefits (continued) 

DHET Management Fee 

In terms of the CET Act, the College is the employer of the non-funded, non-management personnel. All personnel appointed in 
funded posts and management personnel, defined in the CET Act as the Principal and Deputy Principals, have migrated to 
DHET and are DHET employees. 

 

Management personnel are remunerated from DHET and not from College funds, and this constitutes services in kind which  
are recognised at the cash value of the services to the State. The income is recognised as "Services in kind" as part of revenue 
from non-exchange transactions, and the expense is recognised as "DHET management fee". 

. 

 

1.13 Provisions and contingencies 
 

Provisions are recognised when: 
 the college has a present obligation as a result of a past event; 

 it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to 
settle the obligation; and 

 a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation. 
 

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present obligation at the 
reporting date. 

 

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures expected 
to be required to settle the obligation. 

 

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to 
the liability. 

 

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the 
reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the college 
settles the obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement does 
not exceed the amount of the provision. 

 

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is 
no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to settle the 
obligation. 

 

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This 
increase is recognised as an interest expense. 

 

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised. 

Provisions are not recognised for future operating surplus. 

If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised and 
measured as a provision. 

 

A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when an entity: 
 

 has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring, identifying at least: 
- the activity/operating unit or part of an activity/operating unit concerned; 
- the principal locations affected; 
- the location, function, and approximate number of employees who will be compensated for services being 
terminated; 
- the expenditures that will be undertaken; and 
- when the plan will be implemented; and 

 has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement that 
plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it. 
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1.13 Provisions and contingencies (continued) 
 

A restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those that are both: 
 

 necessarily entailed by the restructuring; and 
 not associated with the ongoing activities of the college 

 

No obligation arises as a consequence of the sale or transfer of an operation until the college is committed to the sale or 
transfer, that is, there is a binding arrangement. 

 

After their initial recognition contingent liabilities recognised in entity combinations that are recognised separately are 
subsequently measured at the higher of: 

 the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and 
 the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation. 

 

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 35. 
 

A contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of an outfloe of resources embodying economic benefits or service 
potential is remote. Unless the possibilty of any outflow in settlement is remote, the College discloses for each class of 
contingent liability at the reporting date a brief description of the nature of the contingent liability and, where practical: 
- an estimate of its financial effect 
- an indication of the uncertainties relating to the amount or timing of any outflow; and 
- the possibility of any reimbursement. 

 

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a 
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a 
debt instrument. 

 

Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions. 
 

The college recognises a provision for financial guarantees and loan commitments when it is probable that an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits and service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of 
the obligation can be made. 

 

Determining whether an outflow of resources is probable in relation to financial guarantees requires judgement. Indications that 
an outflow of resources may be probable are: 

 

 financial difficulty of the debtor; 
 defaults or delinquencies in interest and capital repayments by the debtor; 

 breaches of the terms of the debt instrument that result in it being payable earlier than the agreed term and the 
ability of the debtor to settle its obligation on the amended terms; and 

 a decline in prevailing economic circumstances (e.g. high interest rates, inflation and unemployment) that impact on 
the ability of entities to repay their obligations. 

 

Where a fee is received by the college for issuing a financial guarantee and/or where a fee is charged on loan commitments, it 
is considered in determining the best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at reporting date. Where a fee is 
charged and the college considers that an outflow of economic resources is probable, an college recognises the obligation at 
the higher of: 

 

 the amount determined using in the Standard of GRAP on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; 
and 

 the amount of the fee initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance 
with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions. 
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1.13 Provisions and contingencies (continued) 

Levies 

A levy is an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits that is imposed by governments on entities in accordance with 
legislation (i.e. laws and/or regulations), other than: 

 

 those outflows of resources that are within the scope of other Standards, and 
 fines or other penalties that are imposed for breaches of the legislation. 

 

Government refers to government, government agencies and similar bodies whether local, national or international. 
 

The obligating event that gives rise to a liability to pay a levy is the activity that triggers the payment of the levy, as identified by 
the legislation. 

 

The college does not have a constructive obligation to pay a levy that will be triggered by operating in a future period as a result 
of the college being economically compelled to continue to operate in that future period. The preparation of financial statements 
under the going concern assumption does not imply that the college has a present obligation to pay a levy that will be triggered 
by operating in a future period. 

 

The liability to pay a levy is recognised progressively if the obligating event occurs over a period of time (i.e. if the activity that 
triggers the payment of the levy, as identified by the legislation, occurs over a period of time). 

 

If an obligation to pay a levy is triggered when a minimum threshold is reached, the corresponding liability is recognised when 
that minimum threshold is reached. 

 

The college recognises an asset if it has prepaid a levy but does not yet have a present obligation to pay that levy. 
 

1.14 Commitments 
 

Items are classified as commitments when an entity has committed itself to future transactions that will normally result in the 
outflow of cash. 

 

Disclosures are required in respect of unrecognised contractual commitments. 
 

Commitments for which disclosure is necessary to achieve a fair presentation should be disclosed in a note to the financial 
statements, if both the following criteria are met: 

 

 Contracts should be non-cancellable or only cancellable at significant cost (for example, contracts for computer or 
building maintenance services); and 

 Contracts should relate to something other than the routine, steady, state business of the entity – therefore salary 
commitments relating to employment contracts or social security benefit commitments are excluded. 

 

1.15 Revenue from exchange transactions 
 

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in an 
increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners. 

 

An exchange transaction is one in which the municipality receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly 
gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange. 

 

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in 
an arm’s length transaction. 

 

Measurement 
 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates. 
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1.15 Revenue from exchange transactions (continued) 

Sale of goods 

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied: 
 

 the college has transferred to the purchaser the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods; 

 the college retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership 
nor effective control over the goods sold; 

 the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; 

 it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the 
college; and 

 the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably. 
 

Rendering of services 
 

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with 
the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The outcome 
of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied: 

 

 the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; 
 it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the 

college; 
 the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and 
 the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably. 

 

When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, revenue is recognised on a 
straight line basis over the specified time frame unless there is evidence that some other method better represents the stage of 
completion. When a specific act is much more significant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is postponed until the 
significant act is executed. 

 

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised 
only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable. 

 

Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. Stage of 
completion is determined by surveys of work performed. 

 

Interest, royalties and dividends 
 

Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets yielding interest, royalties and dividends or similar distributions is 
recognised when: 

 

 It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the college, 
and 

 The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably. 
 

Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method. 
 

Royalties are recognised as they are earned in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreements. 

Tuition fees are recognised as revenue over the period during which the service is performed. 

1.16 Revenue from non-exchange transactions 
 

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by a college, which 
represents an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners. 

 

Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and 
directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of cash, goods, services, or use of assets) to another entity in 
exchange. 
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1.16 Revenue from non-exchange transactions (continued) 
 

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, a college 
either receives value from another college without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value to 
another college without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange. 

 

Recognition 
 

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to the extent 
that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow. 

 

As the college satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non-exchange 
transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an amount of 
revenue equal to that reduction. 

 

Measurement 
 

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the college. 
 

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the college recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent to the 
amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a liability. 
Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the amount required to settle the 
obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a liability is 
subsequently reduced, because the taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the liabil ity is 
recognised as revenue. 

 

Transfers 
 

Apart from Services in kind, which are not recognised, the college recognises an asset in respect of transfers when the 
transferred resources meet the definition of an asset and satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset. 

 

The college recognises an asset in respect of transfers when the transferred resources meet the definition of an asset and 
satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset. 

 

Transferred assets are measured at their fair value as at the date of acquisition. 
 

Gifts and donations, including goods in-kind 
 

Gifts and donations, including goods in kind, are recognised as assets and revenue when it is probable that the future 
economic benefits or service potential will flow to the college and the fair value of the assets can be measured reliably. 

 

Management personnel are remunerated from DHET and not from college funds, and this constitutes services in kind which are 
recognised at the cash value of the services to the State. The income is recognised as "Services in kind" as part of revenue 
from non-exchange transactions, and the expense is recognised as "DHET management fee". 

 

1.17 Borrowing costs 
 

Borrowing costs are interest and other expenses incurred by an entity in connection with the borrowing of funds. 

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

1.18 Comparative figures 
 

When the presentation or classification of items in the annual financial statements is amended due to better presentation   
and/or better understandability and/or comparability and/or due to the implementation of a new or amended standard, prior 
period comparative amounts are reclassified. Where accounting errors have been identified in the current year ,the correction is 
made retrospectively as far as is practicable,and the prior year comparatives are restated accordingly .Where there has been a 
change in accounting policy in the current year,the adjustment is made retrospectively as far as is practicable,and the prior year 
comparatives are restated accordingly. 
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1.19 Segment Reporting 
 

The college does not do segment reporting of its management or financial accounts. As such the college believes GRAP 18 
Segment reporting is not applicable to the college for these financial statements. 

 

1.20 Related parties 
 

A related party is a person or an entity with the ability to control or jointly control the other party, or exercise significant influence 
over the other party, or vice versa, or an entity that is subject to common control, or joint control. In considering each possible 
related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship, and not merely the legal form. 

 

Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. 
 

Related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the reporting entity and a related party, 
regardless of whether a price is charged. 

 

Significant influence may be exercised in several ways, usually by representation on the governing body but also, for example, 
by participation in the policy-making process, material transactions between entities within an economic entity, interchange of 
managerial personnel or dependence on technical information. 

 

Significant influence may be gained by an ownership interest, statue or agreement or otherwise. With regard to an ownership 
interest, significant influence is presumed in accordance with legislation, in instances where they are required to perform such 
functions. 

 

Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the college, including those 
charged with the governance of the college in accordance with legislation, in instances where they are required to perform such 
functions. 

 

Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be expected to influence, or be 
influenced by, that management in their dealings with the college. 

 

1.21 Events after reporting date 
 

Events after reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reporting date and the 
date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified: 

 those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the reporting date); 
and 

 those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events after the reporting 
date). 

 

The college will adjust the amount recognised in the financial statements to reflect adjusting events after the reporting date 
once the event occurred. 

 

The college will disclose the nature of the event and an estimate of its financial effect or a statement that such estimate cannot 
be made in respect of all material non-adjusting events, where non-disclosure could influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of the financial statements. 

 

1.22 Projects 
 

By nature, thereof, projects are funding obtained from external parties to perform certain services and incur related expenditure 
to meet deliverables as set out in the Memorandum of Understanding between the College and such external parties. 

 

Revenue received and expenses incurred in respect of specific projects are allocated to projected-related income and 
expenditure accounts.The profit or loss on such projects are closed-off to the project balance in the statement of financial 
position at the end of each period as an asset or liability,depending on the nature thereof,to be accumulated in the future 
periods until such date that all deliverables relating to such project is met. 

 

Upon completion of the project with relation to all deliverables met in accordance with the Memorandum of Understanding, the 
cumulative profit or loss on such project is circulated through the statement of financial performance as profit or loss on projects 
for the year under review. 
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1.22 Projects (continued) 
 

Project balances as at year-end are further categorised as current or non-current assets or liabilities based on the expected 
completion date of the project as set out in the Memorandum of Understanding. If however the expected completion date of the 
project has already passed, but not all deliverables have been met as of yet, it will be classified as a current asset or liability. 
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Figures in Rand 2019 2018 

 
2. Property, plant and equipment  

   2019  2018 

  Cost / Accumulated Carrying value Cost / Accumulated Carrying value 
  Valuation depreciation Valuation depreciation 
   and  and 
   accumulated  accumulated 

   impairment  impairment 

Land 22,674,153 (612,028) 22,062,125 22,674,153 (612,028) 22,062,125 

Buildings 105,093,912 (23,002,323) 82,091,589 104,565,477 (19,342,580) 85,222,897 
Furniture and fixtures 8,449,636 (6,603,072) 1,846,564 8,049,707 (5,530,123) 2,519,584 
Motor vehicles 8,019,296 (4,789,384) 3,229,912 7,092,043 (3,961,531) 3,130,512 
IT equipment 22,905,369 (17,730,138) 5,175,231 22,194,052 (13,513,005) 8,681,047 
Work in Progress - IT Equipment 4,131,540 - 4,131,540 2,940,169 - 2,940,169 
Other Equipment 22,688,496 (18,461,113) 4,227,383 21,448,307 (15,792,317) 5,655,990 
Training Equipment (Small items) 9,145,045 (9,139,423) 5,622 8,001,216 (7,976,911) 24,305 
Training Equipment 20,443,308 (12,978,959) 7,464,349 17,379,087 (10,861,235) 6,517,852 
Furniture and Fixtures (Small items) 19,405,208 (19,377,159) 28,049 18,710,056 (18,638,773) 71,283 
Other Equipment (Small items) 4,983,703 (4,980,791) 2,912 4,873,210 (4,856,269) 16,941 
IT Equipment (Small items) 10,411,691 (10,407,196) 4,495 9,852,411 (9,648,285) 204,126 
Work in Progress - Buildings 1,509,206 - 1,509,206 - - - 

Finance Lease Assets 2,154,393 (2,119,118) 35,275 2,154,393 (1,696,189) 458,204 

Total 262,014,956 (130,200,704) 131,814,252 249,934,281 (112,429,246) 137,505,035 
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Figures in Rand 

 

2. Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2019 

Opening 
balance 

Additions Disposals Transfers Reassessmen Depreciation 
t Movement 

Impairment 
loss 

Impairment 
reversal 

Total 

Land 22,062,125 - - - - - - - 22,062,125 

Buildings 85,222,897 528,435 - - - (3,659,743) - - 82,091,589 
Furniture and fixtures 2,519,584 412,918 (3,497) - - (774,465) (307,976) - 1,846,564 
Motor vehicles 3,130,512 1,240,253 (120,431) - - (565,247) (455,175) - 3,229,912 
IT equipment 8,681,047 796,967 (21,945) - - (3,229,636) (1,051,202) - 5,175,231 
Work in Progress - IT Equipment 2,940,169 1,297,686 - (106,315) - - - - 4,131,540 
Other Equipment 5,655,990 1,459,449 (129,374) - - (2,078,392) (680,290) - 4,227,383 
Training Equipment (Small items) 24,305 1,196,230 (51) - - (1,214,884) - 22 5,622 
Training Equipment 6,517,852 3,697,010 (441,506) - - (1,511,292) (797,715) - 7,464,349 
Furniture and Fixtures (Small items) 71,283 758,897 (54) - - (802,133) - 56 28,049 
Other Equipment (Small items) 16,941 110,493 - - - (124,524) - 2 2,912 
IT Equipment (Small items) 204,126 571,996 (5) - - (767,404) (4,238) 20 4,495 
Work in Progress - Buildings - 1,509,206 - - - - - - 1,509,206 

Finance Lease Assets 458,204 - - - 172 (423,101) - - 35,275 

 137,505,035 13,579,540 (716,863) (106,315) 172 (15,150,821) (3,296,596) 100 131,814,252 
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Figures in Rand 

 

2. Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2018 

Opening 
balance 

Additions Prior Period 
Error 

Disposals Transfers Reassessmen Depreciation 
t Movement 

Impairment 
loss 

Total 

Land 18,524,775 3,537,350 - - - - - - 22,062,125 

Buildings 83,658,276 5,116,328 - - - - (3,551,707) - 85,222,897 
Furniture and fixtures 2,943,508 653,792 - - - - (863,604) (214,112) 2,519,584 
Motor vehicles 3,218,386 846,636 - (169,904) - - (557,786) (206,820) 3,130,512 
IT equipment 10,556,635 1,685,055 - (16,777) - - (3,037,845) (506,021) 8,681,047 
Work in Progress - IT Equipment 3,566,762 2,940,169 (3,566,762) - - - - - 2,940,169 
Other Equipment 8,105,300 940,248 - - - - (2,613,229) (776,329) 5,655,990 
Training Equipment (Small items) 29,708 100,967 - (1) - - (100,712) (5,657) 24,305 
Training Equipment 8,592,716 327,644 - - - - (1,545,136) (857,372) 6,517,852 
Furniture and Fixtures (Small items) 72,590 528,942 - - - - (528,381) (1,868) 71,283 
Other Equipment (Small items) 18,094 72,782 - (3) - - (72,735) (1,197) 16,941 
IT Equipment (Small items) 204,375 246,686 - - - - (246,544) (391) 204,126 
Work in Progress - Buildings 872,642 3,879,799 - - (4,752,441) - - - - 

Finance Lease Assets 1,066,835 - - - - 1,211 (609,842) - 458,204 

 141,430,602 20,876,398 (3,566,762) (186,685) (4,752,441) 1,211 (13,727,521) (2,569,767) 137,505,035 

 
Pledged as security 

         

No assets have been pledged as security. 
         

A register is available at head office. 
         

 

Assets subject to finance lease (Net carrying amount) 
   

Finance Lease Assets 35,275 458,204 
 

 35,275 458,204  
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Figures in Rand 

 
3. Intangible assets  

   2019  2018 

  Cost / 
Valuation 

Accumulated Carrying value 
amortisation 

and  
accumulated 
impairment 

Cost / 
Valuation 

Accumulated Carrying value 
amortisation 

and  
accumulated 
impairment 

Copy Rights 941,886 (341,697) 600,189 700,886 (242,661) 458,225 

Total 941,886 (341,697) 600,189 700,886 (242,661) 458,225 

 
Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2019 

      

 

 
Copy Rights 

  
Opening 
balance 

458,225 

Additions 

 

241,000 

Amortisation 

 

(99,036) 

Total 

 

600,189 

   458,225 241,000 (99,036) 600,189 

 
Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2018 

      

 

 
Copy Rights 

  
Opening 
balance 

253,410 

Additions 

 

276,530 

Amortisation 

 

(71,715) 

Total 

 

458,225 

   253,410 276,530 (71,715) 458,225 

 
Pledged as security 

      

Intangible assets have not been pledged as security: 
      

Restricted title 
      

No assets title's are restricted:       
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Figures in Rand 2019 2018 

4. Projects 

 
Projects  

Non-Current Assets 31,736 - 
Current Assets 2,897,899 1,702,861 
Non-Current Liabilities (338,820) (3,720,823) 

Current Liabilities 
Terms and conditions 

(26,663,193) (31,442,242) 

 (24,072,378) (33,460,204) 

 
Non-current assets 

 
31,736 

 
- 

Current assets 2,897,899 1,702,861 
Non-current liabilities (338,820) (3,720,823) 

Current liabilities (26,663,193) (31,442,242) 

 (24,072,378) (33,460,204) 

 
5. Other financial assets 

  

Designated at fair value 
Nedbank Fixed Deposit - (110/440317/48) 

 
20,000,000 

 
20,802,192 

Interest rate: 8,48% 

Term of Deposit: 180 Days 
Effective date: 07 December 2018 
Maturity date: 07 June 2019 
Nedbank Fixed Deposit - (03/7881085347/000030) 

 
 
 

20,802,192 

 
 
 

20,802,192 

Interest rate: 8,48% 

Term of Deposit: 180 Days 
Effective date: 30 November 2018 
Maturity date: 30 May 2019 
Nedbank Fixed Deposit - (110/440317/49) 

 
 
 

40,000,000 

 
 
 

40,000,000 

Interest rate: 8,21% 
Term of Deposit: 180 Days 
Effective date: 23 July 2018 
Maturity date: 23 January 2019 
Nedbank Fixed Deposit - (110/440317/46) 

 
 
 

10,000,000 

 
 
 

10,403,288 

Interest rate: 8,48% 

Term of Deposit: 180 Days 
Effective date: 30 November 2018 
Maturity date: 30 May 2019 
Nedbank Fixed Deposit - (110/440317/45) 

 
 
 

8,500,000 

 
 
 

8,500,000 

Interest rate: 8,25% 
Term of Deposit: 180 Days 
Effective date: 9 October 2018 
Maturity date: 9 April 2019 

  

 99,302,192 100,507,672 
   

Total other financial assets 99,302,192 100,507,672 

 
Current assets 
Designated at fair value 

 
 

99,302,192 

 
 
100,507,672 

Total Current Assets at Fair Value 99,302,192 100,507,672 

 
6. Inventories 

  

Consumable stores 16,190,125 9,502,157 

Total Inventories 16,190,125 9,502,157 
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7. Receivables from exchange transactions 

 
Student Debtors 37,472,603 21,553,885 
Other Receivables - Other Debtors 8,140,501 5,572,032 
Prepaid expenses 20,145 21,768 
Employee Debtors 131,107 167,733 
Accrued Income 4,294,612 2,443,129 

50,058,968 29,758,547 
 

 

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of trade and other receivables 

 
Opening Balance (87,137,924) (132,502,220) 
Allowance for impairment - movement (14,696,987) 45,364,296 

Total provision for impairment (101,834,911) (87,137,924) 
 

 

8. Receivables from non-exchange transactions 

 
Government grants and subsidies 61,771,862 40,017,593 

61,771,862 40,017,593 
 

 

Non-current assets - - 
Current assets 61,771,862 40,017,593 

61,771,862 40,017,593 
 

 

Receivables from non-exchange transactions pledged as security 
 

No receivables were pledged as security. 
 

Credit quality of receivables from non-exchange transactions 
 

The credit quality of other receivables from non-exchange transactions that are neither past nor due nor impaired can be 
assessed by reference to external credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty default rates. 

 

9. Trade and Other Receivable from Exchange Transactions 

 
Gross balances 
Student Debtors 

 
133,836,659 

 
108,772,580 

Other Debtors - Employee 886,640 579,071 
Other Debtors - Projects 5,897,501 10,054,338 

Other Debtors - Other 1,884,735 1,363,202 

Total Gross Balances 142,505,535 120,769,191 

 
Less: Allowance for impairment 
Student Debtors 

 
 

(96,364,056) 

 
 

(80,743,330) 
Other Debtors - Employee (755,533) (420,116) 
Other Debtors - Projects (3,282,997) (4,620,476) 

Other Debtors - Other (1,432,325) (1,354,002) 

Total Allowances for Impairment (101,834,911) (87,137,924) 

 
Net balance 
Student Debtors 

 
 

37,397,360 

 
 

28,029,250 
Other Debtors - Employee 131,107 158,954 
Other Debtors - Projects 2,614,504 5,433,863 

Other Debtors - Other 452,411 9,200 

Total Net Balances 40,595,382 33,631,267 
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9. Trade and Other Receivable from Exchange Transactions (continued) 

 
Included in above is receivables from exchange transactions 
Student Debtors 

 
37,397,360 

 
28,029,250 

Other Debtors - Employee 131,107 158,954 
Other Debtors - Projects 2,614,504 5,433,863 

Other Debtors - Other 452,411 9,200 

Total Receivables from exchange transactions 40,595,382 33,631,267 

   

Net balance 40,595,382 33,631,267 

 
Student Debtors 
Current (0 -30 days) 

 
 

- 

 
 

- 
31 - 60 days 1,581,388 2,625,988 
61 - 90 days 21,378,980 25,591,629 
91 - 180 days 96,565,409 80,554,963 
181 - 365 days - - 

> 365 days 14,310,882 - 

Total Student Debtors as per Aging 133,836,659 108,772,580 

 
Other Debtors - Employee 
Current (0 -30 days) 

 
 

119,136 

 
 

180,646 
31 - 60 days - (16,229) 
61 - 90 days 11,959 (800) 
91 - 180 days 4,898 (10,674) 
181 - 365 days 2,211 16,054 

> 365 days 748,436 410,073 

Total Other Debtors - Employee as per Aging 886,640 579,070 

 
Other Debtors - Projects 
Current (0 -30 days) 

 
 

- 

 
 

250,000 
31 - 60 days 135,850 443,300 
61 - 90 days - - 
91 - 180 days 2,949,539 6,239,100 
181 - 365 days 66,000 134,550 

> 365 days 2,746,112 2,987,388 

Total Other Debtors - Projects as per Aging 5,897,501 10,054,338 

 
Other Debtors - Other 
Current (0 -30 days) 

 
 

439,311 

 
 

- 
31 - 60 days 4,750 - 
61 - 90 days 7,000 - 
91 - 180 days - - 
181 - 365 days 5,400 2,200 

> 365 days 1,428,725 1,351,802 

Total Other Debtors - Other as per Aging 1,885,186 1,354,002 

 

 
10. Cash and cash equivalents 

  

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:   
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10. Cash and cash equivalents (continued) 

  

Cash on hand 20,000 20,000 
Bank balances 124,841,655 182,686,380 

Short-term deposits 158,668,478 51,389,005 

 283,530,133 234,095,385 

 
Current assets 

 
283,530,133 

 
234,095,385 

Current liabilities - - 

 283,530,133 234,095,385 

 
11. Finance lease obligation 

  

Minimum lease payments due 
- within one year 

 
(41,080) 

 
(492,960) 

- in second to fifth year inclusive - (41,080) 

- lease Reassessment - (Increase) / Decrease in Finance Lease Liability - 172 

 (41,080) (533,868) 

less: future finance charges 340 30,440 

Present value of minimum lease payments (40,740) (503,428) 

 
Present value of minimum lease payments due 
- within one year 

 
 

(40,740) 

 
 

(462,859) 
- in second to fifth year inclusive - (40,589) 

- later than five years - - 

 (40,740) (503,448) 

 
Non-current liabilities 

 
- 

 
40,569 

Current liabilities 40,740 462,859 

 40,740 503,428 
 

GRAP 13 states that the lessee should utilise the rate implicit in the lease to calculate the present value of the minimum lease 
payments. However, if it is impractical to calculate or determine the implicit rate in the lease, the lessee may utilise the 
incremental borrowing rate. 

 

The College utilises finance leases for photocopy machines from third parties and are therefore the lessee in the finance lease. 
 

It is impracticle to determine the rate implicit in the lease for the College and therefore the incremental borrowing rate will be 
utilised. The incremental borrowing rate is the prime borrowing rate of South Africa. 

 

Due to the prime borrowing rate continuously changing on an monthly basis, the present value of minimum lease payments will 
be recalculated when the interest rate changes and the difference will be a lease reassessment adjustment. The lease 
reassessment adjustement will be accounted for, by adjusting the finance lease asset and finance lease liability with the lease 
reassessment adjustment. 

 

The average lease term was 3 years and the average effective borrowing rate was 10% (2018: 10%). 
 

Interest rates are linked to prime at the contract date. All leases have fixed repayments and no arrangements have been 
entered into for contingent rent. 

 

The fair value of finance lease liabilities approximates their carrying amounts 
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12. Unspent conditional grants and receipts 

   

Unspent conditional grants and receipts comprises of: 
   

Unspent conditional grants and receipts 
DHET - Programme Funding: Missing Middle Students - Unspent Conditional Grant 

  
1,463,480 

 
1,463,480 

DHET: COS - Unspent Conditional Grant  3,371,788 6,526,042 

NSF: COS - Unspent Conditional Grant  2,291,895 - 

  7,127,163 7,989,522 

 
Movement during the year 

   

Balance at the beginning of the year 
 

7,989,522 5,703,000 
Additions during the year  7,873,079 6,526,042 

Income recognition during the year  (8,735,438) (4,239,520) 

  7,127,163 7,989,522 

 
Non-current liabilities 
Current liabilities 

  
- 

7,127,163 

 
- 

7,989,522 

  7,127,163 7,989,522 

 
13. Provisions 

   

Reconciliation of provisions - 2019 
   

 
 

 
Provisions - Old Mutual Provident Fund 

Opening 
Balance 

 

1,306,498 

Utilised 
during the 

year 
(765,412) 

Total 

 
 

541,086 

 
Reconciliation of provisions - 2018 

     

 
 

 
Provision - GEPF 

Opening 
Balance 

 
1,133,454 

Additions 

 
 

- 

Utilised 
during the 

year 
- 

Reversed 
during the 

year 
(1,133,454) 

Total 

 
 

- 

Provisions - Old Mutual Provident Fund 4,151,455 907,974 (3,752,931) - 1,306,498 

 5,284,909 907,974 (3,752,931) (1,133,454) 1,306,498 
 

Old Mutual Provident Fund 
% used: 3.5% 

ORBIT TVET College contributed 10% to Old Mutual Provident Fund for employees previously appointed by Council. All 
these employees migrated to DHET during a Function Shift Transfer during 2015 and this Fund was therefore dissolved. 
Subsequently employees submitted the matter to Dispute Resolution relating to the shortfall in Employer contributions and 
requested an additional refund to Employees to the value of 4% of pensionable earnings. ORBIT TVET College contributed 
in accordance to GEPF 13% on behalf of state employees and in comparison determined a shortfall of 3% contributed to 
Old Mutual Provident Fund. ORBIT TVET College then estimates a probable settlement at 3.5% of pensionable earnings 
calculated based on actual contributions paid. 
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14. Payables from exchange transactions 

  

Trade payables 1 - 
NSFAS - Liability 46,377,269 50,382,795 
Other Payables 26,461,251 4,557,990 
Payroll Accruals 1,182,842 2,058,150 
Accrued leave pay 207,164 130,388 
Accrued Expenditure 3,464,633 3,477,170 
Accrued Expenditure: Council 68,432 53,833 
Accrued expenditure: NSF Creditor - 474,330 
CET Procurement - 4,559,705 

PED Creditor 3,056,036 3,056,036 

 80,817,628 68,750,397 

 
15. Revenue 

  

Tuition and Related Fees 67,602,083 60,801,056 
Rental of facilities and equipment 470,486 424,893 
Project Income 17,603,848 29,452,584 
Business Unit Income 196,900 86,007 
Student Bad Debt Recovered 23,491 - 
Prescription Revenue - (274,945) 
Interest received - investment 22,354,238 12,955,634 
Government grants & subsidies 263,826,907 289,770,966 
Public contributions and donations 62,540 490,846 

Insurance Claim 74,620 8,830 

 372,215,113 393,715,871 

 
The amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services 
are as follows: 
Tuition and Related Fees 

 
 
 

67,602,083 

 
 
 

60,801,056 
Rental of facilities and equipment 470,486 424,893 
Project Income 17,603,848 29,452,584 
Business Unit Income 196,900 86,007 
Student Bad Debt Recovered 23,491 - 
Prescription Revenue Reversal - (274,945) 

Interest received - investment 22,354,238 12,955,634 

 108,251,046 103,445,229 

 
The amount included in revenue arising from non-exchange transactions is as 
follows: 
Taxation revenue 
Transfer revenue 
Government grants & subsidies 

 
 
 
 

263,826,907 

 
 
 
 

289,770,966 
Public contributions and donations 62,540 490,846 

Insurance Claim Received 74,620 8,830 

 263,964,067 290,270,642 



ORBIT TVET COLLEGE 
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended December 2019 

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements 

 

158  

 

Figures in Rand 2019 2018 

 
16. Tuition and Related Fees 

  

Tuition Fees - NSFAS Bursaries (Report 191) 20,342,292 18,770,043 
Residential Fees 5,493,767 4,599,600 
Tuition Fees - NSFAS Bursaires (NCV) 39,425,414 34,978,413 
Tuition Fees - Skill Occupational 806,910 657,620 
Examination Fees 1,106,500 902,880 

Tuition Fees - Pre-Vocational Learning 427,200 892,500 

 67,602,083 60,801,056 

 
17. Rental of facilities and equipment 

  

Premises 
Venue hire 

 
151,865 

 
193,429 

Housing Rental Income 318,621 231,464 

 470,486 424,893 
 

Included in the above rentals are operating lease rentals at straight-lined amoun as well as contingent rentals. 

 
 

18. Project Income  

Project Income 17,286,024 29,451,676 

Project Interest 317,824 908 

 17,603,848 29,452,584 

 
19. Business Unit Income 

  

Business Unit Income 194,500 85,957 

Tender Document Income 2,400 50 

 196,900 86,007 

 
20. Lease rentals on operating lease 

  

Equipment 
Contractual amounts 

 
433,620 

 
163,430 

 433,620 163,430 

 
21. Investment revenue 

  

Interest revenue 
Bank 

 
13,930,773 

 
5,197,113 

Investments 8,423,465 7,758,521 

 22,354,238 12,955,634 
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22. Government grants and subsidies 

  

Operating grants 
  

DHET PERSAL Allocation 170,329,689 157,764,766 
DHET Programme Funding 67,030,057 114,261,200 
DHET CIEG Revenue 20,600,596 17,745,000 

NSF COS Revenue 5,866,565 - 

 263,826,907 289,770,966 

 
Conditional and Unconditional 

  

Included in above are the following grants and subsidies received: 
  

Conditional grants received 7,127,163 7,989,522 

Unconditional grants received 20,600,596 17,745,000 

 27,727,759 25,734,522 

 
DHET - Programme Funding: Missing Middle Students - Unspent Conditional Grant 

  

Balance unspent at beginning of year 1,463,480 5,703,000 
Current-year receipts - - 

Conditions met - transferred to revenue - (4,239,520) 

 1,463,480 1,463,480 

 
DHET: COS - Unspent Conditional Grant 

  

Balance unspent at beginning of year 6,526,042 6,526,042 

Current-year receipts (3,154,254) - 

 3,371,788 6,526,042 

 
Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 12). 

  

Provide explanations of conditions still to be met and other relevant information. 
  

NSF: COS - Unspent Conditional Grant 
  

Current-year receipts 7,873,079 - 

Conditions met - transferred to revenue (5,581,184) - 

 2,291,895 - 

 
DHET CIEG Revenue 

  

Total CIEG funding recieved from the Department of Higher Education and Training 38,345,596 17,745,000 

Plus: Interest received on the CIEG dedicated bank account 1,044,804 - 

Total CIEG funding received 39,390,400 - 
Less: Bank / Finance charges (8,532) (303) 

Less: Expenditure paid in terms of apporved work package approvals issued by the 
Department of Higher Education and Training 

- - 

Total CIEG funds per dedicated CIEG bank account 39,381,868 - 

Less: Committed expenditure not yet paid in terms approved work package approvals 
issued by the Department of Higher Education and Training 

- - 

Total Available CIEG Funding 39,381,868 17,744,697 
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23. Public contributions and donations 

  

Public Contributions and Donations - Other 62,540 20,994 
Public Contributions and Donations - SIDA Airconditioned - 57,563 

Public Contributions and Donations - CCTV and Access Control System - 412,289 

 62,540 490,846 

 
24. Employee related costs 
Salaries and Wages 

 
 

5,460,619 

 
 

13,081,341 
Contributions for UIF, Pensions and Medical Aids 27,873 - 
Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence and other allowances 686,102 244,159 
Overtime payments 152,227 - 
Performance and Other Bonuses 76,777 3,093 

Other Employee Related Cost 6,752,594 (2,819,912) 

Total Employee Related Cost 13,156,192 10,508,681 

 
DHET Management Fee Cost 
Salaries and Wages 

 
 

152,304,752 

 
 

140,848,431 

Total DHET Management FEE Cost 152,304,752 140,848,431 
   

Total Employee Related Cost and DHET Management Fee Cost 165,460,944 151,357,112 
 

In terms of the CET Act, non-funded employees are employees of the College and are accountable to the governance 
structures of the college. All employees appointed in funded posts have migrated to DHET on 1 April 2015 and are DHET 
employees as part of a transfer of function shift. Management are defined by the CET Act as the principal and deputy principals 
and they are employed by DHET and have dual accountancy towards the council and DHET respectively. 

 
25. Remuneration of councillors  

Meeting Allowances 415,644 204,258 

Travel and Accomodation Allowances 127,356 59,324 

 543,000 263,582 

 
26. Depreciation and amortisation 

  

Property, plant and equipment 15,150,818 13,731,208 

Intangible assets 99,036 71,715 

 15,249,854 13,802,923 

 
27. Impairment of assets 

  

Impairments 
Property, plant and equipment 

 
3,296,596 

 
2,569,767 

 3,296,596 2,569,767 

 
Reversal of impairments 
Property, plant and equipment 

 
 

(100) 

 
 

- 

Total impairment losses (recognised) reversed 3,296,496 2,569,767 
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28. Finance costs 

  

Finance leases 30,101 84,539 

 30,101 84,539 

 
29. Repairs and Maintenance 

  

Buidlings 5,482,813 2,727,908 
Furniture and Fixtures 222,926 307,396 
IT Equipment 246,601 3,953 
Land 687,765 822,437 
Training Equipment - 97,656 

Motor Vehicles 435,913 466,291 

 7,076,018 4,425,641 

 
Repairs and Maintenance relates to: 

  

Property, Plant and Equipment 7,076,018 4,425,642 

Total 7,076,018 4,425,642 
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30. General expenses 

  

Advertising 1,155,522 1,071,780 
Auditors remuneration 3,395,489 2,126,228 
Bank charges 216,167 173,046 
Cleaning 3,302,135 2,000,669 
Computer expenses 3,392,396 2,638,264 
Consulting and professional fees 2,102,334 1,283,762 
Consumables 578 131,030 
Entertainment 2,191,579 2,086,628 
Fines and penalties - 1,690 
Gifts 128,671 17,367 
Insurance 2,374,987 2,223,577 
Student Support Services 8,356,918 7,781,073 
Conferences and seminars 390,141 408,469 
Licensing of Vehicles 31,337 25,866 
Diploma Ceremony 672,938 683,537 
Fuel and oil 945,200 1,003,951 
Placement fees 133,220 119,428 
Postage and courier 15,427 10,660 
Printing and stationery 3,637,661 3,635,915 
Promotions 1,171,766 1,034,305 
Protective clothing 933,422 735,080 
Security Sevices 6,477,705 5,665,841 
Software Licenses 2,249,558 1,352,827 
Staff welfare 1,351,677 827,665 
Subscriptions Fees 35,092 43,995 
Telephone and Internet Fees 3,144,929 3,321,452 
Training and Bursaries 586,587 37,700 
Membership Fees 143,665 134,102 
Municipal Expenses 10,197,255 6,926,155 
Uniforms 140,130 127,351 
Travel and Accomodation 1,152,172 932,020 
Textbooks and Learning Materials 19,658,092 16,909,818 
Business Integrator Fees 254,751 94,954 
Examination Expenses 210,671 103,297 
Audit Committee Fees - 65,086 
Council Functions 35,813 8,372 

Stipends 12,083,525 12,758,700 

 92,269,510 78,501,660 

 
31. Auditors' remuneration 

  

Fees 3,395,489 2,126,228 

 3,395,489 2,126,228 
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32. Cash generated from operations 

   

Surplus 
Adjustments for: 
Depreciation and amortisation 

 
94,003,639 

 
15,249,854 

115,430,061 
 

13,802,923 
Gain (Loss) on completed projects  (9,566,404) (318,760) 
Loss on disposal of PPE  621,515 - 
Impairment deficit  3,296,496 2,569,767 
Debt impairment  9,472,774 18,232,242 
Movements in provisions  (765,412) (3,978,411) 
Inventories reversal  (6,675,954) 9,327,401 

Gain on disposal of assets 
Changes in working capital: 
Inventories 

 - 
 

(12,014) 

(123,728) 
 

(2,827,558) 
Receivables from exchange transactions  (29,773,195) (6,102,810) 
Other receivables from non-exchange transactions  (21,754,269) 18,392,656 
Payables from exchange transactions  12,067,231 (7,750,614) 
Unspent conditional grants and receipts  (862,359) 2,286,522 
Projects  178,578 11,517,609 

Unrealised Loss - Non cash item  (3,169,483) - 

  62,310,997 170,457,300 

 
33. Financial instruments disclosure 

   

Categories of financial instruments 
   

2019 
   

Financial assets 
   

 

 
Projects - Current 

At fair value 

 
- 

At amortised 
cost 
2,897,899 

Total 

 
2,897,899 

Other financial assets 99,302,192 - 99,302,192 
Receivables from exchange transactions - 50,058,968 50,058,968 
Receivables from non-exchange transactions - 61,771,862 61,771,862 
Cash and cash equivalents - 283,530,133 283,530,133 

Projects - Non-Current - 31,736 31,736 

 99,302,192 398,290,598 497,592,790 

 
Financial liabilities 

   

 

 
Projects - Current 

 
At amortised 

cost 
26,663,193 

Total 

 
26,663,193 

Finance lease obligation  40,740 40,740 
Payables from exchange transactions  80,817,628 80,817,628 

Projects - Non-Current  338,820 338,820 

  107,860,381 107,860,381 

 
2018 

   

Financial assets 
   

 

 
Projects - Current 

At fair value 

 
- 

At amortised 
cost 
1,702,861 

Total 

 
1,702,861 

Other financial assets 100,507,672 - 100,507,672 
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33. Financial instruments disclosure (continued) 
Receivables from exchange transactions 

 

 
- 

 

 
29,758,547 

 

 
29,758,547 

Receivables from non-exchange transactions - 40,017,593 40,017,593 

Cash and cash equivalents - 234,095,385 234,095,385 

 100,507,672 305,574,386 406,082,058 

 
Financial liabilities 

   

 

 
Projects - current 

 
At amortised 

cost 
31,442,242 

Total 

 
31,442,242 

Finance lease obligation  503,428 503,428 
Payables from exchange transactions  68,750,397 68,750,397 

Projects - non-current  3,720,823 3,720,823 

  104,416,890 104,416,890 

 
34. Commitments 

   

Authorised capital expenditure 
   

Already contracted for 
   

 Property, plant and equipment 2,776,446 685,522 

2,776,446 685,522 

 
Total capital commitments 
Already contracted for 2,776,446 

 
 

685,522 
 

35. Contingencies 
 

Contingent Liabilities consist of the follow: 
 

Case 1: 
 

The College is currently locked in a dispute with Moses Kotatane Local Municipality regarding billing of rates and taxes. The 
Management is of the view that the Municipality has sent the College some invoices which were supposed to be for the 
department of Public Works, which was in charge of paying rates and taxes in the past. 

 

Balance as per Moses Kotane Local Municipality statement as at 31 December 2019 which is disclosed as contingent liability 
R25 539 054. 

 

Case 2: 
 

The dismissal of the applicant is unfair. 
 

The respondents (Department of Higher Education and Brits Campus) are ordered to reinstate the applicant (Ms Victoria 
Mlambo) with effect from 26 November 2018 into her former position that she held before the dismissal (Lecturer) and also to 
restore her benefits and service record as if the dismissal had not occurred. The applicant must report for duty in this position 
on the 12th of October 2019 at Brits Campus. 

 

The respondent is further ordered to pay Ms Victoria Mlambo an amount of R 199 136.25, being the equivalent of 9 months' 
salary as back pay for the loss of income resulting from the unfair dismissal. 

 

The above amount must be paid on or before the 30th of October 2019. 
 

The department is in the process of appealling against the verdict of the hearing. No set date has been established. 
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36. Related parties 

 
`  

Relationships 

Controlling entity Minister of Higher Education and Training and 
Department of Higher Education and Training. 
The Minister of Higher Education and Training: The 
Minister of Higher Education and Training ("the 
minister") is the executive authority of all public 
entities reporting to him/her. In terms of the 
Continuing Eductiona nd Training Act No 16 of 2006 
(the Act), the Minister has control over ORBIT TVET 
College. 
Department of Higher Education and Training: 
The Minister is also a related party of the Department 
of Higher Education and Training (DHET). Therefore 
DHET is also a related party of ORBIT TVET College. 
DHET transfers the Grant and Subsidy allocation to 
ORBIT TVET College and controls the employees 
placed at ORBIT TVET College due to their 
employment contracts with DHET. DHET therefore 
pays for the management fees. 

Councillors CS Mabe (Chairperson) - Independent (Ministerial 
appointee). 
MG Nkagisang (Deputy Chairperson) - Donor. 

TC Dubazana - Independent (Ministerial appointee). 
SJ Mokotedi - Independent (Ministerial appointee). 
K Moloantoa - Independent. 
A Saffy - Independent (Ministerial appointee). 
JJ Erasmus - Independent. 
SE Xipu - Independent. 

MP Madoda - Independent (Ministerial appointee). 
MB Bogopa - Independent. 
AD Gabashane - Independent. 
MH Lefophane - Independent. 
JPC Basson - Independent. 
PM Magolego - Independent. 
APC Mangoma - Independent. 
R Singh - Independent. 
DF Mokoena - Principal. 
RD Baloyi - Lecturer Representative. 

R Marakalala - College Support Staff Representative. 
A Van Heerden - ORBIT College Governance and 
Management Secretary. 
SM Letsoalo - Academic Board Representative. 
AT Mokale - College Support Staff Representative. 
MS Ramaru - College Lecturer Staff Representative. 
Delman NM - SRC President. 
MM Bogale - SRC. 
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36. Related parties (continued) 
Audit Committee I Carrim - Group Financial Controller at Glencore 

(Appointed August 2016). 
W Fourie - Chartered Accountant at DVS Chartered 
Accountants (Appointed July 2017). 
ER Hlungwani - Director: Advocate Hlungwani 
Chambers (Appointed April 2019). 
R Kgalaki - Deputy Director: Governance, 
Performance and IT Audit (Appointed October 2018). 
APC Mangoma - Audit, Risk and and IT Audit 
Consultant (Appointed April 2019). 
MG Mathye - Chief Audit Executive at Ramotshere 
Moiloa Local Municipality (Appointed July 2017). 
DF Mokoena - Principal at ORBIT TVET College 
(Appointed June 2018). 
I Klynsmith - Attorney: Van Velden-Duffy Inc 
(Resigned 23 May 2018). 

Members of key management DF Mokoena - Accounting Officer/Principal 
(Appointment July 2018). 
M Marais - Accounting Officer/Principal Principal 
(Resigned 30 April 2018). 
SM Matjiane - Deputy Principal: Corporate Services. 
TJ Mosito - Deputy Principal: Academic. 
LC De Beer - Acting Deputy Principal: Finance 
(Resigned 2018). 

The following TVET Colleges have engaged in transactions with ORBIT 
TVET College for the business as stated. All these transactions were at 
arms length. 
TVET College Business 
Capricon Conference Fees 
Central Johannesburg Conference Fees 
Coastal Conference Fees 
Ehlanzeni Conference Fees 
Ingwe Conference Fees 
King Sabatha Conference Fees 
Taletso Shared Fees for Student Activities 
Thekwini Conference Fees 
Tswane North Conference Fees 
Umgungundlovu Conference Fees 
Vhembe Conference Fees 
Vuselela Shared Fees for Student Activities 
Waterberg Conference Fees 

 

Related party balances 

 
Unspent Conditional Grants Received: 

Department of Higher Education and Training 7,127,163 7,989,522 

 
Other Related Party Balances 
NSFAS 

 
 

51,025,618 

 
 

50,382,795 

SETA 20,902,893 33,460,204 

Related party transactions 
  

Government Grants and Subsidies Received: 
Department of Higher Education and Training 

 
263,826,907 

 
289,770,966 

 
Key management information 
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36. Related parties (continued) 

      

Remuneration of management 
      

Remuneration of key management, councillors and audit committee menbers. 
      

2019 
      

 
 
 
 
 
 
Name 

Basic salary Bonuses and 
awards 

College 
Contributions 
(UIF, Medical 

Aid and 
Pension) 

Travel, Motor 
Car, 

Accomodatio 
, Subsistence 

and Other 
Allowances 

Total 
 

Matjiane SM 657,240 121,947 85,595 119,344 984,126  

Mosito TJ 671,845 130,448 87,475 221,124 1,110,892  

Mokoena DF 730,982 58,629 107,333 189,379 1,086,323  

Mokhethi MTS 304,152 - 39,606 106,804 450,562  

De Beer LC - Resigned 2018 - - - - -  

Marais N - Resigned April 2018 - - - - -  

 2,364,219 311,024 320,009 636,651 3,631,903  

 
2018 

      

 
 
 
 
 
 
Name 

Basic salary Bonuses and 
awards 

College 
Contributions 
(UIF, Medical 

Aid and 
Pension) 

Travel, Motor 
Car, 

Accomodatio 
, Subsistence 

and Other 
Allowances 

Total 
 

Marais N - Resigned April 2018 272,625 382 116,839 32,269 422,115  

Matjiane SM 618,916 52,406 143,869 39,775 854,966  

Mosito TJ 630,440 121,738 217,654 32,660 1,002,492  

Mokoena DF 351,773 - 51,815 85,060 488,648  

De Beer LC - Resigned 2018 - - - 7,188 7,188  
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36. Related parties (continued) 

      

 1,873,754 174,526 530,177 196,952 2,775,409  

 
External Audit Committee Members Remuneration 

      

2019 
      

 
 

 
Name 

 
Meetings 

Attended for 
the Period 

Meeting Fees Travel and 
Subsistence 

Total 
 

Carrim I  Four (4) 10,210 - 10,210  

Fourie W  Nine (9) 23,115 - 23,115  

Hlungwani ER  Two (2) 4,972 19,230 24,202  

Mathye MG  Ten (10) 34,753 33,354 68,107  

Kgalaki R 
Klynsmith I 

 Five (5) 
None 

12,563 
- 

6,407 
- 

18,970 
- 

 

   85,613 58,991 144,604  

 
2018 

      

 
 

 
Name 

 
Meetings 

Attended for 
the Period 

Meeting Fees Travel and 
Subsistence 

Total 
 

Klynsmith I  Two (2) 4,706 - 4,706  

Carrim I  Four (4) 11,765 - 11,765  

WS Fourie - Appointed July 2017  Five (5) 11,765 - 11,765  

MG Mathye - Appointed July 2017  Seventeen (17) 23,715 14,215 37,930  

R Kgalaki - Appointed 17 October 2018  One (1) 2,353 1,106 3,459  

   54,304 15,321 69,625  
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37. External Councillors Remuneration 

    

External Counillors 
    

2019 
    

 
 

 
CS Mabe 

Meetings 
Attended for 
the Period 
One (1) 

Meeting Fees 

 
 

3,879 

Travel and 
Subsistence 

 
- 

Total 

 
 

3,879 
MG Nkagisang Two (2) 5,846 2,693 8,539 
K Moloantoa Thirty Five (35) 136,335 8,587 144,922 
MB Bogopa Fourteen (14) 47,676 2,855 50,531 
AD Gabashane Three (3) 11,664 2,583 14,247 
P Magolego Twelve (12) 43,788 11,479 55,267 
MH Lefophane Seven (7) 24,678 14,947 39,625 
JPC Basson Eight (8) 27,726 8,502 36,228 

JJ Erasmus 
MP Madoda 
TC Dubazana 

One (1) 
 

Five (5) 

2,353 

- 
17,501 

- 

- 
16,591 

2,353 

- 
34,092 

I Carrim Four (4) 10,210 - 10,210 
W Fourie Nine (9) 23,115 - 23,115 
ER Hlungwani Two (2) 4,972 19,230 24,202 
R Kgalaki Five (5) 12,563 6,407 18,970 
MG Mathye Ten (10) 34,753 33,354 68,107 
Mokotedi SJ (Attorney - Ministerial Appointee) One (1) 2,353 - 2,353 

Xipu SE (Dr) (Additional Member ) Two (2) 6,232 128 6,360 

  415,644 127,356 543,000 

 
2018 

    

 
 

 
CS Mabe 

Meetings 
Attended for 
the Period 
Twelve (12) 

Meeting Fees 

 
 

53,108 

Travel and 
Subsistence 

 
- 

Total 

 
 

53,108 
MG Nkagisang Nine (9) 6,986 1,282 8,268 
JJ Erasmus One (1) 3,493 - 3,493 
MP Madoda Three (3) 2,353 - 2,353 
SJ Mokotedi One (1) 3,493 - 3,493 
K Moloantoa Twenty Two 30,370 1,829 32,199 

 
SE Xipu 

(22) 
Fifteen (15) 

 
25,296 

 
2,347 

 
27,643 

TC Dubazana Twenty (20) 50,923 52,759 103,682 
I Carrim Four (4) 21,177 - 21,177 
I Klynsmith Two (2) 4,706 - 4,706 

R Kgalaki Three (3) 2,353 1,106 3,459 

  204,258 59,323 263,581 
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38. Prior period errors 

  

In 2017 and 2018 projects were incorrectly accounted for due to mathematical 
errors in calculations and additional information presented. This has resulted in 
the following: 
Decrease in Projects (Current Assets) 

 
 

 
(69,713) 

 
 

 
- 

Decrease in Projects (Non-Current Liabilities) (338,874) - 
Increase in Projects (Current Liabilities) 628,069 1,841 
Decrease in Projects (Current Liabilities) - (139,925) 
Increase in Accumulated surplus (2,009,437) 138,085 
Decrease in projects (Non - Current Liabilities) (1,306,498) - 
Increase in Projects (Current Liabilities) 489,984 - 

Decrease in (Loss)/Gain on completed projects (1,650,530) - 

In 2018 provisions were incorrectly classified as accounted for as current, this 
has now been corrected and resulted in the following: 
Decrease in Provision ( Current Liabilities) 

 

 
(1,306,498) 

 

 
- 

Increase in Provisions ( Non- Current Liabilities) 1,306,498 - 

In 2018 prescription revenue was incorrectly accounted for as other income, this 
has now been corrected and resulted in the following: 
Decrease in Other income 

 

 
(41,109) 

 

 
- 

Increase in Prescription revenue 41,109 - 

In 2018 general expenditure was incorrectly accounted for as contracted 
services, this has now been corrected and resulted in the following: 
Decrease in Contracted services 

 

 
(118,387) 

 

 
- 

Increase in General expenditure 118,387 - 

In 2018 inventory losses were incorretly accounted for due to additional 
information presented that resulted in more stock write-downs. That Has 
resulted in the following: 
Decrease in inventory 

 
 

 
(110,061) 

 
 

 
- 

Increase in Inventories losses/write-downs 110,061 - 

In 2018 amounts were incorrectly accounted as accrued expenses. This has 
resulted in the following: 
Decrease in Payables from exchanges trancactions 

 

 
(165,217) 

 

 
- 

Decrease in Inventory (130,896) - 
Decrease in Lease rentals on operating lease (25,605) - 

Decrease in Genaral Expenses (8,715) - 

In 2018 not all amounts receivable were accounted for, this has now been 
corrected and resulted in the following: 
Increase in Business Unit Income 

 

 
66,150 

 

 
- 

Increase in Trade and Other Receivables from exchange transactions 66,150 - 

In previous years assets were incorrectly accounted for, this was due to 
calculation errors in the finance lease liability, assets previously omitted from 
the asset register, depreciation calculations errors and assets incorrectly 
accounted for, in the current year an extensive exercise was undertaken and 
assets were corrected, this has resulted in the following: 
Increase in Property, plant and equipment 

 
 
 
 
 

19,070,694 

 
 
 
 
 

- 
Increase in Accumulated surplus 11,684,782 - 
Decrease in Depreciation and amortisation (3,616,987) - 
Decrease in Accumulated surplus (4,879,868) (7,295,341) 
Increase in Depreciation and amortisation 4,233,264 - 
Decrease in Property, plant and equipment (5,455,861) (13,635,147) 
Decrease in Payables from exchange transactions (352,263) - 
Decrease in Lease rentals on operating lease (390,692) - 
Decrease in General Expenses (4,736,615) - 
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38. Prior period errors (continued) 
Increase in Finance costs 

 

 
12,125 

 

 
- 

Increase in Finance lease obligation 542,653 - 
Decrease in Finance lease obligation (679,764) (280,077) 
Increase in Repairs and Maintenance 23,248 - 

Increase in Gain/(Loss) on Disposal of Assets and Liabilities 41,554 - 

In previous years intangible assets were incorrectly accounted for, this was due 
to calculation errors on the amortisation, in the current year an extensive 
execrise was undertaken and assets were corrected, this has resulted in the 
following: 
Increase in Depreciation and amortisation 

 
 
 

 
71,715 

 
 
 

 
- 

Decrease in Intangible assets (124,337) - 
Decrease in Accumulated surplus (52,622) - 
Increase in Intangible assets 135,403 - 
Increase in Accumulated surplus 69,662 - 

Decrease in Depreciation and amortisation (65,741) - 

In previous years various expenses were incorrectly accounted for, upon 
inspection of supporting invoices, payslips and bank statements these errors 
have now been corrected , this has resulted in the following: 
Increase in Employee related costs 

 
 

 
777 

 
 

 
- 

Increase in Payables from exhange transactions 2,354,785 - 
Increase in Accumulated surplus 2,536,119 - 
Decrease in Payables from exchange transactions (2,659,275) - 
Decrease in Accumulated surplus (400) - 
Decrease in Employee related costs (123,156) - 
Increase in General expenses 2,472,394 - 

Decrease in Employee Costs (400) - 

In the previous year various payments were incorrectly accounted for, this has 
resulted in the following: 
Increase in Cash and cash equivalents 

 

 
238,535 

 

 
- 

Increase in Payables from exchange transactions 238,535 - 

In the previous year suspense accounts were not cleared, this has now been 
corrected, this has resulted in the following: 
Decrease in Receivables from exchange transactions 

 

 
(311,960) 

 

 
- 

Decrease in Payables from exchange transactions (311,960) - 

In the previous years provision for impairment was not in accordance with the 
debt impairment policy, this has now been corrected, this has resulted in the 
following: 
Decrease in Receivables from exchange transactions 

 
 

 
- 

 
 

 
(20,218,919) 

Increase in Debt Impairment - (20,218,919) 
Increase in Receivables from exchange transactions 6,165,310 - 

Decrease in Debt Impairment (6,165,310) - 

In the previous year suspense accounts were not cleared, this has now been 
corrected, this has resulted in the following: 
Decrease in Payables from exchange transactions 

 

 
- 

 

 
(615,747) 

Increase in Accumulated surplus - 81,253 
Increase in Project Income - 122,299 
Increase in Prescription revenue - 582,592 
Increase in General Expenses - 170,407 
Decrease in Prescription revenue (316,045) - 

Increase in Payables from exchange transactions 316,045 - 

In the previous years provision for impairment was not in accordance with the 
debt impairment policy, this has now been corrected, this has resulted in the 
following: 
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38. Prior period errors (continued) 
Decrease in Receivables from exchange transactions 

 

 
(3,650,314) 

 

 
(1,390,324) 

Increase in Debt Impairment 3,650,314 1,390,324 

In 2018 a re-assessments was made with regard to CIEG Grant in terms of GRAP 
23 and it was concluded that the stipulations imposed restrictions and not 
conditions, which resulted in the fact that all revenue received had to be 
accounted for on the day of receipt. This has resulted in the following: 
Increase in Government Grants and Subsidies 

 
 
 

 
17,745,000 

 
 
 

 
- 

Decrease in Unspent Conditional Grants and Receipts 17,745,000 - 

Due to various prior year errors corrected on various annual financial statement 
line items, as disclosed as part of the prior year error note, this has resulted in 
corrections in financial instrument disclosure as follows: 
Financial assets have been impacted as follows: 
Increase in Cash and cash equivalents 

 
 
 

 
258,535 

 
 
 

 
- 

Decrease in Projects 69,712 - 
Increase in Receivables from exchange transactions 60,201,598 - 
Decrease in Receivables from non-exchange transactions 3,628,586 - 

Financial liabilities have been impacted as follows: 
Decrease in Projects 

 
3,571,549 

 
- 

Decrease in Payables from exchange transactions (12,542,756) - 
Increase in Finance lease obligation 503,428 - 

Decrease in Projects (5,728,876) - 

An extensive exercise was undertaken in the current period to correct all 
previous errors, related parties were incorrectly disclosed in the previous period 
and this resulted in the following: 
Decrease in Government grants and subsidies received - Department of Higher 

 
 

 
7,994,773 

 
 

 
- 

Education and Training 
Increase in Unspent Conditional Grants received - Department of Higher Education 

 
7,989,522 

 
- 

and Training   

An extensive exercise was undertaken in the current period to correct all 
previous errors, incorrect disclosures have been corrected and this resulted in 
the following: 
Decrease Lease rentals on operating lease - Contractual amounts 

 
 

 
(201,894) 

 
 

 
- 

Decrease in Commitments - Operating expenditure (16,563,612) - 
Decrease in Commitments - Capital expenditure (685,522) - 

Increase in Commitments - already contracted for - property, plant and equipment 685,522 - 

Due to various prior year errors corrected on various annual financial statement 
line items, as disclosed as part of the prior year error note, this has resulted in 
corrections in changes in the cash flow statement as follows: 
Decrease in Tuition Fees 

 
 

 
(34,978,413) 

 
 

 
- 

Decrease in Transfers, public contributions, sponsorships and donations (490,846) - 
Increase in Grants 17,898,288 - 
Increase in Other receipts 616,550 - 
Increase in Revenue 64,001,515 - 
Increase in Other operating income 244,785 - 
Increase in Project income 40,970,193 - 
Increase in Public donations 490,846 - 
Increase in Employee costs (4,024,120) - 
Increase in Suppliers (61,879,074) - 
Increase in Repairs and Maintenance (4,425,642) - 
Increase Finance cost (84,539) - 
Increase in Net cash flows from operating activities 18,279,543 - 
Increase in Purchase of property, plant and equipment (2,113,558) - 
Decrease in Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 41,556 - 
Decrease in Purchase of other intangible assets 276,530 - 
Decrease in Projects (10,839,941) - 
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38. Prior period errors (continued) 
Decrease in Completed projects 

 
1,331,770 

 
- 

Decrease in Other cash items (Small items) (6,492,424) - 
Decrease in Net cash flows from investing activities (17,796,067) - 
Increase in Finance lease payments (304,941) - 
Increase in Net cash flows from financing activities (304,941) - 
Increase in net cash and cash equivalents 238,535 - 
Increase in cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 249 - 
Increase in cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 238,784 - 
Increase in General Expenses 4,418,770 - 
Decrease in repairs and maintenance (46,496) - 
Increase in finance cost 1,424,440 - 
Decrease in depreciation and amortisation (2,424) - 
Decrease in Accumulated Surplus (767,492) - 
Increase in Provisions (Non - Current) 1,306,498 - 
Increase in Finance Lease Obligation (Non - Current) 247,364 - 

Decrease in Finance Lease Obligation (Current) (457,272) - 

 107,197,803 (61,307,598) 

 
Due to various prior year errors corrected on various annual financial statement 
line items, as disclosed as part of the prior year error note, this has resulted in 
corrections in changes in the disclosures as follows: 
Increase in NSFAS 

 
 
 

50,382,795 

 
 
 

- 

Increase in SETA 33,460,204 - 

39. Prior-year adjustments   

 

Presented below are those items contained in the statement of financial position, statement of financial performance and cash 
flow statement that have been affected by prior-year adjustments: 

 

Statement of financial position 
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39. Prior-year adjustments (continued) 

2018 

Note    As previously Correction of Restated 
 reported error  

Projects - Current Asset 1,772,573 (69,712) 1,702,861 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 234,095,385 238,535 234,333,920 
Inventories 9,743,115 (240,958) 9,502,157 
Receivables form exchange transactions 49,098,604 (19,340,057) 29,758,547 
Property, plant and equipment 137,525,350 (20,315) 137,505,035 
Intangible assets 447,159 11,066 458,225 
Projects - Current Liability 30,952,258 489,984 31,442,242 
Finance Lease Obligation - Current Liability 430,146 32,713 462,859 
Payables from exchange transaction 70,184,133 (1,195,201) 68,988,932 
Unspent Conditional Grant 25,734,522 (17,745,000) 7,989,522 
Projects - Non-Current Liability 4,059,697 (338,874) 3,720,823 
Finance Lease Obligation - Non-Current Liability 210,393 (169,824) 40,569 

Accumulated Surplus (440,329,824) 495,259 (439,834,565) 

Financial Instrument Disclosure 
Financial assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 

 

 
234,075,385 

 

 
258,535 

 

 
234,333,920 

Projects (Assets) 1,772,573 (69,712) 1,702,861 
Receivables from exchange transactions (28,675,164) 60,201,598 31,526,434 
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 43,646,179 (3,628,586) 40,017,593 

Financial liabilities 
Projects 

 
35,013,791 

 
(3,571,549) 

 
31,442,242 

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 97,607,370 (12,542,756) 85,064,614 
Finance lease obligation - 503,428 503,428 

Projects 4,059,697 (338,874) 3,720,823 

Related parties: 
Government grants and subsidies received - Department of Higher 

 
280,020,739 

 
9,750,227 

 
289,770,966 

Education and Training 
Unspent Conditional Grants received - Department of Higher Education 

 
- 

 
7,989,522 

 
7,989,522 

and Training 
NSFAS 

 
- 

 
50,382,795 

 
50,382,795 

SETA - 33,460,204 33,460,204 

Commitments and related: 
Lease rentals on operating lease - Contractual amounts 

 
201,894 

 
(201,894) 

 
- 

Commitments - Operating expenditure 16,563,612 (16,563,612) - 
Commitments - Capital expenditure 685,522 (685,522) - 

Commitments - already contracted for - property, plant and equipment - 685,522 685,522 

Cash Flow Statement 
Receipts 
Tuition Fees 

 

 
34,978,413 

 

 
(34,978,413) 

 

 
- 

Transfers, public contributions, sponsorships and donations 490,846 (490,846) - 
Grants 274,159,200 (274,159,200) - 
Other receipts (616,550) 616,550 - 
Interest income 12,955,634 (12,955,634) - 
Revenue - 64,001,515 64,001,515 
Operating Income - 244,785 244,785 
Finance Income - 12,955,634 12,955,634 
Project Income - 40,970,193 40,970,193 
Public Donations - 490,846 490,846 
Government grants - 292,057,488 292,057,488 

Payments 
Employee cost 

 
(151,574,985) 

 
(4,024,120) 

 
(155,599,105) 
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39. Prior-year adjustments (continued) 
Suppliers 

 
(15,500,974) 

 
15,500,974 

 
- 

Repairs and Maintenance - (4,425,642) (4,425,642) 
Finance cost - (1,508,979) (1,508,979) 
Operating expenses - (75,955,608) (75,955,608) 

Net cash flows from operating activities 
Cash flows from investing activities 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 

154,891,584 
 

(13,260,358) 

18,339,543 
 

(2,113,558) 

173,231,127 
 

(15,373,916) 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 268,857 41,556 310,413 
Purchase of other intangible assets (276,530) 276,530 - 
Projects (10,839,941) 10,839,941 - 
Purchase of financial assets (42,007,672) 42,007,672 - 
Completed Projects (1,331,770) 1,331,770 - 
Other cash items (Small items) 6,492,424 (6,492,424) - 

Net cash flows from investing activities 
Cash flows from financing activities 
Finance lease payments 

(39,275,108) 
 

(319,741) 

(17,796,067) 
 

(304,941) 

(57,071,175) 
 

(624,682) 
Net cash flows from Financing activities (319,741) (304,941) (624,682) 
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 115,296,735 238,535 115,535,270 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 118,798,650 249 118,798,899 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 234,095,385 238,784 234,334,169 

1,485,999,467 152,419,134 1,638,418,601 

 
Statement of financial performance 

    

2018 
    

 

 
Business Unit Income 

Note As previously 
reported 

19,857 

Correction of 
error 

66,150 

Restated 

 
86,007 

Gain / (Loss) on completed projects  (1,331,770) 1,650,530 318,760 
Inventories losses/write-downs  (9,217,340) (110,061) (9,327,401) 
Government grants and subsidies  272,025,966 17,745,000 289,770,966 
Employee related cost  151,479,891 (122,779) 151,357,112 
Remuneration of councillors  263,581 1 263,582 
Depreciation and amortisation  13,183,096 616,277 13,799,373 
Finance cost  72,414 12,125 84,539 
Lease rentals on operating lease  579,728 (416,298) 163,430 
Repairs and maintenance  4,448,890 (23,248) 4,425,642 
Contracted Services  118,387 (118,387) - 
General expenditure  76,237,439 2,264,221 78,501,660 
Prescription Revenue  - (274,945) (274,945) 
Other Income  41,109 (41,109) - 

Debt Impairment  (20,747,238) 2,514,996 (18,232,242) 

Surplus for the year  487,174,010 23,762,473 510,936,483 

 
40. Risk management 

    

Financial risk management     

 

The college’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate 
risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. 

 

Liquidity risk 
 

The college’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The college manages liquidity risk 
through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities and to balance between actual and budgeted operating 
expenses. 

 

Cash flow forecasts are prepared and adequate utilised borrowing facilities are monitored. 
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40. Risk management (continued) 

Credit risk 

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and trade debtors. The college 
only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party. 

 

Trade receivables comprise a widespread customer base. Management evaluated credit risk relating to customers on an 
ongoing basis. If customers are independently rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent rating, risk 
control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors. 
Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the board. The utilisation of 
credit limits is regularly monitored. 

 

Provision for impairment is recognised for all receivables, in accordance with GRAP 104 Financial Instruments, and is 
monitored at the end of each reporting period. In addition, receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation 
of recovery, for example, when a debtor has been placed under liquidation. Trade receivables which have been written off are 
not subject to enforcement activities. 

 

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the current reporting period. 
 

For cash balances the exposure at default is considered to be the outstanding balance at year end as this is the amount that is 
exposed. The current ratings for ABSA Bank Limited is Baa3 (Moody's) and zaAA (Standard &Poor) and indicates that ABSA 
Bank Limited is stable and taking into account the historic date on ratings and probabilities of default. 

 

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows for each financial asset classes: 
 

`  

Financial instrument 2019 2018 
Cash and cash equivalents 283,530,133 234,095,385 
Projects (Current Assets) 2,897,899 1,702,861 
Other financial assets 99,302,192 100,507,672 
Receivables from exchange transactions 50,058,968 29,758,547 
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 61,771,862 40,017,593 

Projects (Non-Current Assets) 
 
No collateral is held in regards to any financial asset of ORBIT TVET College. 

31,736 - 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

The College has no significant concentrations of credit risk. For banks and financial institutions, only independently rated 
parties are accepted and the College have policies in place to ensure that credit exposure to any one institution is limited. It 
also has policies in place to ensure that rendering of education service are made to students with an appropriate credit history. 
Receivables comprise of outstanding student loans and a number of customers dispersed across different industries and 
geographical areas. The College is exposed to credit risk arising from student receivables related to outstanding fees and 
loans. This risk is mitigated by requiring students to pay an initial installment in respect of tuition and accommodation fees at 
registration, the regular monitoring of outstanding fees, the institution of debt collection action in cases of long outstanding 
amounts. In addition, students with outstanding balances from previous years of study are only permitted to renew their 
registration after either the settling of the outstanding amount or the conclusion of a formal arrangement. The College assists a 
limited number of financially needy students with loans. Although this represents a credit risk, the risk is mitigated in view 
thereof that the loans are secured by means of requesting two sureties per agreement. Credit valuations are performed on the 
financial condition of customers other than students. 
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40. Risk management (continued) 

Market risk 

Interest rate risk 
 

As the college has no significant interest-bearing assets, the college’s income and operating cash flows are substantially 
independent of changes in market interest rates. 

 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market prices. 

Market risk reflects interest rate risk. 

No formal policy exists to hedge volatilities in the interest rate market and no interest rate swaps are entered into to mitigate the 
risk of rising interest rates. 

 

There has been no change to the company's exposure to market risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the 
risk. 

 

The company's most significant interest rate risk relates to financial liabilities that arise from finance lease obligations. These 
are issued at the rate implicit to the lease and expose the college to cash flow interest rate risk. The rates vary between 9,25% 
- 10,50%. 

 

Scenarios are run only for liabilities that represent the major interest-bearing positions. Base on the simulations performed, the 
impact on profit of a 0.25% shift would be a maximum increase of R31 370 (2018: R87 372) or decrease of R31 370 (2018: R87 
372), respectively. The simulation is done on a yearly basis to verify that the maximum loss potential is within the limit given by 
the management. 

 

Price risk 
 

The College is not exposed to price risk since no listed securities are held by the college and the college has no financial 
assets available for sale. 

 

Post-tax surplus for the year would increase/decrease as a result of gains or losses on equity securities classified as at fair 
value through surplus or deficit. Other components of equity would increase/decrease as a result of gains or losses on equity 
securities classified as available-for-sale. 

 

41. Going concern 
 

We draw attention to the fact that at 31 December 2019, the college had an accumulated surplus of R 530,668,726 and that the 
college's total assets exceed its liabilities by R 530,668,726. 

 

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This 
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of 
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business. 

 

The ability of the college to continue as a going concern is dependent on a number of factors. The most significant of these is 
that the councillors continue to procure funding for the ongoing operations for the college. 



ORBIT TVET COLLEGE 
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended December 2019 

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements 

 

178  

Figures in Rand 2019 2018 

 
42. Events after the reporting date 

 

No material non-adjustment events occurred after the reporting date. 
 

Since 31 December 2019 , the spread of COVID-19 has severely impacted many local economies around the globe. In many 
countries, businesses are being forced to cease or limit operations for long or indefinite periods of time. Measures taken to 
contain the spread of the virus, including travel bans, quarantines, social distancing, and closures of non-essential services 
have triggered significant disruptions to businesses worldwide, resulting in an economic slowdown. Global stock markets have 
also experienced great volatility and a significant weakening. 

 

Governments and central banks have responded with monetary and fiscal interventions to stabilise economic conditions. 
ORBIT TVET College was closed during the lockdown period but has subsequently commenced operations. The council has 
assessed the impact of COVID-19 on the collage and has determined that financially the Collage remained unaffected. 

 

The College has determined that these events are non-adjusting subsequent events. Accordingly, the financial position and 
results of operations as of and for the year ended 31 December 2019 have not been adjusted to reflect their impact. The 
duration and impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, as well as the effectiveness of government and central bank responses, 
remains unclear at this time. It is not possible to reliably estimate the duration and severity of these consequences, as well as 
their impact on the financial position and results of the Collage for future periods 


